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ITEM NO. 2

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE (C.C. No. 07-54)
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:

...(gavel)... Aloha and

good morning, everyone. This is our Planning Committee
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1

meeting. The Chair at this time would like to call to

2

order the Planning Committee meeting. And before we

3

begin, if I can request that, if any of you have

4

sound-making devices, you would put them on your silent

5

mode before we start.

6

And then let me take an opportunity to also

7

introduce the Members of the Planning Committee. And

8

we'll start from my far left. We have Member Mike

9

Molina.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chair.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good morning. Member

12

Gladys Baisa.

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good morning. Member

15

Bill Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha and good

16
17

morning, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Wayne

18
19

Nishiki.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And Member Michael

22

Victorino.

23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And excused for

25

our meeting this morning is Vice-Chair, Member Jo Anne
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5

Johnson.

2

I'd also like to introduce other departments

3

that are here with us this morning. To my right here,

4

I'd like to introduce Michael Hopper who's from the

5

Deputy Corporation Counsel. Good morning. And then

6

from the Department of Planning, we have Director Jeff

7

Hunt.

8

MR. HUNT: Good morning, Chair.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good morning. And then

10

we also have Planning Program Administrator [sic],

11

Mr. John Summers.

12

MR. SUMMERS: Good morning.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then, to my

14

left, I wanna introduce our Planning Staff. I have our

15

Legislative Analyst, Mr. David Raatz, and then our

16

Committee Secretary, Clarita Balala. Okay. So we will

17

begin with public testimony in --

18

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- just a few moments.

20

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair? I

21

would -- before we start with public testimony, if it --

22

at your -- your permission, of course, I would like

23

Corporation Counsel and the Department -- in light of

24

what occurred on Friday, I've had numerous questions

25

asked of me by the general public, how does that action
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1

we took on Friday affect what we're doing presently.

2

And just so that the public is clear in how this is

3

working, Mr. Chair, I would like clarification before we

4

even start public testimony, from both the Department

5

and Corporation Counsel, just so that the general public

6

is clear that what we're doing has no bearing -- or what

7

we decided on Friday does not affect what we're

8

continuously doing right now. So I would like to ask

9

that of the Department and of the Corporation Counsel

10

before we started the proceedings, with your permission,

11

of course, Chair.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member

13

Victorino, are you asking questions about the General

14

Policy Plan?

15

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That is correct.

16

The action that we took on Friday, sending the five

17

specific items back to Committee, and how that affects

18

the present work we're doing on the Island Plan.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Corporation Counsel?

22

MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My

23

understanding is that there were several items referred

24

back to this Committee on the Countywide Policy Plan.

25

If the question is, does that mean you need to
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1

immediately stop your review of the Maui Island Plan,

2

no, you -- you do not. And, in fact, you've been

3

reviewing the Maui Island Plan while the Countywide

4

Policy Plan has yet to be adopted. This entire time,

5

you have not had an adopted Countywide Policy Plan. You

6

have had a Draft Countywide Policy Plan, but it has not

7

been adopted at any time during your review.

8
9

I think ultimately -- and I can review 2.80B
here to get you maybe a specific citation, but I think,

10

ultimately, you would want to adopt the Countywide

11

Policy Plan prior to your final adoption of the Maui

12

Island Plan. However, it is not required that you have

13

an adopted Countywide Policy Plan before you begin to

14

review the Maui Island Plan and make recommendations on

15

the plan.

16

In fact, Council, you know -- the -- you're

17

not even talking about final Council action on the Maui

18

Island Plan right now. You're -- you're still only

19

making recommendations to the full Council on the Maui

20

Island Plan right now.

21

So I -- I think, ultimately, you would want to

22

adopt the Countywide Policy Plan at the full Council

23

level prior to adopting the Maui Island Plan at the full

24

Council level. But at -- at this stage, I -- I would

25

not see anything preventing you from continuing your
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1

review of the Maui Island Plan because this entire time

2

you have not had an adopted Countywide Policy Plan. So

3

I -- I don't see that as, really, a change in the -- the

4

status the Committee has had during its entire review of

5

the Maui Island Plan to date.

6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you,

7

Mr. Chair. And thank you, Corporation Counsel, for that

8

clarification.

9

I do have one specific question to the

10

Department. Should one of the items that we was -- we

11

referred back to the Committee come up during our

12

deliberation today, tomorrow, whenever, how would that

13

affect, and what recommendations would you make, on

14

that? And this is specifically to the Department

15

itself, Mr. Chair.

16

MR. HUNT: The Department agrees with

17

Corporation Counsel that there's no reason why you

18

cannot review the Maui Island Plan even though the

19

Countywide hasn't been adopted. We also agree that you

20

should adopt the Countywide first. But in your review

21

of the Maui Island Plan, as I understand it, you're

22

going through one pass and you'll come back around a

23

second time. That would be the opportunity for you to

24

revisit any issues that have come up at that time, to

25

see if they're consistent with any changes at the
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9

Countywide Policy Plan.

2

The -- there's only five issues that the

3

Countywide Policy Plan was sent back to Committee for.

4

I don't see those as being broad global issues or -- or

5

affecting a large number of policies. They seem to be

6

very specific.

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you,

8

Mr. Hunt. And, Mr. Chair, thank you for that

9

opportunity. I think that clears up in my mind, and, I

10

think, people in the public's mind in how this process

11

is working. And I thank you for that opportunity,

12

Mr. Chair. And I thank the Department and Corp.

13

Counsel.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, the

15

Chair would like to continue proceeding. I will be

16

taking public testimony in a few moments. For those

17

wishing to testify, if you haven't done so already, you

18

can sign up out there at the -- the desk. Testimonies

19

will be limited to three minutes of time. You're

20

requested, when you come up to the podium here, to state

21

your name for the record and who you represent. Okay.

22

Today, we have a special meeting of the

23

Planning Committee. And I wanna thank the Committee

24

Members for making themselves available so that this

25

Committee can continue its deliberation on the Maui
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1

Island Plan. We have one item on our agenda today. And

2

that's the PC-2, General Plan Update. Our meeting today

3

gives us another opportunity to continue our work on the

4

342-page Draft Maui Island Plan.

5

After conducting community meetings in Haiku,

6

Hana, Kihei, Lahaina, and Pukalani, in January, we began

7

voting on the Maui Island Plan earlier this month. So

8

far, we have revised and approved the introductory

9

material and Chapters 1, 2 and 3. We have also begun

10

work on Chapter 4 relating to Economic Diversification.

11

And time permitting today, we will attempt to finish our

12

work in Chapter 4 and proceed to review Chapters 5 and

13

7. We have not yet received the Planning Director's

14

updated Chapter 6 related to Infrastructure.

15

So at this time, then, the Committee will

16

accept public testimony. Each testifier, again, will

17

have three minutes of time. Okay. Okay. I'd like to

18

begin with Nathan Okubo, who will be testifying first,

19

to be followed by Jocelyn Perreira.

20
21

...BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MR. OKUBO: Good morning, Chair and Members of

22

the Planning Committee. My name is Nathan Okubo, and

23

I'm an attorney with the law firm of Cades Schutte. You

24

may remember me when I testified in front of all of you

25

last year regarding the Superstore Bill. I'm here today
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1

just to make comments on behalf of my law firm regarding

2

our concerns of the Draft Maui Island Plan, particularly

3

with respect to the specific action item currently in

4

the Draft Maui Island Plan to "develop standards to

5

strictly regulate and limit the location, design, and

6

massing of big box retail stores."

7

All of you should have a copy of my written

8

testimony that I hand-delivered this morning; however, I

9

would like to briefly add that not only do we feel that

10

this big box action item in the Draft Maui Island Plan

11

should be more properly dealt with during other

12

processes like the Zoning Ordinance, but, also, that the

13

timing of this specific action item is inappropriate

14

given the current state of our economy and the needs to

15

promote job growth rather than adopting measures that

16

would prohibit the same. We believe that this was the

17

message delivered by 26 out of the 27 total testifiers

18

at the June 5th, 2009 Council meeting on the Superstore

19

Bill. And we urge you to follow the will of your

20

constituents and delete the specific big box action item

21

from the Draft Maui Island Plan.

22
23
24
25

Thank you very much for the opportunity to
testify today.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you,
Mr. Okubo. Members, questions for the testifier? Okay.
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

12

1

MR. OKUBO: Thank you.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Jocelyn

3

Perreira, to be followed by -- let's see -- Howard

4

Hanzawa.
MS. J. PERREIRA: Chair Kaho'ohalahala,

5
6

Council Members, I have written testimony. I hope you

7

have an opportunity to read it. I'm gonna try to

8

shorten it.
Thank you for your dedication, perseverance

9
10

and hard work in serving our communities. Those who

11

have worked on this General Plan every step of the way

12

have put forth the best intentions, but care must be

13

taken to continue the review and analysis so that we

14

ensure it does not carry unintended consequences. We

15

hope that you have our work as a part of your official

16

record.

17
18
19

We would like to offer and reiterate a few
comments for your consideration.
Number one: Ensure a sufficient amount of

20

time for public review and comment on the most recent

21

revisions is posted in a variety of venues and available

22

for review and comment. Our community needs are

23

critical. Capital improvement projects require --

24

require creative ideas to generate adequate revenues.

25

We're gonna have impacts County-wide, every decision
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1

being made should relate to the vision of the Plan. Our

2

communities need to follow the process to fully

3

understand the issues and the impacts associated with

4

this Plan that will affect them directly and indirectly.

5

Who is going to pay for the ambitions of this Plan?

6

What are the benefits? What are the compromises? How

7

much will it cost every citizen to implement and

8

maintain policies that will forever change their way of

9

life and may very well affect their livelihoods?

10

It is very important to focus on supporting

11

the economic engines of agriculture, tourism,

12

construction and small business, which are an integral

13

part of our small towns. The private sector can help

14

provide a tremendous amount of savings to assist

15

government. This needs to be fully explored. The Plan

16

mandates integrity of expressing the voice of a people's

17

plan that is upheld and under the guidance, authority

18

and accountability of its elected representatives. We

19

need to strike an affordable balance that preserves our

20

limited resources to maintain a viable economy and

21

considers overall impacts to our community.

22

We feel we may not have all of the sufficient

23

information needed, and access to public/private sector

24

information on what it will cost in hard dollars with

25

the value of, also, intangible benefits needs to be
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1

considered when implementing the Plan. Concern remains

2

for utilization of demographic data and projections. We

3

feel that each community should have the ability to

4

determine what is the best rate of growth for them that

5

will not compromise their lifestyle and opportunities

6

for upward mobility.

7

A plan needs to encourage, support the

8

uniqueness of our small towns. We want to see more

9

positive language that reflects these viewpoints from

10

our lifelong citizenry and our local professionals that

11

we have here. We feel it important and helpful for the

12

Council to hear directly from affected County

13

departments, including its Current Planning Division, as

14

to how they will implement this Plan and to provide

15

insights as to how it affects the management of their

16

staff and its resources. We are perplexed. We do not

17

see the Infrastructure section listed anywhere online

18

and, nor, a Narrative, Goals and Objectives. Nor do we

19

see a glossary section so we can fully understand the

20

definitions relating to all other sections. We need all

21

this kind of information so that we can make sound,

22

fully-informed decisions, and then look what -- what are

23

our priorities in this very challenging unprecedented

24

economic tailspin times that we are facing.

25

Thank you.
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15
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

Members, questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. And thank you very

4

much, Ms. Perreira, for being here this morning. I know

5

that you've spent many, many, many hours dealing with

6

this Plan.

7

MS. J. PERREIRA: Thank you.

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 'Cause I've sat there

9

with you as we ate our midnight dinners. But I -- what

10

you're expressing today, we're -- we've heard before.

11

You're not the first person to comment on our process or

12

to tell us that maybe we need to slow it down or maybe

13

more information is needed. But what I'm concerned

14

about is, do you have any solutions as to how we would

15

accomplish that? You know, we've been told we're on a

16

deadline, and we understand it's a deadline that we

17

Imposed, and that we have moved deadlines before -- I

18

know we did for the GPAC. I'm just wondering if you

19

have any ideas as to how we could have a better comfort

20

level with the community.

21

MS. J. PERREIRA: I'm sure that we can find a

22

solution to have a better comfort level. What I am

23

equally sure about is it is not comfortable not to

24

include community into the process. And -- and Bill 84

25

specifically stipulated that the public input was a
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1

basic component of the -- the ordinance. I know that we

2

would have to put on our creative thinking caps, given

3

the fact that you're heading into probably the most

4

arduous Budget deliberations in recent history. And I

5

-- I fully realize that we are heading toward a

6

political election year, and that is also a

7

consideration. But for a plan of this scope, this

8

magnitude, and what it represents, what it is going to

9

mean for our citizenry, cannot be something that we

10

should try to rush to finish. Even the -- the GPAC

11

Members had to ask for two extensions because they were

12

trying to do a credible job of getting to it. And they

13

did not even complete it because they spent too much

14

time in the front end learning how to do it.

15

So I do think it is important. This is a

16

people's plan. And I -- and I know the people trust

17

those that they have elected to shepherd it through to

18

completion. And I don't know if that means we have to

19

have more meetings. I certainly will ask my board of

20

directors and our small towns what they -- any

21

suggestions they might have. They have never shrunk

22

away from rolling up their sleeves and working very

23

hard. And so if that means we all have to work a little

24

harder, I guess we will.

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, thank you very
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1

much. You know, I -- I am a kind of person, when I hear

2

criticism, I take it very seriously, or suggestions, and

3

try to find answers. And so I'm, you know, looking for

4

solutions. If there is something that we can do to

5

raise the community's comfort with the process so that

6

they'll feel that we've done a good job at producing a

7

plan for them, then I certainly would like to hear that.

8

Thank you.

9
10

MS. J. PERREIRA: You're very welcome.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any further

11

questions? Okay. Ms. Perreira, I guess the -- the

12

Chair, you know, has been trying to get this Committee

13

to come to some kind of decision on how this process

14

should work, but I am concerned in -- in the perception

15

that this Committee is preventing the general public

16

from participating. And in the comment that was brought

17

in our last meeting was we were moving too fast. Okay.

18

I needed to understand what moving too fast meant.

19

Because as far as the -- this Chair's concerned, you've

20

had two review processes that have been open to -- I

21

hope -- I mean, you participated, I know, for -- for

22

sure, on almost every one of those meetings. But there

23

have been two review bodies in these documents coming

24

together, so to speak. And at this time, this Committee

25

has received the recommendations coming from the GPAC,
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1

Planning Committee, as well as the Commission's itself.

2

So help me to understand when you're saying that there

3

needs to be more community input. Because we have

4

posted these meetings in the general public so you have

5

fair notice about what is being reviewed by this body.

6

And every person who has come forward has had an

7

opportunity to give their input. So --

8

MS. J. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- help me to

10

understand. What more are you referring to when you say

11

that there needs to be more community input?

12

MS. J. PERREIRA: Okay. I will try.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

14

MS. J. PERREIRA: I -- I do recognize -- and

15

we do recognize, having been a part of the process, that

16

some community input has been put forth. And, of

17

course, we are very grateful to the GPAC Members for

18

their very hard work, as -- as we are to the Planning

19

Commission. However, it seems that, in every step of

20

the process, there was something left on the table to

21

finish or accomplish. And as for the Planning

22

Commission and -- and the process here, changes are

23

being made as you go along. And when you're making

24

changes, you're making revisions as you go along, it

25

does not afford the opportunity for the citizen to be
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1

following what was the changes that they thought was

2

already put forth by the GPAC, or in a process they --

3

they felt they had already participated in and they had

4

provided comments to. It is really important that they

5

-- they're not of the assumption that one thing is gonna

6

happen, and then, all of a sudden, they realize, oh, my

7

God, how did that get changed, we didn't realize that

8

that got changed. So I think it is important that --

9

that there is an opportunity for -- because it's not

10

like they have to review the whole thing -- I'm sure a

11

lot of people have -- have had access to the document

12

and looked at the whole thing -- but I do think it is

13

imperative that we are looking at the sections that are

14

up for discussion, further discussion, and changes and

15

revisions, that they are clued in. And I don't know if

16

that means a posting of something either in the paper or

17

in the community centers, and say these are the changes

18

to the Plan that we are reviewing. And I think that's

19

where community would like to be really cautious that --

20

that their voice is not taken like, oh, well, we -- you

21

had a chance to -- to be a part of this process and now

22

your chance is done. They want to be engaged. They

23

want to continue to participate 'til the end.

24
25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And this Chair
has announced from the -- the beginning of the Maui
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1

Island Plan review that my expectation is that the

2

Members of this Committee would work through the

3

document and do their first pass through the document,

4

making whatever recommendations, amendments, changes,

5

deletions that they would like, but that the entire

6

document is still available, and that's available for

7

review. And that when we complete our first pass on

8

this, then we will go back and revisit.

9

Now, those changes that are being made on the

10

floor by the Committee is being reflected within the

11

document. So the general public has an opportunity to

12

review that. And this Chair is asking this Committee to

13

be able to go back and take a look at what was done

14

earlier. Because 340 pages of this document is what we

15

at least need to get through. And we're -- you know,

16

we're -- we're set by timelines by law, no different

17

than our Budget is set by timelines by law. And so this

18

Chair's trying to facilitate that in a comfortable

19

manner, but at no time, I think, trying to leave

20

community out of the process.

21

But I do have expectations that two review

22

bodies have refined it, including the Department itself,

23

and given it to this Committee. I do expect that this

24

Committee has responsibility now to review this document

25

and make what they think is appropriate, and, even at
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808) 244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

21

1

that, leave it open so that the public can see what

2

they've done and then come back for final review.

3

MS. J. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: When we come to that

5

juncture, then we will make the -- the final decisions.

6

But as far as I'm concerned at this point, we are trying

7

to get through that. And -- and I just wanna express

8

that because I do not want to leave the impression that

9

this Committee is trying to prevent the public from

10

participating.
MS. J. PERREIRA: Uh-huh. May I ask why

11
12

there's a blank page on Infrastructure, and no glossary?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. We've -- we've

13
14

asked that from the Planning Department in official

15

communications. And we are concerned with that as well,

16

so --

17

MS. J. PERREIRA: Thank you so much.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, Members, any

19
20

other questions? Okay. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good

21

morning. Thank you very much for your testimony,

22

Ms. Perreira, because I think it's important we hear

23

from everybody. And I know it may seem arduous to some

24

that, you know, we have to go back and do this, but

25

that's the process we have. That is the process. So as
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1

elected officials, we have to be mindful, and this is

2

the people's plan. It's not our plan, the --

3

MS. J. PERREIRA: That's right.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- Council's plan, it's

5

the people's plan. You mention in your testimony

6

that -- it states here, "Ensure that a sufficient amount

7

of time for public review and comment on the most recent

8

revisions is posted in a variety of venues and available

9

for review and comment." Additional suggestions to --

10

when you say -- I'm -- I'm guessing it's -- it's just

11

that -- the -- the response you gave to -- to the

12

Chairman in terms of if changes have been made, after

13

the GPAC had made some -- made some decisions, then

14

changes made along the way.

15

MS. J. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: How would you ask us to

17
18

provide additional review?
MS. J. PERREIRA: I guess one of the

19

perplexing concerns of community remains how are you

20

going to implement this Plan. And I think that you

21

really need to -- the Council themselves need to call

22

the departments in and hear from the departments

23

themselves. How are they going to achieve doing this

24

given the limited resources? Are we going to have to

25

grow our bureaucracy by adding on County staffing at the
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1

expense of community and community programs? That's a

2

very important thing to deliberate. Do we need to have

3

a deluxe eutopic plan, or can we have a plan that is --

4

is workable, and that we can afford, that will protect

5

our community and our environment, and -- and still, at

6

the same time, have an emphasis on the importance of

7

keeping our families employed, our -- our workforce

8

employed and keeping our families here, and not having a

9

situation where they can no longer afford to live here

10

because they have to pay for everything that's listed in

11

the Plan? How are you gonna pay for that? I think the

12

devil is in the details. And community wants to

13

understand. Not to be critical, mind you, but they need

14

to understand the details and what goes into who pays

15

and how do you pay for it, the impacts.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. So,

17

again, you know, just following my -- my question that I

18

had, so -- in terms of additional public review, so

19

maybe do additional postings, is that what you're

20

saying, to every change that's been made to the GPAC?

21

MS. J. PERREIRA: I think it is imperative

22

that we have, number one, the information on

23

Infrastructure in a glossary.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

25

MS. J. PERREIRA: Okay, for starters. We also
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need to hear from the departments --

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.

3

MS. J. PERREIRA: -- as to their reaction to

4

this Plan, which we haven't heard thus far.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.

6

MS. J. PERREIRA: We only heard the first

7

go-round when staff went to each department to get their

8

input. But I think now that they've had a chance to

9

digest the Plan and see what -- what is gonna be set

10

before them, we oughta hear from them so that we know

11

what their ultimate needs and what -- what are some of

12

the difficulties they're going to encounter. Because if

13

you have a plan, you wanna build an addition or

14

something, and you have to go to this department, if

15

they're gonna have to go through X amount of extra

16

steps, what does that mean to the average citizen? The

17

average citizen wants to understand what this means to

18

them. If they have to comply with a set of rules and,

19

at the same time, comply with the policies that go with

20

the implementing actions.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I just wanted to

22

let you know, I think at one of our last meetings, we

23

did -- I know I made a request to have the Office of

24

Economic Development to provide comments as well. So,

25

you know, we're -- you know, we're -- we're -- we're
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1

honoring that concern that's being expressed about

2

getting the Department --

3

MS. J. PERREIRA: We really appreciate that.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.

5

MS. J. PERREIRA: We would add Wastewater, and

6

we would also add Current Planning --

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

8

MS. J. PERREIRA: -- and Public Works.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you.

10

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any

11
12

further questions? Seeing none, thank you, then.
MS. J. PERREIRA: Thank you very much for your

13
14
15
16
17

kindness.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The next testifier is
Howard Hanzawa, followed by Warren Shibuya.
MR. HANZAWA: Good morning, Chair, Members of

18

the Planning Committee. My name is Howard Hanzawa. I'm

19

Vice President of Kaanapali Land Management Corp. I,

20

again, would like to express, similar to Jocelyn -- she

21

did talk about the cost of the Plan. And I took a look

22

at Appendix C, which is at the very last section of the

23

Maui Island Plan. And I'd like to talk a little bit

24

about that.

25

The Maui County Council Budget Committee will
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1

commence Budget hearings shortly. Potentially, there

2

might be a $60-million shortfall which will need to be

3

made up by a combination of program cuts and the

4

increase of taxes and fees. However, the Council should

5

be aware of the implications of many of the provisions

6

within the Draft Maui Island Plan which may require

7

large increases in staffing and new offices, the

8

development of new programs and the -- the duplication

9

of tasks which already is being done by other agencies

10

within the County, the State and Federal Governments.

11

I suggest that the Council carefully review

12

Appendix C, which is at the end of the Maui Island Plan.

13

The appendix lists each of the action items with an

14

estimate of their costs. The four -- first four sheets

15

list CIP projects which will need to be funded within

16

the next five years. By the way, the first item which

17

is the regional police facility, which will be in Kihei,

18

should have the cost listed as $40 million and not $4

19

million. However, draw your attention to Pages 5

20

through 26 of the Appendix. These list the action items

21

to implement the programs within the Plan. Note that

22

the estimated cost for each item, as well as the timing

23

of it

24

timing. Many of the items are slated to be implemented

25

within the next five years. The costs range from zero

it notes the estimated cost as well as the
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1

to $50 million. However, many of the items show the

2

costs yet to be -- to be determined.

3
4
5

I recommend that you review these for the
following:
Duplication of efforts. There is $100,000

6

listed to revise the regulations for approval of erosion

7

and sedimentation control plans and the development of a

8

B&P manual under the Department of Planning. Public

9

Works developed a Maui B&P manual 10 years ago, after

10

public hearings, and that Department regulates the

11

grading ordinance. Do we really need this?

12

New programs. There is $500,000 of costs

13

listed to establish a County Council of Cultural and

14

Heritage Resources. Will such an office take over the

15

duties of the State Historic Preservation Division?

16

And, more importantly, is it realistic to expect County

17

funding for such a new office?

18

There are assigned tasks to other departments.

19

For example, the Department of Water Supply is to

20

compare the sustainable yield of streams to the -- to

21

the potential needs of water. It will have a cost of

22

$250,000. The Department of Public Works is the lead

23

agency to develop a master plan for the presentation of

24

Maalaea Beach Restoration Recreational area and the

25

Kealia Pond. It has a cost listed of $200,000. Do
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1

these departments know that they would be assigned these

2

tasks, and have they provided input on the items that

3

concern them?

4
5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mr. Hanzawa, can
you conclude?

6

MR. HANZAWA: Excuse me?

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Can you conclude?

8

MR. HANZAWA: Yes.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

10

MR. HANZAWA: These are just a few examples of

11

the 200-plus items within Appendix C that will have

12

major cost implications. Many of the goals are noble,

13

but the Council may find, after careful consideration,

14

that they're also fiscally unachievable. So I recommend

15

that the Council carefully review Appendix C.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

17

Members, questions for the testifier? Okay. Member

18

Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you for

19
20

coming, Howard. Do you have that in a written form,

21

what you were just reciting, or can you get it to us

22

in --

23

MR. HANZAWA: I can get it to you, but --

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- written form?

25

MR. HANZAWA: Yeah. But my recommendation is
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1

we better start looking at the cost of this, really.

2

You know -- you're -- you're gonna go into Budget

3

deliberations soon. And if we go through the whole

4

process of looking through the Maui Island Plan, and

5

then you get down to the end and find that it's

6

unachievable, where are we?

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And -- and,

8

particularly, because of your previous role prior to you

9

coming, you know, with Kaanapali Land Management. I'm

10

particularly interested because you look at it from a

11

different perspective than many of us would because you

12

have that working experience. So I really value what

13

you have to offer because you've had to deal inside

14

government with the actual implementation of many of the

15

things from our previous General Plan. So that's why

16

it's really critical, I think, that we have people such

17

as yourself who will be able to kinda steer us in those

18

areas where we might not otherwise look. So I really

19

thank you for looking at that for us.

20

MR. HANZAWA: Thank you. Yeah. I believe,

21

you know, the -- Chairman, you had mentioned the two

22

previous bodies, which are citizens, advisory groups,

23

really, the GPAC and the Planning Commission, and

24

they -- they have come up with a number of really, like

25

I said, noble ideas, but they really hadn't really
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1

looked at the cost of implementation. So I think --

2

well, this body will be responsible for the costs. So I

3

-- I think we need to start looking at that.

4
5
6
7
8
9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much,
Howard.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members,
any other questions? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And,
Howard, thank you for being here. And thank you for,

10

again, bringing that to our attention. I have said that

11

at other meetings, that -- the enormous costs that we

12

are beginning to see. And I was told by GPAC Members

13

that, when they started, that cost was told to them not

14

to be a factor. Which is fine. I mean, they were doing

15

a plan and they were gonna bring it to us, and then we

16

would have to look for the monies or the opportunity to

17

-- to fund it.

18

In your review of Appendix C -- and, again,

19

your best educated estimate, you know, I -- and that's

20

what I would ask you -- what would you think, looking

21

this over to this point, what kinda cost you -- you

22

think, as a businessman -- and you've been around a long

23

time, like myself -- what kind of costs would you think

24

would be equated to this -- this whole Plan? What would

25

you estimate? And, again, no one can be exactly sure
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1

because when you're talking -- talking about departments

2

and all that. But you're -- from a business

3

perspective, what would you think this would cost the

4

County of Maui?

5

MR. HANZAWA: Well --

6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Best estimate. Best

7
8
9

estimate.
MR. HANZAWA: Yeah. We're -- we're looking at
over $200 million over the next five years. And where

10

is the money coming from, if we're already looking at

11

trying to cut in the -- the Budget?

12

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you,

13

Howard. And I think that's what the public should

14

understand, that even though these are lofty goals,

15

Mr. Chair, and -- and something we really need to keep

16

focused on, where are we gonna find money to do it,

17

that's gonna be important, when we're already talking

18

about cutting back what we doing right now. So, anyhow,

19

let's not get too deep into that one, but thank you,

20

Howard. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.

22

MR. HANZAWA: Thank you.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: At -- at this time, the

24

Chair would like to acknowledge the presence of

25

Vice-Chair Johnson.
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1

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aloha.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mr. Warren Shibuya,

3

followed by Lloyd Folsom.

4

MR. SHIBUYA: Good morning, Planning Committee

5

Chairman Kaho'ohalahala and Council Members. I'm Warren

6

Shibuya.

7

First, thank you all for allowing me to serve

8

Maui's communities as a member of the General Plan

9

Advisory group, the Maui Planning Commission, and the

10

Maui Renewable Energy Alliance. I share my thoughts

11

with you as a member of the GPAC and Renewable Energy

12

Alliance on a topic very important for sustaining Maui's

13

economic development, improving job qualities, and

14

enhancing qualities of life for residents, businesses

15

and visitors. As you know, I am retired and continually

16

looking for opportunities which would contribute toward

17

making life better for everyone.

18

Maui's economic development and workforce

19

productivity are very dependent on our archaic design,

20

relying on individual vehicles and drivers using fossil

21

fuels. Today's high-productivity global communities are

22

designed around hubs or stations of mass transit

23

systems. Principles of science, engineering and

24

economics are integrated in these safe, reliable and

25

efficient systems. Engineering technologies, promoting
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1

business economies of scale, reduce transportation

2

mileage costs per passenger and light cargo tonnage.

3

Today's developing transporting systems are expected to

4

use one-fifth the power we on Maui use in operating our

5

personal internal-combustion-powered vehicle to

6

transport our workforces, visitors and commerce on

7

dangerous and congested roadways, mimicking the same

8

transporting designs on Oahu.

9

Looking ahead, please seriously consider

10

implementing plans and commit funding to implement the

11

following as drafted in the Maui Island Plan: Endorsing

12

immediately Maui's policy identifying transit corridors

13

to various destination points throughout Maui. Commit

14

groups -- commit a group to draft the RFP for studying

15

and concluding recommendations which identify best

16

public transit corridors and easements by 2016, and

17

provide cost-benefiting two alternative mass transit

18

systems for public to discuss and choose a system to

19

begin implementing by 2019. Accelerate County's

20

demonstrated leadership implementing renewable

21

power-generating systems. Convert various available

22

energy resources into electric power dis -- dispersing

23

sites throughout Maui. Demonstrate Council's commitment

24

to keeping energy monies on Maui for Maui. Integrate

25

power and energy-conserving systems, reducing power, use
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and energy resources and expenses.
Please exercise your strongest efforts

3

envisioning and implementing features of the Maui Island

4

Plan. As you know, this is Maui's Strategic Plan 2030

5

which reflects guidelines ensuring Maui's vulnerable

6

economic engines reflect higher productivity letters --

7

levels, encouraging residents, raising the qualities of

8

their lives, improving visitor experiences, dedicating

9

needing -- needed resources for enhancing Maui's unique

10

ecosystems and experiences and strengthening Maui's

11

fragile renewable energy, renewable power, while

12

significantly reducing our fossil power dependencies.

13

Mahalo.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

15

Members, any questions? Seeing none, thank you,

16

Mr. Shibuya.

17

MR. SHIBUYA: This is the map of the

18

interregional transit system that I'm asking for

19

corridors to be identified. These were actually

20

approved by the GPAC and the Maui Planning Commission.

21

I being the member on 'em, I know that firsthand.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

23

MR. SHIBUYA: Would you like me to leave this

24

and let you take a look at it? And then, later on, I

25

can come pick it up.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. If you would

2

just set it there on the side, and we will get that for

3

you. Okay. Thank you. The next testifier is Lloyd

4

Folsom, followed by Juno Comilang or -- I'm sorry about

5

the pronunciation, but Comilang or Comilang.

6

MR. FOLSOM: Good morning, Council Members.

7

My name's Lloyd Folsom. And I'm just speaking on behalf

8

of -- of myself as a Maui resident, as one who lives and

9

works here in Maui, and, also, for the Ohana Kai

10
11

project, the proposed project in Maalaea.
Every day as I'm working in construction, I

12

run into people that I used to work with or I knew, or

13

subcontractors, or whatever, and they're out of work.

14

They're constantly asking me every day about when is

15

that project going through. And as a construction

16

worker, I'm -- I'm concerned. There's not a lot on the

17

table right now. I've never done this. I've never

18

spoke in front. But as -- as a homeowner, myself, and

19

as one who provides for my family, I'm -- I'm concerned.

20

This is a project that's a good project. It

21

has a record of providing homes for families. I live in

22

the last subdivision that they completed in Waikapu

23

Gardens. And I -- I was there helping people unload the

24

moving trucks on opening day. I saw families crying.

25

saw people so excited to be able to move into affordable
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1

homes. And I believe that the Spencers have a record

2

for doing that, of providing affordable homes, that was

3

50 percent. I saw teachers and policemen and firemen,

4

and just all kinds of people in there just so excited.

5

And I really believe that this next phase, this next

6

project, in -- in Maalaea would be a great thing to be

7

able to do.

8

It -- it'd provide jobs, not just for the --

9

the people that work directly for Spencers, but all of

10

the subcontractors, roofers, painters, contractors, the

11

landscapers. Home Depot and Lowe's and Ace would be

12

affected. It would be able to stimulate the economy.

13

And I believe that's what we need. There's -- a lot of

14

people on Valentine's Day did not go out to dinner,

15

not -- did not do those things because they didn't have

16

the money to do it. And so as I thought about this, you

17

know, it -- it's -- it's about families, it's about

18

providing. And these are people who want to work. They

19

don't wanna be on unemployment anymore. They wanna work

20

for a living, they wanna provide.

21

And I think it would just be a -- a great

22

opportunity for us to do that. So I -- I ask you to

23

please consider allowing that to go through.

24
25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
Question, Member Johnson?
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808) 244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010
1

37

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you for

2

testifying. Do you work directly in either the

3

construction or the implementation of these projects?

4
5
6

MR. FOLSOM: I do. I -- I work in the
construction field.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Because, you know,

7

what -- what I'm hearing -- and this is something that

8

you may be able to give me some perspective on it. One

9

of the things that we're facing now -- because, of

10

course, when this whole process began, the meltdown in

11

foreclosures and the economic downturn had really not

12

been in full force and effect. From everything I can

13

read, we still are not in the worst -- you know, there's

14

more bad news to come with --

15

MR. FOLSOM: Uh-huh.

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- regard to

17

foreclosures. So what I would like to know is, because

18

of this changing market and all of this other inventory

19

coming online, have you done a current viability or, I

20

guess, a -- a snapshot in terms of the financing, in

21

terms of the inventory that's coming online, and then

22

weighed that against the development of your project

23

which would provide new housing?

24
25

MR. FOLSOM: I have in that -- just because it
was -- for the last -- for the last project, it was 50
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1

percent affordable. Just because it was 50 percent

2

didn't mean that he stopped making it affordable, after

3

50 percent. He went through a list -- there was a huge

4

list of people that had done the lottery and didn't make

5

it. And he went through and contacted 'em and said I --

6

I can make you a great deal. So the rest of his prices

7

on -- on the market value were below market value still.

8

We -- we moved in with quite a bit of equity in our

9

house the day we moved in. And even after it was

10

reassessed later on, our property value, it still was

11

worth more than what we paid for it. And so Jesse

12

continues to still try and build affordable homes, not

13

just because he's required, but his desire is to get

14

families into homes. So when I've done my research, in

15

looking, these -- these houses brand new are still lower

16

at times than foreclosed homes that are on the market as

17

well. Does that answer --

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

19

MR. FOLSOM: -- your question?

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, it does. I -- I

21

guess what I'm looking at, too, is, because the market,

22

you know, has not bottomed out yet, if you will, I guess

23

what I'm -- I -- I would like to have continual updates.

24

And I just want to make sure that in terms of what's

25

happening now and what is continuing to happening [sic]
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with this further pressure on the downward side of --

2

MR. FOLSOM: Uh-huh.

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- the actual, I guess,

4

foreclosures and the pricing of those homes, as that

5

continues, I just wanna make sure that we're updated,

6

because the information that we have will not be current

7

with what the market conditions actually are.

8

MR. FOLSOM: I can guarantee that my neighbors

9

that I -- live all around me are -- are those who could

10

never have afforded a house on Maui before. I mean, we

11

have people that were living in one room, their whole

12

family at their auntie's house. And so this -- this

13

project afforded them to be able to live in a house for

14

the price, or cheaper, than they were renting

15

originally.

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

17

MR. FOLSOM: And so it gives not only

18

employment, but that affordability. These aren't those

19

$800 -- $900,000 homes. These are homes that, you know,

20

teachers can afford, and so forth. So --

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

22

MR. FOLSOM: And that -- that market will

23

always be there.

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

25

MR. FOLSOM: The other one -- the high ends,
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

90

1

they're gonna take the hit way before these affordable

2

homes will.

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And that -- that's

4

my other concern. And you hit the nail on the head when

5

you said teachers. With Furlough Fridays and the

6

pressures that are being put on the people that would

7

have ordinarily qualified --

8

MR. FOLSOM: Uh-huh.

9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- for housing from a

10

financial perspective, maybe now some of those

11

pressures, as far as employment, they're continuing to

12

be impacted, too. So I look forward to future

13

information. 'Cause it's not just the cost of the

14

housing. I -- we think we always forget. Its also can

15

the people that were on the original list even -- if

16

they've lost their jobs, can they continue to qualify.

17

MR. FOLSOM: They definitely can with this

18

project, if it goes through. It's a seven to ten-year

19

project. That's -- that's no short-term, you know --

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And -- and --

21

MR. FOLSOM: -- fix.

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Let's hope --

23

MR. FOLSOM: That's working.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

25

MR. FOLSOM: That's working.
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1

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Let's hope --

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson --

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- things continue to

4

improve. And that's -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I think you have

5
6

gotten --

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- all of your

9

questions answered. So, Mr. Folsom -- any other

10

questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing none, thank

11

you.
MR. FOLSOM: Thank you very much for

12
13
14

listening.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Ms. -- this would be

15

Juno, I'm not sure if I'm pronouncing the last name

16

correctly, Comilang. That's what it looks like.

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hi, Juno.

18

MR. COMILANG: Thank you, Council Chair. You

19

pronounced it correctly. Good morning, Council Members.

20

My name is Juno Comilang. And I'm here on behalf of

21

myself. I'm here to say I'm in favor of the Ohana Kai

22

project in Maalaea. We are in desperate need of jobs.

23

And a project in this magnitude will create several

24

hundred jobs. The project is self-sufficient, green

25

friendly. And, you know, the Spencers has been
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1

supporting local businesses for years. And I wanna see

2

this project move without any delay.

3

Thank you.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

5

Members, questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you very

6

much.

7

MR. COMILANG: Thank you.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: May Fujiwara, followed

9
10

by Kathleen Perreira.
MS. FUJIWARA: Good morning, Chair, and

11

Members of the Planning Committee. My name is May

12

Fujiwara, President of the Lahaina-Honolua Senior

13

Citizens Club and I'm -- and am -- and am speaking on

14

behalf of our many club members. Thank you for your

15

hard work and long hours in working for the benefit of

16

all -- all of us.

17

We seniors like choices as to where to shop.

18

And we ask you not to restrict the building of big box

19

stores as suggested in the Maui Island Plan. We think

20

it should be kept on a case-by-case review as it is now.

21

With the economy the way it is today, we need to be able

22

to stretch cur dollars as much as we can. And stores

23

like Walmart, Costco and Kmart help us do this. These

24

big box stores have all the products we need in one

25

location, saving us time and energy in shopping. And
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1

speaking of stretching our dollars, most of our club

2

members, as I've testified before, are retired

3

plantation workers with a typical retirement pay --

4

well, these workers are 80-plus in age, having worked

5

about 40-plus years. And they receive approximately

6

$300 a month in retirement pay, plus approximately $900

7

in Social Security retirement. And out of this amount,

8

they have to pay about $190 for their medical insurance,

9

pay for their utilities, property taxes, home insurance,

10

gas for their cars, buy groceries, and other incidentals

11

they might need. And, of course -- you know, so you can

12

see why these -- why we would prefer shopping at big box

13

stores, because our money goes a little farther.

14

We're not against the mom-and-pop stores. We

15

would continue to support them and shop there when we

16

need to buy small items, like things that we need every

17

day, milk, bread, et cetera. However, again, these

18

small stores do not carry a variety of items or large

19

appliances and beddings that we need.

20

My friends from Lanai and Molokai benefit from

21

these stores as well. They come to Maui to shop at

22

Walmart, Costco, Kmart, and stock up on items like paper

23

towels and toilet paper and canned goods, which, of

24

course, are a lot more reasonable than what they would

25

have to pay on Molokai and Lanai.
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Again, we seniors would like the choice of

2

shopping where we choose to shop. And we do not feel we

3

need legislation to restrict big box stores. These

4

stores are -- also provide much needed employment for

5

citizens of Maui County.

6

And thank you for allowing me to testify.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, questions?

10

Member Victorino --

11

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- followed by Member

13
14
15

Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
And, May, thank you very much for being here. I know --

16

MS. FUJIWARA: Thank you.

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- it's a long trip

18

from Lahaina. And we thank you very much. Couple of

19

quick questions. On an average, most of the seniors, as

20

you say, $190 a month for medical.

21

MS. FUJIWARA: Uh-huh.

22

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Then you have rent,

23

food. What would you think -- and I know the answer

24

'cause I doing my father's one right now. I took over

25

after my mom died in 2008. And it's $897 Social
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1

Security, and he gets $197 retirement. So I know

2

exactly what you're saying. Because I do that every

3

month for my father. And that's not a hell of a lot of

4

money to live off of.

5

MS. FUJIWARA: No, it's not.

6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And when you pay

7

your rent, mortgage, whatever other things, there's

8

nothing much left after that, yeah. So -- but if you

9

were to look at seniors, for example, here in Lahaina,

10

and in Lanai and Molokai, their total expenditure in

11

those areas, less medicines, because when you say

12

medical, you're talking just medical premiums.

13

MS. FUJIWARA: Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You ain't talking

15

medicine yet.

16

MS. FUJIWARA: That's right.

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What would you say

18

an average monthly expenditure would be just -- just so

19

the -- because you're a lot closer --

20

MS. FUJIWARA: Oh.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- to this than I

22

am.

23

MS. FUJIWARA: Gosh.

24

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Your best estimate.

25

MS. FUJIWARA: 190, and they probably pay
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1

about $100 for maybe utilities, for electric, and maybe

2

a hundred and some-odd dollars for garbage and water.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, in other

3
4

words --

5

MS. FUJIWARA: Telephone.

6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- you're barely

7
8
9

making it, so -MS. FUJIWARA: Just barely, barely making.
And, you know, I've had seniors tell me, our club

10

members tell me, that the prescription costs are so high

11

that one woman told me, you know, it's either

12

prescription or groceries. And she had decided to buy

13

groceries instead of filling her -- refilling her

14

prescriptions.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that I've heard
many times over.

17

MS. FUJIWARA: Yeah.

18

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And --

19

MS. FUJIWARA: Yeah.

20

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- it's really a sad

21

chronology of --

22

MS. FUJIWARA: It's very sad.

23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- our society at

24
25

this point, but -MS. FUJIWARA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- I'll let

2

Ms. Baisa ask you further questions. But thank you for

3

that information.

4

MS. FUJIWARA: Sure.

5

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Appreciate that.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa?

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much,

8

Chair. And thank you, May, for being here this morning.

9

She was one of the first persons here this morning,

10
11

typical seniors. Thank you.
You know, its interesting, when we discuss

12

big box stores and when we discuss costs and, you know,

13

the costs of living, we're often told, you know, how

14

seniors are, you know, a group that is very

15

disadvantaged. So the fact that you represent that

16

group -- and I know an extremely large group. How big

17

is the membership of the Lahaina-Honolua Seniors?

18

MS. FUJIWARA: How large is it?

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

20

MS. FUJIWARA: 200-plus.

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So we're talking about a

22

sizable group of seniors which you have contact with?

23

MS. FUJIWARA: Yes.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so, you know, it

25

would make sense to me that you're a voice that we want
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

48

1

to listen to in terms of the economic impacts of big box

2

stores, even though we look at the other side of, you

3

know, how do we support local business. But I think

4

that what I heard from you was you support the idea of

5

the big box stores because you all live on very fixed

6

incomes. And some much smaller than others.

7

MS. FUJIWARA: Yes, definitely.

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And, you know, big box

9
10

stores are kinda new to Maui. New -- relatively new for
people like us who are older.

11

MS. FUJIWARA: Uh-huh.

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know, for young

13

people, they can't imagine Maui without Costco and

14

Walmart and all those things. But for those of us who

15

grew up here and lived in another time, do you see that

16

life has become a little easier in terms of budget

17

because we have them?

18

MS. FUJIWARA: I think so. And, also, not

19

only that, you know, we're very fortunate to have bus

20

service through MEG where we can save gas and we don't

21

have to drive. And they do drive us to these places for

22

shopping. They take us to Costco or Walmart. And I

23

think three times a week from West Maui, for any senior

24

or whoever wants to go shopping to -- to come to this

25

end to do their shopping. And that helps a lot. And
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1

the Maui Bus, also. And I think the Maui Bus, also, and

2

MEO buses stop at these big box stores.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for sharing

3
4

that. I wasn't aware of that.
And the last question I have for you is, you

5
6

know, we're looking at a planning document. And so this

7

is for many, many years to come, at least 20 -- 20 --

8

30. Do you have a vision that, some day, it would be

9

advantageous to have big box stores on the west side so

10

you don't have to take that bus trip?
MS. FUJIWARA: Surely. Definitely, I think

11
12
13

SO.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So for us to put in our

14

General Plan that we would not encourage this type of

15

thing you don't think is a good idea?

16

MS. FUJIWARA: No.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much for

18

coming this morning. You give us a very good

19

perspective.

20

MS. FUJIWARA: Thank you.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other

22

questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you. Kathleen

23

Perreira, followed by Paul Laub.

24
25

Members, just so that you know, we have signed
30 testifiers, and we are on number eight.
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1

MS. K. PERREIRA: I'll be quick.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, I'm not saying you

3

need to be quick. I'm just telling --

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You have your three

6
7

(Inaudible.)

minutes and -MS. K. PERREIRA: Okay. Well, good morning,

8

everyone. I'm here to support the Spencer project for a

9

number of reasons. The first of all is -- closer?

10

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I cannot hear you.

11

MS. K. PERREIRA: Okay.

12

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.

13

MS. K. PERREIRA: The first of all is, I'm a

14

landowner in Makawao and Pukalani. And one of our

15

renters who was in our house in Pukalani, for probably

16

four or five years, her husband is a police officer, she

17

works down in town, they have young children. The

18

Spencer project that they're -- that just finished was

19

their only chance to get a home and only chance because

20

it was affordable. I have children, two of which live

21

here, only one owns a home. The third one is in the

22

mainland, and I don't think she could afford a home

23

unless it was for projects like Spencer Homes. I'm

24

hoping they do go forward with this project so that my

25

daughter can move back. So that's a little greedy, but
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that's the way I feel about it.
I also wanted to make a point. One of the

3

articles that had mentioned Mr. Spencer's project said

4

that there were 150 people that were affected by -- for

5

work by his project. I wish to argue with the nice

6

gentleman and say there's a lot more than that. I think

7

the 150 were his Spencer family group, the immediate

8

people that work for them, not counting all the subs,

9

all the subcontractors that work for him. I think it

10

goes into many, many more, probably three or four or

11

five hundred dollars -- 500 people that work for these

12

projects. So I -- I'm here to, hopefully, push forward

13

on the Spencer project.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Are you

15

completed? Questions, Members? Okay. Seeing none,

16

then, thank you.

17

MS. K. PERREIRA: Thank you.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Paul Laub, followed by

19
20

James Sparke.
MR. LAUB: Aloha mai kakou, (speaks in

21

Hawaiian). Mr. Chairman, I -- I'd like to request, if

22

possible, that -- since we have 10 parts that we have at

23

least 10 opportunities to -- so we have one opportunity

24

for each part. In Lahaina, when the Committee came to

25

Lahaina, we had 10 parts and three minutes. Three
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1

minutes is 180 seconds. That leaves 18 seconds per

2

part. It's not enough.

3

On the Economic Development, the Maui Island

4

Plan says the economy is to be driven by innovation and

5

creative capacity. Policy 4.1.3.d says to "encourage,

6

nurture, and reward entrepreneurship and innovation."

7

May I suggest that we work very hard in freeing the

8

restrictions on entrepreneurship from the legislative

9

restrictions that we have now, such as the home

10

occupation bill? The -- it should be just eliminated.

11

Tourism, on Page 4 through 9, has some serious

12

errors, I think. It says, "Loss of community due to the

13

transient nature of neighborhoods." There's no known

14

loss of neighborhoods.

15

B, "Disruptions such as overflow parking or

16

partying by visitors." Who do the malihini know that

17

they could have a large party? I think that if there is

18

any parking jam, it's caused by local people having

19

their friends over.

20

C, purported avoidance of tax payments by some

21

operators. I suggest that all industries have tax

22

cheats, but it is interesting and very telling that this

23

is the only group to be singled out in the entire Maui

24

Island Plan as being purported cheaters.

25

"Loss of residential housing stock."
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1

Generally, none of the TVR homes are considered moderate

2

or low-income category and, therefore, do not take away

3

from this housing stock. There's no negative impact on

4

the taxes for non-TVR homes. Tax rates run with the

5

individual properties. But correctly, on Pages 4

6

through 10, the Plan points out that these

7

accommodations generate more economic activity per

8

dollar spent, provide opportunities for small business

9

creation and entrepreneurship, and provide accommodation

10

opportunities for Maui residents and visiting family

11

members. Accordingly, these accommodations should be

12

greatly encouraged as they are extremely helpful to our

13

local needs.

14

The County needs to step into assisting in the

15

education of our students as the State is clearly

16

failing to do the job adequately. We have the worst SAT

17

scores in the nation.

18
19
20

Page 4 through 29, "Hawaii has consistently
received poor ratings as a place to do business."
Page 4 through 27, Policies Items 4.5.1a and c

21

outlines prohibitive costs and recommends the policies

22

of providing incentives and support for small businesses

23

and entrepreneurs, and to reduce barriers to small

24

development. We desperately need this section

25

implemented as soon as possible.
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

54

1

Mahalo.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

3

Members, questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.

4

James Sparke, followed by Leslie Ann Matsuwaki.

5

MR. SPARKE: Good morning, Chair

6

Kaho'ohalahala and Council Members. The Hawaii

7

Community Association's met many times in the last four

8

years, either through our general membership meetings or

9

through steering committee meetings.

(Cough.) Excuse

10

me. Waihee is still and will continue to work and

11

develop a plan for responsible growth in Waihee. The

12

consensus of our community is to leave the agricultural

13

lands in Waihee as they exist.

14

As Daniel Burnham has stated, "It is

15

impossible to see the future, but we can" -- "we can

16

envision how we want it to be and we can commit to doing

17

all that is possible to see our dreams come true." This

18

is what the residents of Waihee want in our future, a

19

plan that is our vision, not a discretionary plan.

20

We strongly discourage the conversion of prime

21

productive agricultural -- prime productive and

22

important agricultural lands to Rural and Urban zoning.

23

The -- the residents of Waihee overwhelmingly voted

24

against the new development in Waihee, such as new

25

subdivisions, with the exception of building a new
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1

single dwelling, or expansion of, or repairing of

2

existing homes. Also, the residents are vehemently

3

opposed to any commercial development in Waihee.

4

I'd like to also add that you really need to

5

look at all these costs that are -- that are in -- in

6

the implementation process. It looks like you're

7

growing government, which is fine, if the monies are

8

there to do so, but the costs are just prohibitive. And

9

we've got people leaving the island for that very

10

reason. So, really, please take a good look at that.

11

Thank you.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you very

13
14
15

much. Members, questions? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you.
And thank you, Mr. Sparks [sic], for being here.

16

MR. SPARKE: Yes, sir.

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Had many discussions

18

on this item. And, first of all, your association, the

19

Waihee Community Association, what is your membership?

20

MR. SPARKE: The total?

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Total.

22

MR. SPARKE: Total number, I believe, is 42.

23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And are you

24

not, also, now incorporating or at least working

25

together with all the various neighbor -- neighbors like
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Waiehu 1, Waiehu Kou 2, 3 and 4, as well as the --

2

MR. SPARKE: That's --

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

4
5
6
7

Waiehu and all

the others -- areas within that region?
MR. SPARKS: We -- we've worked with them.
And that's Hoouluai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you for

8

that clarification. And if you were to give membership

9

on that total, how many members would you have, totally,

10

in those -- all those communities --

11

MR. SPARKE: I'd like --

12

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- approximately?

13

MR. SPARKS: -- to refer that to Bryan, the --

14

the total numbers.

15

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.

16

MR. SPARKS: Probably three, four hundred.

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three, four hundred

18

okay. Thank you. Thank you for that clarification.

19

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any

21

other questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you. Leslie

22

Ann Matsuwaki, followed by Elton Sambrano.

23

MS. MATSUWAKI: Chair and Members of the

24

Planning Committee, good morning. Thank you very much

25

for taking time to hear me out today. My name is Leslie
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1

Ann Matsuwaki, I live in Wailuku. And I've been working

2

at Marriott's Maui Ocean Club for five years. I enjoy

3

my job, the people I work with, and the work experience

4

has been extraordinary.

5

Timeshare resorts provide good jobs for Maui's

6

people. It's my understanding that over 1,800 people

7

like myself are imply -- are employed in the timeshare

8

industry on Maui. And I'm extremely thankful that our

9

resort has been spared from the layoffs occurring at

10

many of our hotels here on Maui. I firmly believe that

11

I'm fortunate to be working at a timeshare property

12

where the number of guests remains steady every year

13

despite the turndowns in economy. I've heard many of my

14

coworkers talking about other jobs that they have lost,

15

or hours that have been cut and how thankful they are

16

that they have their full-time hours at our resort.

17

As an employee at a timeshare property, I see

18

our guests treating our resort like their home. Not

19

only do they support my job, they also support many

20

local vendors that provide services to the resorts on

21

Maui and shop at local retailers. Timeshare resorts are

22

valuable contributors to our local economy and are

23

proven to be a desired vacation option for many of our

24

visitors. They provide over 17.7 million of tax

25

revenues that directly benefit Maui. Even Hawaii
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1

residents, over 2,800 of them, own timeshare units on

2

Maui. Not only timeshare -- not only are timeshare

3

resorts contributors to our local economy, they're also

4

large supporters of the community. It's my

5

understanding that in times of economic hardship, it is

6

that much more difficult for community organizations,

7

which include schools and nonprofit organizations, to

8

provide services to those in need, even though the

9

demand for those services are that much greater in these

10
11

times.
A large part of our culture at our property

12

includes the spirit to serve our communities. And just

13

last year, our property raised and donated over 120,000

14

to -- $120,000 to various charities and organizations,

15

which included over 32,000 to the Kapiolani Children's

16

Miracle Network, over 26,000 to Maui United Way, 12,000

17

to the Charity Walk and over 3,000 to Lahainaluna High

18

School, $2,000 and over 1,600 pounds of food to the Maui

19

Food Bank. This would not have been possible without

20

the full-time hours we have the privilege of working and

21

the generosity of our owners. Our owners become part of

22

our family and oftentimes are excited to participate in

23

our charity efforts in our community. We've had guests

24

participate in our annual golf tournament, we've had

25

them assist in our food bank drives and as well as asked
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to participate in the Charity Walk.

2

I hope the County Council takes into

3

consideration the volatility and ever-changing trends of

4

the hospitality industry and understands what benefits

5

the timeshare industry can bring to the County, the

6

least of which being the number of steady jobs timeshare

7

industry has created, or the contributions to our local

8

economy and community, and agrees that it is important

9

to protect the timeshare industry and not do anything

10

that would hurt the livelihood of many of Maui

11

residents. Please support us and help us to keep us

12

employed.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

14

MS. MATSUWAKI: Thank you very much for taking

15

time -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members,

16
17

questions? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. Thank you.

18
19

Thank you very much for being here. I am making an

20

assumption that this testimony is based on the premise

21

that there is wording in the Maui Island Plan right now

22

that says we should discourage timeshare conversions and

23

ownership.

24

MS. MATSUWAKI: Yes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And you're here to
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1

testify that that's probably not a good point for us to

2

make or -- or direction for us to go in?

3

MS. MATSUWAKI: Yeah.

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Because it seems to be a

5

viable option?

6

MS. MATSUWAKI: Yes, most definitely.

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that has changed

8

this year?
MS. MATSUWAKI: No. I think our occupancy

9
10

over the course of the year has remained steady. We're

11

remaining at, I would say, about the 90 percent. Which

12

is great, because people -- that means people are still

13

visiting the island, they're still using, like I said,

14

the retailers, our supporters. They're still bringing

15

that money in.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How long have you been

16
17

there?
MS. MATSUWAKI: I've been there for five

18
19
20
21

years.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Have you seen it stay
pretty steady?

22

MS. MATSUWAKI: Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That -- that's a very

24

important point. Because what we've seen in the hotel

25

industry has been a little different.
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1

MS. MATSUWAKI: Yes, most definitely.

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.

3

MS. MATSUWAKI: Thank you.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any

5

other questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you. Elton

6

Sambrano, followed by Carol Reimann.

7

MR. SAMBRANO: Good morning, Chair

8

Kaho'ohalahala and Members of the Planning Committee.

9

My name is Elton Sambrano, representing Marriott's Maui

10

Ocean Club Resort on Maui, and a member of the American

11

Resort Development Association of Hawaii. That's the

12

Hawaii Chapter of the National Timeshare Association. I

13

want to offer testimony regarding the Draft Maui Island

14

Plan.

15

Our timeshare owners are committed to their

16

vacations on Maui. We have experienced 97 percent

17

occupancy even during these tough economic times. Many

18

of our owners own multiple weeks and pay an average of

19

$1,538 per week in maintenance fees to upkeep the resort

20

as well as $7 million in annual property taxes. The

21

high timeshare occupancy rates prove that timeshare

22

visitors want to come to the island and are a

23

stabilizing force in Maui's visitor industry during

24

these trying times. Our resort employs a staff of 450

25

local residents, a majority of which have been employed
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1

by us for many years. The payroll, including benefits

2

and taxes, last year, total over $27 million. Our staff

3

lives on Maui and supports the local economy by buying

4

homes, renting apartments, and purchasing necessities at

5

local retail stores, which makes our company an

6

important part of our local community.

7

We also support the local economy through

8

purchase of goods, contract services and repairs done by

9

local vendors. Our resort purchases water and

10

electricity from Maui's local utility companies.

11

Timeshare resorts pay the highest amount of property

12

taxes in comparison to non-timeshare resorts. And every

13

penny of our real property tax revenue stays in Maui

14

County. We contribute greatly to the success of our

15

island -- our -- our island community. We ask the

16

Planning Committee to protect the timeshare industry and

17

remove the negative policy statements in the Draft MIP

18

that discourage or oppose future timeshare development.

19

Please don't allow the Draft MIP to include anything

20

that would be harmful or detrimental to the long-term

21

health of the timeshare industry.

22

Thank you for the opportunity.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

24

Members, questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.

25

Carol Reimann, followed by Nane Aluli.
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1

MS. REIMANN: Good morning. I'm Carol

2

Reimann. I represent the Maui Hotel and Lodging

3

Association.

4

The visitor industry is the largest employer

5

of Maui County residents. I'm compelled to comment on

6

the fact that there are quite a number of items on

7

today's agenda, Economic Development, Housing,

8

Infrastructure, Public Facilities, and Land Use. Each

9

of these monumental items on their own has huge impacts

10

on the County. And to tackle them all within one agenda

11

is quite ambitious. GPAC took three years to complete

12

the Draft Island Plan. I encourage you to carefully

13

consider each item that will take us through the next 20

14

years.
From the visitor industry -- industry

15
16

perspective, because we feel we've had no representation

17

on the GPAC, we are finding numerous instances where we

18

have serious concerns, where we need to have a voice.

19

In fact, we have quite a number of comments to the items

20

on today's agenda. And with only three minutes to

21

testify, I find myself struggling to do my industry

22

justice.

23

My testimony will focus on the Infrastructure

24

and Land Use chapters. It was difficult to draft

25

testimony on the Infrastructure section because both the
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1

narrative and the matrix to the section is not available

2

to the public yet. So I'll be commenting on an older

3

version of the Plan.

4

Under Infrastructure, there's a section that

5

calls for the relocation of all rental car businesses

6

away from the airport into multistory parking structures

7

in West and South Maui. If the goal of the Island Plan

8

is to target higher-spending visitors, then making

9

travel inconvenient to these travel-savvy consumers will

10
11

discourage your travel to Maui.
The coveted high-end visitor is accustomed to

12

easily accessing their own vehicles at the airport and

13

being independently mobile. I have correspondence from

14

Marvin Moniz, Kahului Airport Manager, who says, "Moving

15

all or most of the car rental concessions off airport

16

property will provide a lower quality of service to car

17

rental consumers, substantially reduce the revenue to

18

the airport." He concludes that it will result in

19

higher ticket and cargo costs that will primarily be

20

borne by local passengers and companies.

21

Also, under Infrastructure, is a clause that

22

calls for the visitor industry to augment funding for

23

public transit expenses. The Island Draft Plan

24

indicates that this is justified because the visitor

25

industry so greatly benefits from public transit. While
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1

visitors and residents alike have benefited from the

2

Maui Bus System, the majority of the ridership is

3

residents. Once again, Maui prides itself on attracting

4

higher-spending visitors. These seasoned travelers

5

prefer to drive their own vehicles.

6

Don Medeiros, Director of Transportation, has

7

asked for the deletion of this hotel contribution clause

8

and the insertion of a new clause entitled

9

"Public/Private Partnership." We ask you to support Don

10
11

Medeiros' replacement verbiage.
In regard to the Land Use section, we ask that

12

you consider changing the language discouraging

13

timeshare. I see that I'm running out of time. My

14

comments to that are in my testimony. And you've heard

15

testimony from the -- some of the Marriott folks who are

16

in the timeshare industry.

17

As tourism is the economic engine for Maui, we

18

should all have a vested interest in protecting the

19

industry that so many residents re -- rely upon to

20

survive. Because of the lack of re -- representation

21

during the GPAC process, we continue to struggle to have

22

a voice within the Maui Island Plan. We encourage you

23

to input language that supports a healthy and vibrant

24

visitor industry.

25

Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

Carol, did you submit written testimony?

3

MS. REIMANN: I did submit written testimony.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

5

MS. REIMANN: And attached to my written, I

6

have the comments from Marvin Moniz, that's in a email

7

format. I've asked him to put it on stationery. He's

8

on Molokai today, but he will be submitting that to me

9

later.

10
11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, any questions for the testifier?

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki?

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Carol, we've seen many

15

hotel rooms being -- become timeshare. Does that bother

16

the industry at all?

17

MS. REIMANN: No, because the trend has been

18

conversion. Not maybe entire conversions, but partial

19

conversions. And this is because hotels are struggling

20

to remain viable throughout the year with the slowdown

21

in group business. And so what the partial conversions

22

allow is that the timeshare portion keeps the hotels

23

supported year-round with their high occupancy, yet,

24

during the lucrative group business seasons, the hotels

25

are able -- the hotel portion is able to, you know,
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capitalize on that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Not -- not that it's

3

important to me, but just I've heard a person that works

4

with a hotel mention this to me. Are timeshares less

5

worker-intensive?

6

MS. REIMANN: Some timeshares do have less

7

employees, but I think many of the timeshares now, for

8

instance, the Westin, KORV, they have the food and

9

beverage element, so they are able to bring in food and

10

beverage employees. So, you know, the hotels definitely

11

have more employees because of the group business and

12

the banquet staff, but what's -- what we've seen is that

13

timeshare industry's employees have not been laid off

14

during this entire economic downturn.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And -- and

16

that's important. But, I guess, have you encountered --

17

not that this is important, to me, anyway, personally,

18

but have you encountered any resistance from unions?

19
20

MS. REIMANN: I can't speak for the unions, so
I wouldn't be able to say --

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

22

MS. REIMANN: -- what their stance is.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Are -- maybe you know

24
25

this information, but are timeshare employees unionized?
MS. REIMANN: Some of them are.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Some of them are?

2

MS. REIMANN: Uh-huh.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros?

5

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

6

Good morning, Ms. Reimann, and thank you for being here.

7

Help me understand. And this has been brought up

8

several times, that on the GPAC, 25-member GPAC, there

9

was no representation for our largest industry. Did --

10

did the industry make their wishes known to be

11

represented on the GPAC?

12

MS. REIMANN: I wasn't in my position at that

13

time, so I'm not sure what transpired. But I do know,

14

during the GPAC process, and the Planning Commission

15

process, we did try to have our voices and we did submit

16

testimony.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah. If --

18

if you can't answer because -- yeah, you weren't in the

19

position you are during the putting together of the

20

GPAC. I -- I certainly would like to know, because, you

21

know, for East Maui, that is our economic engine. And

22

not to have a voice on the GPAC in that industry is --

23

is concerning to me. But thank you for your -- your

24

testimony this morning.

25

MS. REIMANN: Thank you.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Victorino?

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Carol, thank

4

you again. Just to -- for clarification purposes, isn't

5

it a fact that because the timeshare, many times, are

6

weekly intervals instead of maybe two or three nights,

7

like regular hotels would be, and housekeeping and other

8

entities are lessened because of the fact of long-term

9

visitorship and those guests not requiring a lot of

10

change of bedding and all that other stuff, isn't that

11

another big part of why they have less employees overall

12

in the timeshare industry versus a regular hotel, along

13

with room service and lot of other amenities that are

14

limited in timeshare?

15

MS. REIMANN: I'm not sure if the housekeeper

16

factor is a point that I would be concerned about,

17

because there are different types of timeshare, you

18

know. Some stay a few days, some do stay a week, some a

19

month. So it'd be hard for me to comment on that. But

20

I hear your point about the food and beverage aspect.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And -- and I

22

think that's something to be mindful of. It's a

23

different type of clientele and a different type of

24

visitor that we'd --

25

MS. REIMANN: Correct, but they still bring in
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1

visitors to the island that support many businesses on

2

the island.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, that, I agree.

3
4

And I think that's -- you know, they -- they go to

5

Costco's. You see them all the time picking up their

6

big wagon for the week's stay here. And, you know, they

7

do spend a lot of money here locally and as well as at

8

the hotel properties. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa?

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair.

10
11

Thank you, Carol, for all of the hard work you're doing.

12

We receive lots of testimony from you.

13

MS. REIMANN: Thank you.

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And at this point, I

15

don't know about anybody else, but I'm kind of drowning

16

in the amount of testimony we got this morning without

17

an opportunity to read it. So I wanted to ask you a

18

question. Something that really stuck out for me, that

19

was your references to Mr. Medeiros' comments. Where

20

were those made? I don't see them. Doesn't mean they

21

weren't made. They may be somewhere in this pile of

22

paper.

23

MS. REIMANN: Well, the Department of

24

Transportation shared with me their comments to the

25

Department about this section that pertains to
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I'll have to
look --

4

MS. REIMANN: I could --

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- that up.

6

MS. REIMANN: -- get a copy of that for you.

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If you would, you'd save

8
9
10
11
12

me a lot of time.
MS. REIMANN: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
I'd like to take a closer look at that. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO‘OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any

13

other? Carol, I -- I just wanted you to -- you know,

14

the -- your representation here by the industry, the

15

hotel industry, is a vital part. And you've made

16

considerable input to this Committee in our processes

17

for the General Policy Plan, as well as for the Maui

18

Island Plan now. But, recently, there was a Hawaii

19

Tourism Authority survey that polled the people about

20

the cultural aspect of the tourist industry. And are

21

you aware of that?

22
23

MS. REIMANN: I'm aware of the survey. I
haven't read it thoroughly, though.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

25

MS. REIMANN: But I do know that resident
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1

sentiment towards the industry as a whole has improved.

2

That was one of the results of the survey.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But it -- it

4

also did show that the people of Hawaii are concerned

5

about the fact that Native Hawaiian cultural values and

6

practices were not being kept or honored in -- in the

7

industry. In fact, I think there were -- 60 percent in

8

the survey felt that it was more detrimental. So I'm

9

trying to understand now, in the industry, when we're

10

trying to deliberate the importance of an industry, but

11

in what we're getting back in terms of the -- the most

12

recent poll done by the Hawaii Tourism Authority is

13

showing that they're feeling that they're not being

14

respected. And it's coming not only from the Native

15

Hawaiian community itself, but it's also polled the

16

different ethnic groups within Hawaii in how they view

17

Hawaiian cultural values and -- and resources being

18

cared for or not. And they have all testified in this

19

particular poll that they felt that it was not being

20

cared for. So I would like the industry to start to now

21

put some balance in -- in some of what we need to

22

deliberate on in terms of advocating. But, really, if

23

-- if this is a part of a condition of the industry,

24

then we need to be careful about presenting all sides, I

25

think. So -Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
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1

MS. REIMANN: Well --

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So --

3

MS. REIMANN: Thank you. Yeah.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Since you have not had

5

a chance to review all of that, then -MS. REIMANN: Well, you'd be interested to

6
7

know that we have been working with the Native Hawaiian

8

Hospitality Association, NaHHA, and we are working with

9

them on integrating some Native Hawaiian values within

10

the visitor industry leadership program. So this is

11

something we are working on. And we are also working on

12

that within our student program at the high school

13

level, to teach kids that -- you know, that the host

14

culture is very valuable to what we are and what we

15

stand for.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I appreciate

16
17

that. But I just wanted to get your -- your response to

18

that -- that recent survey. Okay. Thank you.
Members, any other questions? Okay, seeing

19
20

none --

21

MS. REIMANN: Thank you.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Nane Aluli,

23

followed by Gregg Nelson.

24

MR. ALULI: Aloha, Chair --

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aloha.
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MR. ALULI:

Kaho'ohalahala and Members of

2

the County Council. Mahalo for the time this morning

3

for me to give testimony during this very critical time

4

of planning for our beautiful island. My name is Nane

5

Aluli, and I'm here on behalf of the Maui Hotel and

6

Lodging Association. And I specifically want to address

7

some comments and verbiage in the Maui Island Plan as it

8

relates to Economic Development, specifically Chapter 4,

9

Page 8 of the Challenges and Opportunities.

10

The current copy reads: "According to the

11

State's Socio-Economic Forecast, between 2005 and 2030,

12

the population of visitors on Maui on any given day is

13

projected to increase by 23,000" people. "The projected

14

increase in visitor arrivals is inconsistent with the

15

stated objective of increasing visitor revenues

16

primarily through increasing visitor spending."

17

The Maui Hotel and Lodging Association would

18

like to recommend that the inclusion of the following

19

language take place: "Visitor industry statistics have

20

been in steady decline since the economic crisis that

21

begun in 2008. The goal of the visitor industry

22

should" -- continue to -- "should be to continue to

23

promote increased visitor revenue and attract

24

higher-spending visitors."

25

The Island Plan forecast was done at a time
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1

when the visitor industry was experiencing increased

2

occupancies and higher visitor spending. We now suffer

3

with low occupancies and lower visitor spending. The

4

Maui visitor industry no longer feels that the

5

projections will come to fruition. We have a lot of

6

catching up to do before increased visitor arrivals will

7

be seen. And when it happens, it's going to be a very

8

slow and gradual increase. Keeping the verbiage in a

9

document that will take us into 2030 will not help a

10
11

struggling visitor industry.
In Paragraphs 2 and 3, under Challenge [sic]

12

and Opportunities, reference are made -- references are

13

made to job and wage data. The current copy is, "An

14

analysis of 2005 job and wage data for Maui found that

15

the average wage of 78 occupations -- representing 54

16

percent of all jobs -- fell below the $30,800" level --

17

"below the $30,800 living wage standard. Maui can

18

address the need for higher paying jobs within the

19

visitor industry by expanding opportunities" of "small

20

locally-owned businesses to provide" goals -- or "goods

21

and services to the industry. Both the State and Maui

22

County Tourism Strategic Plans place significant

23

emphasis on attracting higher-spending visitors.

24

However, it is also important to have a well-balanced

25

and diversified visitor demographic. A diversity of
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1

visitors will provide new market opportunities and may

2

help the industry from downturns."

3

The Maui Hotel and Lodging Association would

4

like to recommend that the data reflects Maui's

5

statistics for the entire island, not necessarily

6

isolated to tourism. Low wages are also commonplace

7

amongst fast food establishments as well as most retail

8

and big box stores. Why is the visitor industry being

9

singled out with reference to low wages? The document

10
11

references wages, not income. That's a key point.
Most of the minimum wage level jobs are tipped

12

positions. These positions are wages -- or these

13

positions get their income from tips, and that needs to

14

be included.

15

Most of our priorities -- or most of our

16

properties are unionized. The unions do a great job in

17

advocating wages and benefits for their employees.

18

Non-union properties, in order to be competitive and

19

maintain quality workforce, must match these union scale

20

wages and benefits.

21

The recent layoffs are not isolated to the

22

industry -- visitor industry, by no means. Due to the

23

economic crisis, layoffs have taken place across all

24

sectors of the society here in Maui. The visitor

25

industry, like all other sectors of the economy, are not
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1

recession-proof. The visitor industry must not only

2

provide jobs, we also provide careers.
I'd like to just end my comments with a

3
4

reference to the matrix and Tourism Items Number 319 to

5

345. And we would like to recommend that the following

6

objective be introduced in addition: "Recognize the

7

important economic contributions that the visitor

8

industry makes to Maui County, and support a healthy and

9

vibrant visitor industry."

10

Mahalo for your time.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Nane, do you

12

have that written out?
MR. ALULI: Yes. I've submitted that

13
14

testimony.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm just not

18

finding it right here. Okay. Thank you. Members, any

19

other questions for the testifier?

20

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Victorino,

22

followed by Nishiki.

23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Nane, for

24

being here. Appreciate it. You know on that area where

25

you went on -- on wages and income and you mentioned
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1

about the tipped employees, right? What is the average

2

percentage of tipped employees that many of the -- and I

3

know that would change depending how many restaurants --

4

MR. ALULI: Right.

5

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- and -- and bars

6

and all that. But on an average, you know, for most of

7

the properties, what percentage of their employees would

8

fall under that particular income level versus wages?

9

Would you have any kind of idea?

10

MR. ALULI: I would say, off the top of my

11

head, probably around 40 to 50 percent. Because the

12

housekeepers -- the housekeepers get tips, the bellmen,

13

front -- or bellmen get tips, obviously, and the

14

restaurant food service people get tipped. The back of

15

the house, front office people, engineering, ground

16

maintenance, those are non-tipped positions. And,

17

generally, their hourly wage is a bit -- is quite a bit

18

higher.

19

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you for that

20

clarification, because, being that I've worked in the

21

industry for 22 years, both at a union and non-union

22

property, I agree with you that there is tremendous

23

differences when you say wages versus income.

24

MR. ALULI: Yes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I know many of
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1

the in -- tipped people, you know, they go home with a

2

58 -- I mean, 150 bucks a day --

3

MR. ALULI: Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- in tips, on good

5

days. And other days, not so good. But, I mean, that's

6

a big difference versus a wage. Like myself, we used to

7

get $13.55 as a security officer. So, yeah, I can

8

understand. And I agree with you. Thank you for that

9

information.

10

MR. ALULI: Thank you.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki?

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And -- and in

13

listening to you in regards to the 54 percent of our

14

jobs fell below 30,800, as was referenced in Paragraphs

15

3 or 4, has that changed?

16
17

MR. ALULI: From the hotel stand -- side? Are
you talking about in terms of --

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That 30,800.

19

MR. ALULI: I can't comment on that as a

20

standard --

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I guess --

22

MR. ALULI: -- Council Member.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- because you were

24

speaking to that wage, I thought that maybe you could

25

further clarify why it's different or it should be
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010
1

80

different. That's not true.

2

We'll move on. You -- you mention about fast

3

food and, probably, service industries. In other words,

4

things that are also affiliated with the visitor

5

industry, are retail stores, whatever, that operate.

6

Have -- has the Association looked at, because they're

7

also related, how many of your employees -- how many

8

jobs do they work? In other words, this is the often

9

concerned thing, hey, I work in the industry, all do I

10

is work, I don't get to take a vacation, smell the

11

roses. Is this something that we as decision-makers

12

should look at?

13

MR. ALUM: I really think that depends on

14

where, especially for Maui County -- and I think those

15

of us that live here are very aware of -- this is

16

probably one of the highest economies to try to make a

17

decent living in. And to try and determine what that

18

level is, and then compare it to what a line staff

19

person makes, I -- I think that's a tough comparison. I

20

think you know, as well as I do, that a lot of us work

21

at multiple jobs. And though -- and including those of

22

us in management who have two jobs. We need two sources

23

or three sources of income. Husband and wife work. But

24

not only do husband and wife work, husband has a second

25

job, wife maybe has a second part-time job. And that's
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true even for those of us in management.
I -- to answer your question specifically,

3

Councilperson Nishiki, I -- I can't really start to

4

determine or even guess at what that level is, but I can

5

tell you that there are probably a lot of us that are

6

making a really nice income who hold second jobs or

7

second part-time jobs. That's just the fact of life

8

here on Maui.

9
10
11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki,
are you concluded?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I -- I -- I --

12

I guess if you don't have any kind of stats, then I

13

would not be able to get any kind of reason as to why

14

perhaps the GPAC had their concerns. That's all.

15
16

MR. ALULI: And I am not in a position to
answer that --

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

18

MR. ALULI: -- specific question. I would

19

like to ask -- or answer -- or make a comment on

20

Councilperson Medeiros' comment about GPAC not including

21

any tourism people in the -- in the process. I don't

22

ever remember being approached to become a member of the

23

GPAC group. And I can tell you right now that I

24

absolutely would have been involved. I'm very concerned

25

about what happens with this Plan going forward. And I
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1

think all of us realize how important the visitor

2

Industry is to Maui's economy. It's critical, critical.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

4

MR. ALULI: Mahalo.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Nane. Next

6
7

testifier is Gregg Nelson, followed by Jesse Spencer.
MR. NELSON: Aloha. Excuse me. Aloha,

8

Mr. Chairman and Committee Members. I'm Gregg Nelson.

9

I am here today as a member of the Maui Hotel and

10

Lodging Association. Nane touched upon an area --

11

several points there that I was supposed to cover, but I

12

won't go back and repeat all of that. Thank you, Nane.

13

But I'm also here -- in addition to being a member of

14

the Maui Hotel and Lodging Association, I'm also here as

15

the leader of the Napili Kai Beach Resort, which,

16

despite these tough economic times that we're going

17

through, I'm proud to say is 50 years old this year.

18

But I'm also, in addition to that, a citizen of Maui

19

since 1978. And I have seen, over the many, many years

20

of -- of cycles in our industry, the ups, the -- the

21

great times that we had, and the -- and the downturns in

22

our industry, the need for economic diversification to

23

help even out those highs and lows.

24
25

But, that said, I, being a -- being a member
of this industry, it has afforded me the great
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1

opportunity to live in this wonderful community, on this

2

island, to raise two wonderful children, have them

3

graduate from high school here. And it -- it has also

4

allowed me to -- to -- to afford them to go off to

5

college.

6

I guess, you know, in addition to the other

7

things that Carol has mentioned and the things that Nane

8

has mentioned, I would say that, just real briefly here,

9

what we're asking is -- is for more favorable language

10

in this Island Plan regarding the tourism industry and a

11

recognization [sic] that this is our economic engine

12

here. And though we all support diversification and --

13

and a need for controls, we must, at the same time,

14

recognize the industry that we have here and support it,

15

support it as best as we can, until we get to that point

16

where we can diversify more. And -- and there isn't

17

anybody in our industry that doesn't believe that

18

diversification should happen. We really do.

19

So, again, I -- I support the comments that

20

Carol made. Carol comes, I know, and talks before you

21

quite often. And you see her face a lot. You probably

22

don't see Nane's or mine that much. We're out there

23

working, also, our long hours. But, anyway, I will -- I

24

will conclude with that. And thank you very much for

25

this opportunity.
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1
2

Johnson, question?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much for

3
4

coming. How long have you been at Napili Kai?
MR. NELSON: I've been at Napili Kai for six

5
6

years.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And what were you? I

7
8
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I know you were at another property.

9

MR. NELSON: I -- I ran -- I opened and -- and

10

ran, for many years, off and on, the -- the -- what was,

11

when it closed, the Renaissance Hotel down in Wailea.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And -- and what

13

happened with the Renaissance?
MR. NELSON: The Renaissance closed. And the

14
15

reason it closed was to -- to supposedly become -- I

16

guess, get -- get torn down and become a condominium.

17

But due to the real estate situation, that hotel still

18

sits there stagnant. And I'm not sure what the plans

19

are, to reopen it or just whatever they're going to do.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very

20
21

much.

22

MR. NELSON: Uh-huh.

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I -- I appreciate that

24

'cause, you know, sometimes that helps us historically

25
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1

MR. NELSON: Sure.

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- what some of the

3

changes are that --

4

MR. NELSON: Certainly.

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- we're facing, too --

6

MR. NELSON: Yeah.

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- within the industry.

8
9
10
11

Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros,
followed by Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

12

Thank you for your testimony this morning, for being

13

here. You know, I did ask Ms. Reimann about -- if the

14

industry had any opportunities to be on the GPAC. And

15

Mr. Aluli stated that, you know, he would have

16

volunteered to be on it if the industry had known about

17

it. In your capacity, do you know if there was a

18

reaching out to the industry to be a part of the GPAC?

19

MR. NELSON: No, I do not. No.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because, yeah,

21

it's concerning that our largest industry was not a part

22

of the planning process.

23

MR. NELSON: Absolutely.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Thank you for

25

being here.
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1

MR. NELSON: Thank you.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Molina?

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you,

5

Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Nelson. Thank you for

6

your comments. You know, just dovetailing off Member

7

Medeiros' comments about, I guess, the lack of inclusion

8

of the visitor industry on the GPAC. Way back when,

9

when it was first created, I guess the economy was

10

prospering, so there was not as much concern, I guess,

11

being expressed about tourism. I'm just trying to tie

12

this in, Mr. Chairman, to the request from the visitor

13

industry, to -- about -- including more, I guess,

14

friendlier or more positive language in our Maui Island

15

Plan. And you -- you know, you stated you've been

16

around the community. What is the general opinion now

17

of tourism? And -- and, you know, excluding hotel

18

employees, but, just amongst -- you know, you've been

19

here since 1978. Just amongst people who are maybe not

20

in the industry who you have talked to. What -- what is

21

the perception now of tourism? Is there more of an

22

appreciation for it now versus more of a -- versus maybe

23

a negative perception of it?

24
25

MR. NELSON: Right. I -- I -- I think -- I
think these things go through cycles. Just like the ups
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1

and downs in our industry, I think when -- when business

2

is great and -- and the hotels and -- and timeshares are

3

full, then there's probably a little bit more of a

4

negative out there. When -- when there's a downturn in

5

business -- let me back up. The reason that I -- that I

6

feel there's probably a little bit more of a negative is

7

'cause we see, you know, the -- the traffic is -- is a

8

lot more congested, the -- the lines are longer at the

9

grocery stores. When there's a downturn, I think, all

10

of a sudden, all of us start to realize how even though

11

we may not be directly in -- working in a hotel, we

12

start to see how it's affecting other family members who

13

are, or it's affecting the indirect industries, and they

14

are hurting as well. So when there is that downturn,

15

there becomes more of an appreciation. There's more of

16

an appreciation because there's more of an awareness of

17

how interconnected it all is.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you,

18
19
20
21

Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any
other questions? Seeing none, thank you.

22

MR. NELSON: Thank you very much.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Jesse Spencer. Okay.

24

Chair, we're -- "Chair." Sorry. Members, we're just at

25

the halfway mark in terms of testimony. And what I'd
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1

like to do is allow Mr. Spencer to give his testimony,

2

and then if we can take a break -- and this is to allow

3

some of you to get your two-hour parking limits taken

4

care of -- and then we will reconvene. And we'll do --

5

do that after Mr. Spencer's testimony. Okay. Go ahead.

6

MR. J. SPENCER: I didn't hear all that. I'm

7

Jesse Spencer. And all of you know what I'm here for.

8

And the -- I listened to all the different Council

9

people. I have insomnia, so I wake up in the middle of

10

the night and watch all your past performances and all

11

your comments. And I listened -- I go to a lot of the

12

different committee meetings and what-have-you.

13

And so what I've tried to do in my projects is

14

try to incorporate so many of these things and concerns

15

that the people on Maui have. In fact, like, say, I've

16

met with all the Council people except Wayne. And his

17

policy is he doesn't meet with us. And which is fine.

18

But all the rest of 'em I have met. And Mike Victorino,

19

he -- when we were talking about injection wells, he

20

said, have you talked about -- to the people about

21

Maalaea to see if you can't work out something. Which

22

we do have solutions for many of these problems,

23

coordinated with our Ohana Kai project.

24
25

Injection wells, there's about 20 of 'em in
Maalaea. The average acreage per unit is only about
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1

acre and-a-half or two acres. Now, if they can't use

2

the injection wells, where are they gonna take this

3

water? And so that's one of the questions. But they

4

don't seem to have any willingness, so far, to even talk

5

to me about that.

6

Then I even talked to -- oh -- the Chairman,

7

Sol. And I wasn't sure where he stood, but, you know,

8

he brought up something that I never even thought about

9

it since I was brought up during World War II. But he

10

mentioned, you know, we were taking this land out of

11

agriculture, are we gonna grow the food for them, too.

12

And so, you know, that got another good idea that we --

13

I want to promote, back yard gardens. We had 'em, what

14

we called victory gardens back then. On gardens, we can

15

use drip systems which we can grow things.

16

So, any rate, the others have made comments.

17

We've talked about the transit corridor. We're setting

18

aside a hundred-foot corridor that goes the full length

19

of the property. Now, at -- presently, it will be used

20

for a linear retention basin which will alleviate a lot

21

of the rapid mountain runoff. We've -- we're trying to

22

work with the State Land and Natural Resources to create

23

the same thing above the project that will also create a

24

greenbelt. We will use the effluent, and we keep it

25

green. We will also do this linear retention basins
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1

which should completely eliminate this rapid runoff from

2

the mountains. And we're -- we've been dealing with the

3

West Maui -- oh -- Watershed Department.

4

And so, any rate, now then, to get right down

5

to the -- what we're here talking, this last two or

6

three years, all I've heard was affordable housing. And

7

so that is a passion for me. You know, when I look at

8

what they say, the -- still the median house in -- in

9

Maui is about six to seven hundred thousand. All of my

10

houses, none of 'em have gone over 550 thousand. That's

11

four-bedroom, three-bath, ocean view, mountain view.

12

And so what I'm offering is a -- a unique project in

13

that we will have a village right in the center of it.

14

And so that when they come home in the evening, the

15

farthest they would have to go to the grocery store,

16

pharmacy, get a haircut, and, hopefully, even get a --

17

a -- a doctor's clinic there, would be a half a mile,

18

where they would no -- never go back onto the major

19

highway. Right in that Central Maui, it's the most

20

central. If you look at your maps, it's the most

21

central to every point in Maui.

22
23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mr. Spencer, can
you conclude?

24

MR. J. SPENCER: Yes.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
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MR. J. SPENCER: It's kinda hard to explain --

1
2

oh -- a $50 million -- a $500 million project in three

3

minutes that's gonna last five or six years, but I'll do

4

my best.

5

So, any rate, within a year, we can have over

6

200 people employed. Within a year, we can still have

7

the first affordable homes in -- in the project.

8

And so, again, I know that the Planning

9

Department, they wanna take it out of the Project

10

District. It is now in the Project District, and has

11

been in the Project District for over 10 years. So,

12

again, I've gotta rely upon the elected officials to see

13

what is best for Maui.

14
15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, questions for the testifier? Member Medeiros?

16

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

17

Mr. Spencer, thank you for being here this morning. The

18

corridor that you described, the transportation

19

corridor, is -- is your properties both mauka and makai

20

of the main highway?

21

MR. J. SPENCER: It is just on my property.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Is it, your

23
24
25

property, only on the mountainside of the highway?
MR. J. SPENCER: It's only on the
mountainside, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So -- so the

2

corridor that you're talking about, a hundred-foot

3

corridor, is that what you're referring to?

4
5
6
7

MR. J. SPENCER: Yes. And it parallels the
existing highway.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. And -- but in
there, you said there was gonna be a retention basin?

8

MR. J. SPENCER: Yes.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So how would it be

10

used for transportation with a retention basin there?

11

MR. J. SPENCER: Well, you know, naturally,

12

everything of this magnitude requires engineering.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

14

MR. J. SPENCER: But -- and most of your rapid

15

transits go over a large part of built-up structures,

16

you know, columns and what-have-you.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.

18

MR. J. SPENCER: And so it could still remain

19

as retention basins and still -- oh -- provide, you

20

know, a corridor, you know, for, you know, your --

21

your -- your train maximum is about 10 feet wide. You

22

double that coming and going. And so even if you have

23

to take the full hundred feet, then you still have room

24

to still do mass transit.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, finally,
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1

in -- in your projects, do you utilize local

2

construction trade workers?
MR. J. SPENCER: I don't know quite what you

3
4

mean by that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do you use

5
6

carpenters, painters, plumbers, from the local unions,

7

or --

8

MR. J. SPENCER: I -- I don't -- when I get a

9

lower bid on -- on -- from a contractor, I don't ask if

10

he's union. We have several union contractors that

11

we've been using now for, oh, 10 to 15 years or longer.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.

13

MR. J. SPENCER: And I don't even ask that.

14

If they're the low bidder and I've dealt with 'em

15

before, I'll just go with the known quantity. I know

16

they can produce the quality, you know, that we want.

17

But, in that regard, our average wage, when you take

18

average, we -- we start at about $15 an hour. We get a

19

lot of kids fresh out of high school, where they learn a

20

trade. Then our skilled people go up to 25, 35 and $40

21

an hour.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.

23

MR. J. SPENCER: And so they average out over

24
25

about 50 to 55 thousand per year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
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MR. J. SPENCER: Which allows -- oh -- anyone

1
2

that works for me can afford one of our affordable

3

homes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you,

5

Mr. Spencer. Appreciate the information. Mahalo,

6

Mr. Chairman.

7
8
9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any
other questions? Okay. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.

10

MR. J. SPENCER: Hello, Wayne.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Did you ever make a

12

presentation to GPAC?

13

MR. J. SPENCER: Have I what?

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Did you make a

15

presentation to GPAC, or had they completed their work?

16

MR. J. SPENCER: You know, I'm certainly glad

17

you asked that because the process was very tainted.

18

And it was tainted by the Planning Department in that,

19

again, they have different committees that we can make

20

presentation to. Now then, the first meeting that I

21

did, a couple of the members held up their hands and the

22

gavel came down and says no questions. So here are

23

projects of this magnitude, the committee at that time

24

was not allowed to ask any questions. So, for that

25

reason, why -- why am I giving a public testimony when
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1

there can be no comment? And -- and this is what I

2

witnessed time -- at least twice during testimony to the

3

GPAC. They immediately dismissed what I was talking

4

about and went into their own agenda. So the project

5

was never really discussed, to my knowledge. And so,

6

for that reason, I don't see how you can consider it

7

very valid, you know, in the testimonies that no

8

questions can be asked except for what they might want

9

to present to the panel. So I -- I just -- I think the

10

whole process was flawed in the way they conducted their

11

meetings.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Jesse, I -- I -- I'm a

13

bit concerned about what you just said, if this is true.

14

This was during a GPAC meeting in which an individual

15

hit the gavel and said that you were not allowed to

16

speak?

17
18

MR. J. SPENCER: No. They -- they -- they
invited the public for public testimony.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

20

MR. J. SPENCER: And what I'm saying is that,

21

usually, that is before a subcommittee of the GPAC. And

22

so two different times, after testimony, members of that

23

panel would raise the hand for a question. The gavel

24

said, no, the way these meetings are conducted, they

25

could not ask me any questions. And so here's a project
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1

that is -- oh -- $500 million into the system with over

2

a five or six-year period that's gonna employ this many

3

people at a time when we need 'em. Now then, that

4

committee -- or that subcommittee, and amongst the GPAC,

5

they were not allowed to ask me a question, not by the

6

Planning Department's rules.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And -- and this was

8

consistently -- did you notice this was consistently

9

done or was this just done against you?

10
11

MR. J. SPENCER: No, no. I -- I -- when they
said that --

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It wasn't --

13

MR. J. SPENCER: -- was the rules that were --

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

15

MR. J. SPENCER: -- established by the

16

Department for public testimony. So I'm assuming that

17

it wasn't just against me. It was --

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

19

MR. J. SPENCER: -- for anyone testifying that

20

these committees were not allowed to ask any of these

21

testifiers questions. And I think if the rule -- if you

22

look into that, and if they have allowed some of 'em,

23

then I'd like to know who -- who they did allow.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: One of --

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- the biggest

2

concerns in going to different communities, especially

3

in Kihei, was a concern about you putting in an

4

injection well to deal with your sewage, just because

5

the County has none there. Can you explain to me if you

6

do intend to use an injection well?

7

MR. J. SPENCER: Right now, the way the

8

systems work, I don't know of any area that -- including

9

the County and -- the County and Maalaea are the -- are

10

the coastal communities. They usually are on limited

11

acreage. And they have -- they have to use these

12

injection wells because there's no place to take the

13

sewage waste. Now then, the water is treated to a

14

certain degree, usually classified as R-1 and R-2.

15

Now then, they -- the people that testified

16

against me from Maalaea said because of the low-lying

17

area that I'm gonna put the treatment plant, that a

18

tidal wave might affect it. And I'm at least 30 feet

19

above all the injection wells and sewer systems in that

20

entire Maalaea community. So I don't know what's gonna

21

happen to them. They're complaining, but I'm using the

22

latest -- oh -- treatment plants that have the latest,

23

the most modern development. And we will treat the

24

water to R-1, which we can take it, I understand, even

25

on food product, which they can't do it with R-2. And
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1

you cannot put it on personal lawns, but you can put

2

R-1, we understand it. But the Health Department said

3

in their comments that we would have to have a backup

4

injection well. And that is so, even though I have

5

enough land area to take care of all the effluent, in

6

case we have 30 days of rain in Maalaea -- which I don't

7

know whether we've ever had that in history yet -- but

8

that the -- the ground might be so saturated that it

9

could not take any of the injection or the effluent

10

water up on the mountain. And that mountain is very

11

thirsty. You know, you go down and look --

12
13
14
15
16
17
18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mr. Spencer, I think
you answered Mr. Nishiki's question.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Yeah. You do
intend to inject?
MR. J. SPENCER: Is that it? What? I'm not
hearing that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Your answer is, you do

19

intend to use that injection well to -- when you deal

20

with your sewage?

21

MR. J. SPENCER: No. My intention is not to

22

use that injection well. No. My -- my goal is to use

23

the injection well to create a greenbelt above the

24

project and on our parks and our lands that we can use

25

it on and conserve most of our surface or -- or
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groundwater.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you're gonna have a

3

treatment facility and -- and -- and you probably will

4

be required to have an injection well, but your plan is

5

to not inject this effluent once it's treated?

6

MR. J. SPENCER: I'm hoping we would never

7

have to use it. It would -- it would only be during

8

long -- prolonged rains.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any

10
11

other questions? Okay, seeing none --

12

MR. J. SPENCER: Thank you.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- thank you,

14

Mr. Spencer.
Okay. Members, the Chair will take a

15
16

10-minute recess, and then we'll continue where -- we

17

have remaining 16 more testifiers that are signed up at

18

this time, so -- okay. So recess until a quarter after.

19

...(gavel)...

20

RECESS:

21

RECONVENE: 11:21 a.m.

22

11:04 a.m.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:

...(gavel)... Okay.

23

Members, as I had indicated, we have at least, for now,

24

16 more testifiers to testify. And the Chair is going

25

to ask now if we might continue going 'til 12:30 and
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808) 244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

100

1

then take a lunch break? And that's why I wanted to get

2

a sense from the -- the Members, how -- how you wanna do

3

this, and try to see how to get through all of the

4

testimonies as quickly as we could. Otherwise, then we

5

would be -- we could take a -- an earlier lunch, if

6

that's what your preference is, and then we would

7

require testifiers to come back after lunch. So -- so

8

quickly, Member Johnson.

9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I have no

10

problem doing that. I would just ask the Members, if

11

they have comments, please don't make them, and just ask

12

questions and keep them very brief. Thank you.

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman, 12:30
is good for me.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa?

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, 12:30 is fine for

17

me, but, in regards to the comments, I'm really sorry,

18

but this is the opportunity to discuss this with the

19

public. Thank you.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Molina?

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 12:30 is fine, Chair.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: 12:30. Member Nishiki?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: 12:30? Okay. Then why

25

don't we continue with the testifiers, then? And just
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1

so you know, we're gonna go 'til 12:30. And if I don't

2

get near you -- your numbers on here, then that would

3

mean that we will probably have to reconvene with

4

testimony following lunch as well. So -- so let's begin

5

with Charles Jencks, followed by Bryan Sarasin.
MR. JENCKS: Good morning -- good afternoon,

6
7

Mr. Chairman. Maybe it's good afternoon -- good

8

morning. I'm confused.
Members of the Committee, just a few brief

9

I know this is a long

10

comments. I don't wanna

11

process for you. A couple things. I provided to you,

12

in the letter form, my comments. I took each section of

13

the -- the -- of the Island Plan that we're reviewing

14

today and -- and looked at it and identified issues and

15

analyzed the Goals and Objectives. I also went down to

16

the policy level and the action item level by reference

17

to give you an idea of where my talking points are

18

coming from. But, generally, I would just summarize as

19

follows:

20

On the economic diversity side, I -- I think,

21

you know, from my standpoint, from the standpoint of

22

most of the folks that are here today, one of the

23

biggest challenges we have in economic diversity in this

24

County is at least some degree of improved certainty.

25

When you purchase land, or you're in the permitting
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1

process, there isn't, in many cases, certainty today

2

in -- in -- in this County when -- when we're talking

3

about regulatory environment.

4

The other thing is that environment can be

5

greatly improved. And I -- and I would like to say that

6

Director of Planning, Jeffrey Hunt, has actually offered

7

some amendments that are the result of a permitting task

8

force report that was done for the Mayor's Office, that

9

are now in review. And I think that's a step in the

10

right direction. So I think we're moving in that

11

direction, but more has to be done to really address

12

economic diversity in this County. If there's -- if

13

there's increased risk or high risk, you're not gonna

14

get the diversity you need and the -- and the return you

15

need on that investment.

16

Really, the biggest concerns on the Housing

17

section, it talks about housing in perpetuity. And many

18

provisions in the Housing element that are actually

19

in -- in direct contradiction with 2.96 which is the

20

housing bill you passed. That bill in -- in -- in --

21

with respect to Mr. Nishiki's efforts, that bill is

22

being revised. The Council met on Friday and talked

23

about a revision to that bill. It needs -- it needs

24

revision because you've learned over time that there are

25

problems with the bill. And that bill is gonna continue
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1

to evolve. Given the economy we have today and the

2

housing inventory we have, this section works against

3

what it is you're doing, in my opinion. So I think you

4

need to look at that in the context of 2.96 and modify

5

the element accordingly.

6

On the Agricultural side, I mean, I have -- I

7

have land Upcountry that, if I could get people to farm

8

it, I might find someone who would lease it. The

9

problem is I'm at the end of a ditch. And if there's no

10

water, people aren't going to farm the land. So trying

11

to get people to farm is one thing, having the resources

12

for them to farm is -- is another. It's a very

13

complicated issue on the Agricultural side.

14

On the Rural and Urban side, there's a

15

tendency in these elements to shift everyone into the

16

Urban core. And I think that runs against what many of

17

us experienced when we first came to Maui. We could

18

live wherever we wanted to live, in the kind of house we

19

wanted to live in, and work where we wanted to live.

20

This element kind of takes -- these two elements in the

21

Land Use element take kind of a populist view with

22

regard to where it -- it -- it seems someone thinks you

23

need to live and what you need to do for a job. So I

24

would say to you, looking at that -- those two elements,

25

the Rural and Urban sections, in the context of, in
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1

reality, what's going on in Maui County, where people

2

wanna live, the folks Upcountry who have owned land for

3

generations, we're kind of out in la-la land with regard

4

to these elements, I think is a big issue.

5

The infrastructure to share, those lots,

6

they're kinda left out in the cold. And I think they're

7

not really addressed. As well as the DHHL lands, there

8

is -- there's nothing that I can find in this element

9

that addresses commercial opportunities for those that

10

live in those lands, Keokea, Waiohuli, or even those

11

that are down closer to Kihei, for future expansion and

12

provision of -- of commercial services to keep energy

13

level consumptions down and traffic down. So those are

14

my comments, Mr. Chair.

15
16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, questions for the testifier?

17

MR. JENCKS: Thank you.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Bryan Sarasin,

19

to be followed by -- oh, I'm sorry, Sr., and then Jr.

20

MR. SARASIN, SR.: Yes.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

22

MR. SARASIN, SR.: Excuse me. Good

23

afternoon -- or good morning, I guess. It's still this

24

morning. My name is Bryan Sarasin. I'm here to voice

25

my opinion as a board member of Hui 0 Na Weha -- Hui 0
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1

Na Wai Eha, second vice president of Community Waihee

2

Association as well as on the planning committee and,

3

also, the constitution and bylaws committee. And I just

4

got elected to Hoouluai vice president. I'm speaking as

5

myself today. We need to make sure that there's not a

6

quick review. We need to take the time to make sure

7

this plan is a people plan, not a Department plan.

8

After all, the people of our communities will have to

9

live with this Plan.

10

Mr. Sparke, earlier, was discussing Waihee.

11

In the beginning, with the GPAC, with all the

12

development being shown on the maps, that was the

13

people's response, was they didn't wanna have anything,

14

we just wanna shut everything down. Recently, we formed

15

a -- a -- a planning committee, we were working on

16

planning, so we can provide our own plan. And at this

17

particular point, we don't wanna eliminate anything

18

since we're still in the planning, trying to get to

19

everybody in the community so everybody will be -- have

20

a voice in that plan, whatever it may be.

21

That said, we also need a glossary which has

22

been also described earlier. The discretionary power

23

that you're trying to push through is another way to

24

bypass the community and Council approval process. I

25

guess the community doesn't -- needs not to have a say
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1

in this process. Well, I say we do. We wanna see the

2

plan details, all the changes. We cannot bypass this

3

process. We, the people, will be there to make our own

4

decision.

5

We need infrastructure. No place is

6

infrastructure mentioned. Do we need a Cadillac plan or

7

a Toyota? Where is the money coming from to go ahead

8

and -- and -- and have the County people to police this

9

plan? How many positions are gonna be created? Where's

10

the money coming from? We're already in a deficit. And

11

this deficit's gonna be continuing for years to come.

12

So right now, we're putting in a heck of a big plan, and

13

it's like there's no regard for the money, to go ahead

14

and pay it. Like I said, the cost of this Plan is

15

astronomical, and the public gets the bill, I'm assuming

16

in the millions of dollars. The economy is in dire

17

straits, and the recovery is a long way off. The public

18

has to abide by this with the reality, with no input,

19

but the public gets the bill. It's not fair to us, the

20

public. We have to live in the areas that you guys

21

designate, whether we're -- whether it's gonna be huge

22

development or not. We, the community, get to live with

23

that, not everybody else, but every community member.

24
25

Also, for the record, which I also stated
earlier, is we are working on our own plan, which I've
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1

testified in front of you folks before. And once we get

2

that plan completed, we're gonna be coming before you,

3

submitting it to you, and asking for your comments and

4

for your input. So all I'm trying to do at this

5

particular point is also just to ask for us to be

6

included, and, also, we need to add all these different

7

changes, we need to have time to look 'em over, to make

8

sure it's okay for us. Each one of us needs to do that.

9

A lot of people haven't been privy to this process, for

10

whatever reason, myself included. However, since we

11

have been -- and since I have been in -- in

12

communication, I am trying my very best to get out and

13

try to keep the -- the community informed and, also,

14

myself, because this is gonna be for a long time to

15

come.

16

Thank you.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you.

18

Members, questions? Mr. -- okay, go ahead, Member

19

Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How are you getting

20
21

your information? You -- you -- are you getting agendas

22

and are you getting the different matrices that are

23

being -MR. SARASIN, SR.: We -- we are getting that,

24
25

yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's being changed, I

know.
MR. SARASIN, SR.: It's being changed. And --

4

and I -- I guess, part of what -- what our -- some of

5

our problem is it's being changed, and we're not able to

6

see the revisions after it's being changed. So we

7

really don't know what gets changed. And -- and that's

8

something we need to make a comment on once we do see

9

the changes.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

11

MR. SARASIN, SR.: That -- that's one of our

12
13

main concerns. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And -- and the

14

Planning Department, you're having contact with the

15

Planning Department, and they're cooperating with you?

16

MR. SARASIN, SR.: We are --

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Your organization?

18

MR. SARASIN, SR.: -- having some cooperation

19

with the Planning Department, yes.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.

21

MR. SARASIN, SR.: I've had meetings with them

22
23
24
25

in the past.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mr. Sarasin, the
Hoouluai -MR. SARASIN, SR.: Yeah.
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1

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- is that your own

2

organized entity for this community plan that you're

3

describing?

4

MR. SARASIN, SR.: What -- what has transpired

5

is, originally, the Waihee Community Planning Committee

6

kind of incorporated with another organization to be

7

called Hoouluai. Recently, we have separated it out as

8

a separate entity, which includes everything from

9

Kahakuloa up to, I believe, it was Iao Stream. And the

10

reason we separated it out was the fact that we looked

11

at the whole situation and we wanted each community to

12

have its own input, its own plan, its own say. And

13

then, with Hoouluai, would come together, and, if

14

everybody was on the same page, that organization would

15

represent everybody.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

17

MR. SARASIN, SR.: And that --

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I just --

19

MR. SARASIN, SR.: And they are, also, coming

20

up with -- with another plan that we will be -- that

21

we're working on as well.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So in the

23

future, then, as soon as you have been able to bring all

24

of that information and -- and that -- those communities

25

are supporting it, then you will be presenting that to
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808) 244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010
1

110

-- to this Committee, then?

2

MR. SARASIN, SR.: Yes.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Thank

4

you. Other questions? Member --

5

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Mahalo,

Medeiros?

8

Mr. Chairman. But maybe just for information for the

9

testifier, and if you could answer it, do we have a

10

website of a work in progress, as changes are made,

11

it -- it -- it's presented on the website that they can

12

get information on changes from?

13
14
15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes. Shall we get the
Department or Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just so that, you

16

know, the gentleman has that information and possibly

17

able to get more updated changes from that. We know

18

that not all people in the community have access to

19

computers, but most people do.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Staff.

21

MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As each

22

matrix for each chapter is tentatively approved or

23

initially approved by the Committee, those documents are

24

placed on the Planning Committee website. So,

25

currently, Chapters 1, 2 and 3 are available on the
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1

Planning Committee website as initially approved

2

Chapters.

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for

7

testifying.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa?

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just a quick follow-up

10

to that question. I'd like clarification, if you don't

11

mind, from Mr. Raatz. Are those matrices available

12

online to the public when we received them?

13

MR. RAATZ: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. When

14

we receive the matrix document -- and, for the record,

15

the matrix is a -- a tool that the Committee's using

16

that shows the recommendations of each policy from the

17

General Plan Advisory Committee, the Maui Planning

18

Commission, the Planning Director, and then the final

19

column --

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.

21

MR. RAATZ: -- the Planning Committee's

22

recommendation. As we receive each matrix from the

23

Planning Department, which is preparing those for the

24

Committee, we place that on the website. And then when

25

the Committee approves a matrix, finishes a chapter,
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then we update that and put that on the website as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I

2
3

was clear that you were doing it afterwards, but not

4

before. Because I've had comments by several people

5

that they did not have access or didn't see the matrix,

6

and that there were differences in what had -- you know,

7

they had and what is on the matrix. So I think it's

8

important we make those available to everyone. Thank

9

you.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mr. Sarasin,

11

then, that was just to help clarify some of your need

12

for in -- information.

13

MR. SARASIN, SR.: Yeah. And I really

14

appreciate that. And -- and I know that we'll be able

15

to testify later on, on those. Thank you very much.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. The

17

next testifier is Bryan Sarasin, Jr., followed by Marla

18

McManus, if she's still here. Okay.

19

MR. SARASIN, JR.: Aloha, Planning Members.

20

My name is Bryan Sarasin, Jr. I'm the Waihee Community

21

Association Planning Chair. I'm here to voice my

22

opinion in that there needs to be elected officials

23

making the changes to the Plan on behalf of the

24

community's wants and needs. No one should be able to

25

simply change a plan as they see fit with any -- without
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

113

1

any potential ramifications. That is how things get

2

passed that shouldn't, and, as a result, the County and

3

its residents suffer for it.
My community is opposed to urbanization and,

4
5

therefore, our area should not be urbanized by the

6

Council, planners, or anyone, for that matter, because

7

we simply do not want it. Planning should be first and

8

foremost for the people that are already here and have

9

to live everyday life here. Without planning among the

10

communities, the quality of life suffers for everyone.

11

We, the people, elected you to office, we put our faith

12

in you to do what we want. What we want is for you to

13

get the community's wants and follow through with them.

14

Mahalo.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

16

MR. SARASIN, JR.: I'd also -- my apologies.

17

I've since added on.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh.

19

MR. SARASIN, JR.: I'd also like to add that

20

Maui's sustainability needs to be more heavily weighted

21

in the agricultural sector with -- with no further

22

developments on prime ag lands because, basically, once

23

they're gone, they're gone. Once you put something in

24

concrete, you can't grow nothing on concrete.

25

That's about it.
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And then, also, just as someone that's been

2

here a few times -- like this is the first time I've

3

been here -- the parking is atrocious. So anytime

4

somebody makes mention that, oh, you know, we can have

5

the community here, unless you guys start setting up a

6

bus system to start shuttling people here, the amount of

7

parking spots here is ridiculously low. I look at the

8

people here, not even half of it's full, you know. So,

9

you know, something needs to be done about that.

10

Because especially for the kupuna, if they can't come

11

here because of various, you know, disabilities, you

12

know, age, et cetera, pretty -- pretty difficult for

13

them to come here and give their manao. So that's

14

something you might wanna think about.

15

And, also, this is a plan for roughly the next

16

30 years. We should not be talking about, oh, it has to

17

get pushed through in the next three months, it has to

18

get pushed through in the next six months. The bottom

19

line is, is it gonna -- you know, gonna impact me, you

20

know, my children, possibly their children, everyone

21

beyond that as well as everyone in this room. So, you

22

know, it's just not right that we go ahead and -- and

23

rush through things. Because every time things get

24

rushed through, you know, nothing good ever comes of it.

25

It needs to be taken -- taken care of in the proper
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1

amount of time, no matter how long that is, because if

2

we rush something through now, you know, then we end up

3

suffering with it later on. So, you know, I understand

4

you guys are under a timetable, but, as someone else

5

mentioned, it has been put back -- you know, other

6

things have been put back before. So if that needs to

7

be done for this to be done properly, I would greatly

8

encourage you to do that. Thank you.

9
10
11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, any questions? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. Thank you.

12

One quick question. We're very interested in the

13

public's knowledge of what we're doing here.

14

MR. SARASIN, JR.: Okay.

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Because that's very

16

important. And I think you make some very strong points

17

about citizen participation. When did you become aware

18

of this going on and how did you become aware other

19

than, obviously, maybe, your dad?

20
21

MR. SARASIN, JR.: This -- this meeting, the
planning process? Or this meeting -- this meeting --

22

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well --

23

MR. SARASIN, JR.: The planning process?

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The planning process and

25

today's meeting.
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MR. SARASIN, JR.: The planning process was
GPAC, I

2

brought to my attention at the time that G

3

believe, was deliberating, on -- on -- on their plan.

4

So at that point, that's when me and a number of other

5

people in and around our community got more involved in

6

the process. Because, at that point, there was Urban

7

boundaries designated for Waihee.

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Uh-huh.

9

MR. SARASIN, JR.: And anyone that knows

10

Waihee, that's been here for a long time, knows that

11

it's a small town and it's not Kahului, it's not Kihei.

12

You know, it's its own, you know, little town. So, you

13

know, at that point, it got a lot of people's ire, you

14

know, just because they -- they wanted Waihee to keep --

15

to keep its identity.

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Thank you.
So that's how you have been monitoring closely?

18

MR. SARASIN, JR.: Basically, yes.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Any

21

other questions? Okay. Seeing none -- none, thank you.

22

MR. SARASIN, JR.: Thank you.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Marla McManus.

24

She left some time ago. I'm just checking to see if

25

she's returned or not. Okay. Then Gregg Lundberg,
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okay, followed by Ed Thompson.

2

MR. LUNDBERG: Aloha, Mr. Chair, Members of

3

the Committee. My name's Gregg Lundberg, and I'm the

4

General Managers [sic] of the Westin Kaanapali Ocean

5

Resort and Villas up in Lahaina, on Maui. I appreciate

6

the opportunity to testify on the legislation and thank

7

you for your consideration. We commend the

8

extraordinary work of the County Council, the Planning

9

Department, and the Advisory Committee for developing

10

and devoting many hours of service to put together the

11

2030 Maui Island Plan. We understand the challenging

12

nature of this task and balance -- and the task to

13

balance the views and needs of many constituents

14

affected by this Plan. We are here before you today

15

representing a number of constituents who will be

16

covered by this Plan for the foreseeable future. We're

17

concerned with the current language in the Draft Plan

18

that discourages timeshare conversion and ownership.

19

The timeshare industry is one of the major

20

drivers in our state's hospitality market. Our two

21

timeshare resorts here on Maui employ hundreds of Maui

22

residents and are a significant source of revenue for

23

hundreds of vendors and small business owners. Our

24

resort has had high and consistent occupancy rates even

25

in these difficult times, and very high customer
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1

satisfaction. Through the maintenance fee payments of

2

our individual owners, significant funds are spent every

3

year on the upkeep of both resorts and on local events

4

and excursions. Our resorts offer both owners and

5

renters the amenities and types of units expected in

6

today's competitive tourism industry.

7

Hawaii must continue to compete aggressively

8

for this tourism dollar against other destination

9

markets that have upgraded their inventories.

10

Eliminating or discouraging the option to convert aged

11

and nonfunctioning hotel properties into vibrant

12

timeshare resorts is misplaced and ill-advised. For the

13

reasons -- for these reasons, we support amendments

14

offered by ARDA Hawaii and respectfully request the

15

Committee to make necessary changes to the MIP.

16

The two proposals that we support for ARDA are

17

to change the language to this: "Monitor the impact of

18

the conversion of hotel units to timeshare and

19

fractional ownership, and encourage the conversion of

20

unprofitable and aging hotel properties to timeshare as

21

an option to keep those properties operational." And,

22

second, "Monitor and manage the amount of impacts from

23

timeshares and fractional ownership on the community in

24

which we do business."

25

Thank you for your time.
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long have you been -- is it with the Westin?

5

MR. LUNDBERG: It is.

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: How long?

7

MR. LUNDBERG: Well, I first moved to Hawaii

8

in 1987, I worked for Hyatt Hotels for many years. I've

9

been with Westin since 2000, here on Maui since 2002.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And -- and before

10
11

that?
MR. LUNDBERG: I was with the Westin in

12
13

St. John and the U.S. Virgin Islands.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. All right. I know

14
15

that property well.

16

MR. LUNDBERG: I remember your name.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, other

18

questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you, then.
MR. LUNDBERG: Great. Thank you for your

19
20
21
22
23

time.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Ed Thompson,
followed by Harold Ramos [sic], or Ramos, [sic] Jr.
MR. THOMPSON: Good morning, Chair

24

Kaho'ohalahala -- it is still morning -- and Members of

25

the Committee. My name is Ed Thompson and I'm
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1

representing the American Resort Development

2

Association, the Hawaii Chapter of -- called ARDA

3

Hawaii, the local chapter of the National Timeshare

4

Trade Association.

5

I don't wanna repeat exactly what Gregg had

6

already said, but, as we've stated many times before in

7

previous meetings, ARDA

8

negative policy statements in the Draft Maui Island Plan

9

that says to discourage timeshare conversions and

ARDA is concerned with the

10

ownership. We are concerned that, for the next 20

11

years, Maui may choose to eliminate future timeshare

12

owners and development, which is an important segment

13

now of the island's visitor industry. And just to

14

continue on a little bit, timeshare allows Maui to have

15

a stable base of visitors to the island that is not

16

affected by instability and the economy.

17

In addition, hotel conversions that have taken

18

place on Maui in the past have allowed older hotel

19

properties to remain vital and vibrant and operational

20

by renovating and upgrading existing facilities and

21

allowing for a mix of timeshare owners and hotel

22

visitors on their property.

23

In the long run, ARDA believes that this will

24

keep many of our island residents employed and provide a

25

steady flow of tax dollars for the County.
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Again, I don't want to repeat what Gregg had

2

said, but we do have -- we have submitted suggested

3

language change in the MIP based upon the Maui Island

4

Plan matrix of October 2009. And we're confident that

5

the Planning Committee will consider all sides when it

6

comes to important issues affecting growth, historic and

7

cultural preservation, land use, and the industries that

8

make our island lifestyle viable and vibrant. We are

9

hopeful that the Committee will be receptive to a

10

variety of ideas and options to provide a balanced

11

roadmap for Maui's people.

12

Thank you very much.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Ed.

14

Members, question? Okay, seeing none --

15

MR. RAMES: Thank you.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- thank you.

17

Harold -- I may be saying it wrong. Is it --

18

MR. RAMES: Rames.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Rames, okay.

20

MR. RAMES: Hi. Good morning, Chair and

21

Members of the Planning Committee. My name is Harold

22

Rames, Jr. And I have been a operator engineer for the

23

past three years, and I been in the -- the mechanic

24

field for the past 13. I was laid off in March of 2009.

25

We have approximately 98 members on the bench today.
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1

And it doesn't look like it's gonna get better anytime

2

soon.

3

Today, you guys have on your agenda the

4

Infrastructure chapter of the Draft Maui Island Plan. I

5

think all Members would be very interested to review the

6

Infrastructure chapter because it would probably have

7

information on future work we could do, but it wasn't

8

available to the public. Did you guys -- did you guys

9

get a copy of the chapter -- chapter? On the County's

10

website, if you look at December 2009 version of the

11

Maui Island Plan, there is just a page with some notes

12

where the Infrastructure chapter is supposed to be and

13

some maps. When can we get a copy? And how -- how come

14

it's not available to us? It doesn't seem right that

15

we, the public, cannot review the chapter and give you

16

our comments.

17

I hope that the County and State departments

18

have provided you with their comments on the

19

Infrastructure section or that you will receive comments

20

from them. They are the ones who will -- who will have

21

the -- have to get the projects going and come to the

22

Council for money to build the projects.

23

I'm sure this isn't an easy job, but it makes

24

it even harder when you don't have the right tools.

25

Please don't forget the public in your review of the
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1

Draft Maui Island Plan. We want to be involved. Our

2

Members have participated in the process along the way,

3

and now the final approval rests with the Council. The

4

decisions you make in this Plan will affect us all and

5

will be with us for a long time.

6

Thank you.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

8

Members, questions? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, maybe we

9
10

need to, at this point today, explain about this

11

Infrastructure and when, if any, matrix is gonna be

12

given. I think the general public deserves it. If they

13

don't understand it, whatever, but I don't want this

14

hanging out here today.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Earlier, before

15
16

we started, the Chair had announced that I made

17

communications to the Planning Department to get some

18

clarification on why that document was not forthcoming

19

to this Committee. So, Department?

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: May they respond now?

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I've heard it too many

23

times.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Department.

25

MR. HUNT: The Director's report that was
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1

submitted to the Council back in October contains

2

Policies -- Goals, Actions, Policies regarding the

3

Infrastructure section. The narrative, or the text,

4

that precedes that was sent out to the agencies to ask

5

for their review. So that -- that part of the document

6

has not been brought to you yet. That -- that's a

7

legitimate criticism from the public. We -- we agree

8

with that. But to be precise in the criticism, the

9

Goals, Objectives and Policies have -- have been

10

available for review since October. And there is no --

11

when we have brought up the text to you folks, we have

12

not been changing the -- the policies -- the Goals and

13

Policies. So there's not anticipated to be any change

14

in those policies, but we understand the concerns from

15

the public regarding the lack of the narrative, the

16

background information. And, John, do you wanna add

17

anything to that?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As

18
19

Director Hunt noted, we are receiving comments from the

20

agencies. Our deadline for comment is actually today on

21

the Narrative section of the text, and would like to

22

incorporate as many of those comments into the Narrative

23

before we transmit it, which should occur in short

24

order.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Just for the
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

125

1

testifiers, so you understand that, that's the Planning

2

Department's explanation --

3

MR. RAMES: Yeah.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- for where this

5

section is. Okay?

6

MR. RAMES: Thank you.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair?

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, do you have

9

questions to --

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I got --

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- the testifier?

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I -- I -- I got a

13

question --

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- to his question.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This pie-in-the-sky

18

answer, when do you anticipate this'll be done so the

19

general public has an idea? And if you don't know, say

20

so. But let's not -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mr. Summers just

21
22

indicated that he -- it would be forthcoming.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: When?

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm not accepting

25

that.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: When?

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is there a better

3

answer?

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: When?

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mr. Summers?

6

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As

7

noted, the comment due date is today. And depending

8

if -- if the comments are extensive, it may take a

9

little longer. But our goal is to try to get it up at

10

the end of the week or early next week.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

12

MR. SUMMERS: As Director Hunt noted, the maps

13

and all the Goals, Objectives, Policies and Actions have

14

already been transmitted to this body.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any more

16

questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing none, thank

17

you. Okay. The next testifier is Bill Kamai, followed

18

by Willy Grieg.

19

MR. KAMAI: Aloha and good morning, Chairman

20

Kaho'ohalahala, Planning Committee Members. My name is

21

Bill Kamai. I am a service representative for the

22

Hawaii Carpenter's Union. I just wanted to make a few

23

comments regarding the Draft Maui Island Plan, and the

24

Housing element in particular.

25

What's been passed out before you is a matrix
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1

with some comments, color-coded comments, that -- if you

2

guys could follow along with me. I apologize for not

3

having a -- a legend included in that document, but the

4

yellow highlights means that it's a new regulation that

5

has to be adopted. The blue means that there's a new --

6

it's new plans and program that needs to be adopted as

7

well. The green is -- means there's a new government

8

entity. And the pink means that there's new staffing.

9

And that's just for the Housing element alone.
You guys are indeed going faster than our

10
11

planning group because our -- our planning group, made

12

up of planners, large landowners, developers, community

13

leaders and representatives from the different trade

14

unions on Maui, when we met initially, by the time we

15

was done, you guys already approved Population and

16

Heritage already. So we tried to jump ahead of you

17

folks. And that's why we're -- only have planning to

18

offer you now. Housing, as a matter of fact.
Again, I guess we were spoiled that -- the

19
20

snail's pace that the Planning Commission was going

21

through in approving this, coupled with the GPAC -- took

22

them two years to get to this level -- that you caught

23

everybody by surprise by going through it the way you

24

guys are. Imagine that, us hoping government would slow

25

down.
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010
1
2
3
4

128
CHAIR KAHO OHALAHALA: It's been brought to
.

our attention.
MR. KAMAI: I think we should put you guys in
charge of the building permit process, this group.

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yay.

6

(Laughter.)
MR. KAMAI: Half of us wouldn't -- wouldn't

8
9
10

need to be here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One for Bill.
MR. KAMAI: Anyway, if you take a look at the

11

handout that I gave you, the second page, Page 67,

12

there's one -- one thing I wanted to point out. Action

13

Number 4 under the Planning Commission recommendation,

14

it says to "revise the County's property tax rates to

15

make them more progressive," that's increased tax rates

16

as house values increases. And the Planning Director

17

recommends approval of that.

18

If you was to turn to the matrix, which

19

Mr. Hanzawa alluded to earlier in his testimony,

20

Appendix C, it -- it tells you how -- how that's gonna

21

come about. It says, review the County's property tax

22

rates to make -- "Revise the County's property tax rate

23

to make them more progressive, increase tax rates as

24

house values increase." And the participating agencies

25

is the Planning Department and the County Council,
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1

because the only people that are authorized to increase

2

property tax rates is -- is you folks. So upon adopting

3

this, that's an action that you guys has to be prepared

4

to do. That's just one example.

5

Another is on Page 69, that blue highlighted

6

area on the Director's recommendations. It says,

7

"Create an interagency team to help develop and

8

implement a comprehensive affordable housing strategy,

9

and to monitor and evaluate impediments to" develop --

10

"to the development of affordable housing." And if you

11

was to look at the appendix that coincides with that

12

particular item, it says that the Planning Department

13

would have to work with the Department of Housing and

14

Human Concerns.

15

So what Ms. Perreira alluded to earlier is

16

that there should be some representation from the

17

different departments, that they be allowed to comment

18

on things like this before you guys adopt it. It only

19

makes sense that if it is indeed doable, implementable,

20

when other agencies -- when it comes to Infrastructure,

21

there should be somebody from Parks, somebody from

22

Housing, somebody from Water, somebody from Public

23

Works. All of these different departments should offer

24

you folks comments and insights to really see if these

25

comments is really doable.
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Again, I apologize for getting this to you

2

folks so late. You guys are moving fast. It goes to

3

show how determined you are. But, then again, the

4

importance of what you guys are adopting and its

5

ramifications will indeed impact Maui residents for the

6

next 20 years.

7

Thank you.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Bill, just

9

before I go to questions, can -- at some point, can you

10

clarify your quote? Your -- your -- just so that we

11

understand what -- what you're -- you're providing for

12

us, yeah?
MR. KAMAI: No.

13
14

It's a secret. No. Okay.

Okay. Bear with me. Sorry.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. If you can --

16

MR. KAMAI: I neva include that.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You can send us -- just

18

give us something on paper.

19

MR. KAMAI: Okay.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: That was --

21

MR. KAMAI: No problem.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, okay. And,

23

Members --

24

MR. KAMAI: Thank you.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- questions? Go
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ahead, Member Johnson.

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And I think you

3

said green, but there isn't any green in here. Is that

4

correct?

5

MR. KAMAI: Yes. Not on --

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

7

MR. KAMAI: -- this one.

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Just wanted to

9
10

make sure. And I look forward to it through Chair
Kaho'ohalahala.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

12

MR. KAMAI: Just was checking if you guys was

13

listening.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa?

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. And thank

16

you, Bill, for being here this morning. I think it's

17

still morning. We're on the stroke of lunch hour here.

18

You know, we're hearing over and over and over, we're

19

seeing it in the newspaper, and it's been brought up

20

several times here today, about this, slow down, you

21

know. I wanna tell you that as an -- as a Member, I'm

22

having a hard time keeping up myself. Is there a

23

suggestion that you have for us about how we might do

24

this so that maybe more people will be happy with being

25

able to participate? Like if we're going into a new
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1

element, a new section, like we're gonna go today into

2

the Economic, you know, Diversification section, how

3

could -- could we or should we have handled that better

4

so that people like yourself would have had more time?

5

MR. KAMAI: Move the deadline. You gotta move

6

the deadline. You're trying to -- trying you guys' best

7

to get what you can in before Budget. And, you know, we

8

appreciate that, but something like this is just too

9

important to be held to -- I -- I believe it's October

10

29th deadline this year. It's too important. And that

11

you should have the different directors from the

12

different departments offering comments to see if indeed

13

that this, what you guys adopting, is implementable.

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, my understanding

15

is that, you know, some of these departments have

16

submitted comments. I think the frustration is that

17

most people are not privy to those prior to the review.

18

They go to the Department and the Department -- the

19

Planning Department, and they try to incorporate it in

20

the matrices that we're receiving. And I think the --

21

the matrix also being available early, so that you can

22

take a look at it and we can take a look at it at our

23

leisure, really helps. Because it gets put on our desk

24

and we sit down and we're trying to, you know, make

25

decisions and read. And we don't have time to study.
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1

You know, I'm the kind of person likes to do homework

2

before I go take the class. I think you're in the same

3

situation, that's what you're feeling.

4

MR. KAMAI: Yes. What I almost guarantee you

5

is that when you put one of those directors over there

6

and you tell him that he has to maintain a database on

7

families, on Maui's incomes, and the different

8

affordable categories, it'll include more staff. And

9

staff means more money. And that's not even the

10
11

Infrastructure portion of it. I guarantee you that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. My

12

concern is that when I hear this uncomfortable feeling

13

that people have with the process is that we don't wanna

14

spend all this time and all this money, and, at the very

15

end, not be able to accept it because the community's

16

not happy with it. So I think it's important that we

17

try and listen and respond to what you're telling us.

18

Thank you very much.

19

MR. KAMAI: You're welcome.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The Chair has comments,

21

but I'll hold them for after the testimony is completed.

22

Okay. Is there any other questions? Okay. Seeing

23

none, Bill, thanks.

24

MR. KAMAI: Thank you.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The next testifier is
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010
1

134

Willy Grieg, followed by Pam English.
MR. GRIEG: Hello, Councilmember Chair

2
3

Kaho'ohalahala. My name is Willy Grieg. I'm with

4

Operating -- Hawaii Operating Engineers, Local 3. I

5

just wanna comment on the whole process. Of course, you

6

guys heard it time and time again from all the rest of

7

the testimonies of being somewhat fast-tracked. You

8

know, another way to do it is maybe one element at a

9

time. I know the extension, and that would be longer to

10

review each item. Like I mentioned, the Infrastructure

11

won't be -- is supposedly due today. And it's,

12

obviously, being somewhat extended 'til next week. If

13

you can extend that. Then there's possibilities of

14

maybe extending the whole process itself to review one

15

element at a time. The extension itself would help

16

greatly. And I think more concerns -- or the concerns

17

of the public might be a lot more relieved to know that

18

you guys are reviewing the elements properly, which I'm

19

not saying you guys are not, but to take that time to do

20

SO.

21

The construction industry has taken a hit.

22

Whether it be union or non-union, for all of our people

23

around, I get the stories every day. At least a few a

24

week, I -- I should say, of the hardship that

25

everybody's enduring. Members that -- or individuals
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1

their self facing losing their houses or have lost their

2

house, that is -- that are living on the beaches at this

3

time. Their marriages are on the rocks of being

4

depleted, or has already. Their children are looking at

5

-- looking into crime and so on. You know, what effects

6

does this Plan have or will have on our families and our

7

members of the community, if not reviewed properly or in

8

a time -- you know, in a proper time, yeah, to review

9

every element?

10

Thank you.

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you.

13

Questions, Members? Okay, seeing none, mahalo. Pam

14

English, followed by Donald Brown.

15

MS. ENGLISH: Aloha, Chair and Members of the

16

Planning Committee. My name is Pam English, with Maui

17

Land and Pineapple Company.

18

Today's agenda is the continuation of

19

discussion on Chapter 4, Economic Development; Chapter

20

5, Housing; and Chapter 7, Land Use. I'll try and get

21

through my testimony on these three chapters, but may

22

not have time to finish, and hope will be given the

23

chance for further testimony, especially on Chapter 7.

24

Nevertheless, you have my written testimony on these

25

three chapters.
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First, a few specific policies in Chapter 4.

2

Number 344 currently states, "Cap the number and type of

3

visitor accommodations which can be permitted." And the

4

suggestion is to omit this item. Rationale: The Plan

5

currently speaks to requiring cumulative impact

6

assessments, developing comprehensive tracking systems

7

for all visitor accommodations, and minimizing negative

8

impacts from visitor accommodations on residential

9

communities, et cetera.

10

In an effort to improve the decision-making

11

for Land Use, these strategies are better policy than

12

capping, and will allow the free market to work

13

properly. If there is a cap, who will set the cap?

14

Agriculture, Item Number 347, currently

15

states, "Ensure that at least 85 percent of

16

locally-consumed fruits and vegetables and 30 percent of

17

all locally-consumed foods are grown on-island."

18

Suggested wording: "Strive for at least 85 percent of

19

locally-consumed fruits and consumed foods are grown

20

in-state." The rationale: Some fruits and vegetables

21

are better grown on different islands. Some agriculture

22

may be more economical with consolidated farm

23

operations. And every island may not wanna -- may not

24

wanna produce, say, for instance, strawberries. As a

25

matter of fact, on Friday, a 25-year lease was
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1

authorized for the Kula Vacuum Cooling Plant that

2

provides services statewide to farmers for both

3

interisland trade and export from the state. And it

4

will be hard to ensure; a better phrase may be "to

5

strive for."

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Excuse me, Ms. English.

7

I know that you submitted three separate written

8

documents for your testimony. So I think, to get the

9

best use of your time, instead of reading each one, if

10

you would just kinda help us by summarizing each of them

11

so we can take the time to go over them as you've

12

submitted. It's just a suggestion. Okay.

13

MS. ENGLISH: Thank you.

14

I'm on Chapter 4 still. Item Number 418, the

15

suggested wording would be to "encourage, where

16

feasible, government procurement." And the rationale

17

is, suggesting not to require the government to make

18

decisions that might not be in the best interest

19

physically -- fiscally for the constituents.

20

And I'm gonna move on. Economic Policies Map.

21

Finally, in this chapter, remember, Kapalua is a resort.

22

And we request consideration of amending the boundary on

23

the resort area shown on Map 4.1 [sic] to include the

24

entire boundary. The map delineates resort areas

25

described in the Plan including Kapalua Resort, but the
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1

map currently doesn't extend around the long-planned

2

Kapalua Mauka area. The Kapalua Mauka area has been

3

planned as an expansion of the resort for over 20 years.

4

And it's fully entitled for golf, resort-based

5

commercial, and accommodations that go with these

6

amenities such as primary or secondary homes and condos.

7

It is and will be a resort area no different from the

8

existing Kapalua Resort. Kapalua Mauka will provide for

9

the economic vitality to strengthen and ensure Kapalua

10

Resort of the future and currently meets the spirit and

11

intent of the Maui Island Resort area mapping. So we

12

would request that you support amending the map to

13

include the -- the boundaries of Kapalua Mauka.
I do have testimony on Chapter 5 and, also, on

14
15

Chapter 7. If I could be allowed to continue?

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. You're -- I'm --

17

I'm gonna give you the three minutes, you got some extra

18

time to finish, and that's why my caution was, to help

19

you, to try and get through all the three documents.

20

Okay.

21
22

MS. ENGLISH: I'll just do 5 and -- and,
hopefully, come back on 7.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

24

MS. ENGLISH: Thank you very much. In Chapter

25

5, Housing, I'd like to speak to affordable housing and
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1

the use of the term "perpetual." Legislation under

2

Chapter 2.96 of the Maui County Code addresses specific

3

requirements for affordable housing that maybe legally

4

conflict with the term "perpetual." 2.96 already states

5

that the rental housing be affordable for the life of

6

the unit, and for-sale housing be restricted for 25

7

years. Specific legisla -- terms of the legislation

8

should be left to legislation, where the language is

9

legally vetted. If you recall, when 2.96 was passed,

10

there was significant discussions and interests and

11

issues with the word "perpetuity." Attempting to create

12

duplicative policies that may legally conflict will

13

leave us in a situation of immobility. It may not be

14

clear which policy supersedes the other and leave a

15

state of confusion. The issue is not the longevity of

16

the affordable component of the housing, but the

17

inconsistency in County policy which may lead to

18

immobility. Have it one way or the other. In fact, on

19

Friday, this body passed updates to 2.96, and this

20

change was not mentioned. The suggestion is to submit,

21

quote, for long-term use, or, for very long-term use, or

22

delete the word "perpetuity" in each -- in each

23

sentence. And I've given you examples of the five or

24

six times that "perpetuity" has been used in --

25
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1

MS. ENGLISH: -- this chapter and --

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

3

MS. ENGLISH: -- fit in --

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The Chair's gonna ask

5

you to --

6

MS. ENGLISH: Thank you.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- complete your

8

testimony.
MS. ENGLISH: Thank you very much.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, do you

10
11

have any questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing

12

none, thank you. Donald Brown, to be followed by Gerald

13

Hokama [sic]. Donald -- Donald Brown? Okay. We'll

14

move on. Gerald Hokama [sic].
MR. HOKOANA: Mr. Chair, fellow Council

15
16

Members, my name is Gerald Hokoana. I'm the owner of

17

the property located -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, I'm sorry. I'm

18
19

reading this wrong. I said Hokama. Hokoana. I'm

20

sorry.

21

MR. HOKOANA: Yeah. Anyway, I own the

22

property located at 1980 Hana Highway, Maliko, TMK's

23

2-5-418. My property is State classified Ag, it's

24

Community Plan Ag, it's zoned Ag. I'm here to request

25

the Council's assistance in revising the N-1 Map of the
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1

Maui Island Plan removing the preservation designation

2

green from my property. I sent an e-mail detailing my

3

concerns to Councilman Molina. And he suggested that I

4

forward my e-mail to all of you, which I did on

5

Saturday. Hopefully, you all have had an opportunity to

6

read it.

7

Anyway, I gave testimony twice before the

8

Planning Commission, hoping to resolve this issue. I

9

tried working with the Long-Range Planning staff. And

10

I'm tired of getting the runaround. Hence, I'm here

11

today hoping to get help from you.

12

Anyway, you know, as -- in my last

13

communication with Mr. Napier, who's one of the

14

planners, you know, I -- he sent me a -- a map. And

15

maybe that's part of the problem, there's too many damn

16

maps. And the only access that I have, really, is to,

17

you know, go on the website. And I'm looking at this

18

map, and it shows this green coming into my property.

19

Then I'm told that, oh, that's because it's the roadway

20

right-of-way. So my response is, "So, what, I gotta get

21

a surveyor to delineate where my property begins and

22

where the right-of-way ends?"

23

The map that was sent to me clearly shows the

24

Preservation. Which, actually, by the way, originally

25

was Regional Park. They wanted to make Regional Park
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1

out of my property. So if you can sense that I'm a

2

little mad, I'm just tired of going round and round with

3

these guys. I want them to do something. I want them

4

to make the N-1 Map consistent with the map they sent

5

me.

6

And here's another thing: The rich guy with

7

the two-million-dollar house up at the point on the Hana

8

side of Maliko -- you know, when this thing originally

9

came out, there was a huge swath of Regional Park.

10

Okay. They amend the map. The guy at the top with the

11

million-dollar house, he's now out of the -- he's not

12

even in the -- the Preservation zone. Yet, I'm asking

13

these guys to -- to just correct this thing. And

14

there's huge consequences with this.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mr. Hokoana --

16

MR. HOKOANA: And I sent -- I sent -- the

17

e-mail that I sent to Councilman Molina, at his

18

suggestion, I forwarded to each and, you know, every one

19

of you.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Right. We --

21

MR. HOKOANA: But --

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We received your --

23
24
25

your e-mail.
MR. HOKOANA: Yeah. So that's why I'm here,
'cause I -- I'd like somebody to tell these people they
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need to make this change.
I have another comment. And that is with

2
3

regard to the -- this -- this Land Use element called

4

Sensitive Lands. They send me this thing, here's the

5

page, here's the nomenclature. My question to them at

6

the Planning Commission was, how does this thing impact

7

entitlement. Because if your State classification and

8

your Community Plan and your zoning is not consistent,

9

you're gonna have a problem getting a building permit.

10

And this is my kids' property now.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mr. Hokoana, can

11
12

you conclude?

13

MR. HOKOANA: That's it for me.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

15

Members, do you have any questions? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you,

16
17

Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Hokoana, for coming here and

18

sharing this concern with the body here. You -- you

19

mentioned you -- you spoke before -- was it the Planning

20

Commission, or was it, also, the -- the General --

21

MR. HOKOANA: I went to the --

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- Plan, the Budget

23
24
25

Committee?
MR. HOKOANA: I went to the -- I showed up at
the Planning Commission twice and I gave testimony.
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1

Mr. Hiranaga, one of the Commissioners, told me at the

2

end, he said, "You know, we've instructed the Planning

3

staff to correct this." Okay. So I sent a letter to

4

Director Hunt, certified. And he didn't even give me

5

the courtesy of a response. So then I had to call John

6

Summers to tell him, "Okay, what's up with this?" And

7

then we going back and forth, back and forth, and I

8

getting this, what I was -- characterize as lame

9

excuses, why they cannot just move this line.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Hokoana,

11

when we get to that part of the Maui Island Plan, we'll

12

certainly address it. And we'll make sure -- we'll --

13

you know, you can work with my office, and we'll make

14

sure you can come out and testify --

15

MR. HOKOANA: Thank you.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- when we get to that

17
18

part of the Plan. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any further

19

questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you. Dick Mayer,

20

followed by Doug Spencer.

21

MR. MAYER: I didn't realize I was next.

22

Okay. I personally didn't write up any testimony. I

23

just wanted to listen to people tell you -- maybe

24

explain some of the -- give you some answers to some of

25

the questions you've been asking, at least from my
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1

perspective. And I'll try to do this in -- more or

2

less, in the order in which the things came up.
Appendix C was mentioned earlier on and the

3
4

high cost of CIP infrastructure, something I've

5

mentioned before. And I hope the implication of that is

6

that you develop very effective public/private cost

7

sharing. It was mentioned by Mr. Hanzawa, Kaanapali

8

2020. And I would hope that when they're concerned

9

about all those costs that they, if they wanna put in

10

their developments, would be willing to pay for some of

11

those costs rather than throwing it onto the private

12

sector.

13

With regard to the Ohana Kai project, you

14

heard many people, including Mr. Spencer, testify. That

15

whole thing about what Mr. -- all -- all that discussion

16

about Ohana Kai, as well as this last speaker,

17

Mr. Hokoana was talking about, all belong, really, in

18

the Directed Growth section and really is not even

19

agendized for today. So it probably should be delayed.

20

If you hear more discussions coming over the next few

21

weeks about various land developments, that all belongs

22

in the Directed Growth section, and not this section.

23
24
25

And his reference to the N-1 Map, it's -actually, his property is on the N-2 Map.
With regard to the comments made by somebody
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1

from the tourist industry regarding rental cars, and the

2

suggestion in the Plan saying that they should be in

3

West and South Maui, I think that's a very wise decision

4

to do that. Our idea was that we don't wanna spend more

5

and more and more money on transporting people on

6

highways to the west side and to the south side, but,

7

rather, set up an efficient transport system, either

8

through buses or limos or vans, or whatever, to get

9

people from the airport over to the west and south side

10

where maybe, after a day or two of being here, they then

11

would rent the cars over in that location.

12

The concern of the -- is really a conflict

13

within the State Department of Transportation. The

14

State Department of Transportation doesn't have the

15

money right now to tran -- to build the highways, like

16

the Pali to the Puamana Highway, and improve that

17

highway. So we tried to get as few people using that

18

highway as possible and have a more efficient system.

19

The DOT airport people are concerned about

20

losing revenue, that if the rent-a-cars move over to the

21

west side, they will lose a lot of revenue. So there's

22

a conflict there. And be con -- be aware of that.

23

As far as the GPAC Members not having

24

representation on the -- of the tourism perspective, we

25

didn't select the Members of the GPAC. That was
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1

selected by the Mayor and the Council. So it's not

2

really our fault that there wasn't anybody particularly.

3

But I would say, in defense of the -- of the GPAC, we

4

were very concerned about the tourism industry

5

perspective. And we did a lot that we tried to do to --

6

to bolster up the -- the quality of the tourist

7

industry, to make sure that we would remain over the

8

next 20 years a high quality resort, to be able to

9

retain tourism coming -- tourist coming here,

10

maintaining a high status, and to prevent the

11

deterioration of the industry by putting in certain

12

suggestions into the items.
As far as the matrices, I, too, would have

13
14

loved to have been able to come today to the meeting and

15

not just have the -- the matrix that was in the October

16

website put up there, but, rather, the ones with the

17

numbers that you have, 301, 302, 303, so that the public

18

can make comments. That's, I think, what people are

19

looking for. And I'm hoping that you will put those up

20

on the website as you -- as you get -- as soon as you

21

get them and -- and that would be -- make it much more

22

efficient for you to listen to testimony as well as the

23

general public to be able to present the testimony to

24

you.

25

Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

1
2

Members, any questions for the testifier? Okay. Member

3

Nishiki?

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Some

5

clarification in regards to the question that was raised

6

about transportation corridors.

7

MR. MAYER: Yes.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Specifically in that

9

Maalaea area and what was represented by the developer

10

as far as a drainage sump, I -- I would think -- and

11

what the GPAC had in mind when you talk about a

12

transportation corridor.

13

MR. MAYER: We -- we envisioned a

14

transportation corridor. And I think Tom Cannon, who's

15

the Chair of our GPAC, will be also speaking about

16

transportation corridors. We put a map out that would

17

have it going through that area. And I think the

18

designation that Mr. Spencer mentioned, the hundred-foot

19

corridor is really a drainage basin that he wants to do.

20

And he says, well, that -- you guys could use that for

21

the transportation corridor. And I think it should be

22

really up to the County Council and the Planning

23

Department, the Public Works, to look what would be the

24

exact best alignment. The GPAC did not have the

25

expertise to lay out, you know, exact lines. But a
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1

hundred-foot section along the highway in a drainage

2

basin is probably not the selection -- selected -- the

3

best area. And it probably would cross that Ohana Kai

4

property as -- as it makes -- makes its way towards

5

the -- the -- the tunnel, in that direction. So it's --

6

i t something that I don't think the -- that his

7

designation, saying, well, you can have the -- our --

8

our -- our basin there is really adequate.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros?

11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

12

And -- and, Mr. Mayer, thank you, as always. I have a

13

lot of questions, but I'm just gonna limit it to one.

14

And -- and that -- that's the testimony that was given

15

by the representative from Maui Land and Pine. And I'll

16

quote the paragraph, and you give me an answer what the

17

thinking was when GPAC developed this. "Kapalua is a

18

resort. We request consideration amending the boundary

19

of the resort area shown on Map 4-1 to include the

20

entire boundary of Project District 2, Kapalua Mauka, in

21

this designation. This map delineates the resort areas

22

described in the Plan, including Kapalua Resort, but the

23

map does not currently extend around the planned Kapalua

24

Mauka area." Can -- can you address this and -- and

25

tell me why it didn't extend around that area?
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MR. MAYER: I believe it does. I

1
2

at least the -- I think the -- the goal, as you'll see,

3

on the Kapalua Resort area, the Urban Growth Boundary

4

goes up and around that area, to include that whole area

5

on there. And I -- so I -- now, there may be a separate

6

map for the resort, which -- which may be different.

7

But I thought the entire -- that entire Kapalua Mauka

8

property, I believe, is within the Urban Growth Boundary

9

area. So there is latitude within that area to do

10

certain things. I don't know if there's a conflict.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. I think their

11
12

question was, why didn't it extend around that area as

13

the resort area such as -MR. MAYER: I -- I'd have to see the map

14
15

and --

16

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Well --

17

MR. MAYER: -- check it over.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, that --

19

MR. MAYER: Yeah.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: -- you remember some

21
22

part of that.
MR. MAYER: Yeah. It -- it's within the Urban

23

Growth Boundary. And I don't know if it's -- if -- if

24

the -- if there's a separate map for the resort area.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you,
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Mr. Mayer. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any
other questions? Okay. Seeing none --

4

MR. MAYER: Thank you.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- thank you. Doug

6

Spencer, followed by Liza Pierce.

7

MR. D. SPENCER: Thank you, Chairman, Members

8

of the Committee. My name is Doug Spencer. My parents

9

are Jesse and Joy Spencer. I usually try to stay in the

10

background, but my dad's getting older, as you guys can

11

see, his hearing is getting worse, he can't understand a

12

lot of the questions, and his eyesight is starting to go

13

as well. I'm coming here, obviously, to speak in

14

support of my parents and their project they wanna do.

15

My parents come from a working family

16

background. They identify with working people. My mom

17

is one of nine children of a Baptist minister in a

18

little farming community in Kentucky. My dad is the son

19

of a plasterer who earned a living for his family by the

20

sweat of his brow. And so that's why you don't see them

21

building big, expensive projects. They're working

22

people, build homes for working people. They don't do

23

it to make a lot of money. They've worked hard all

24

their lives.

25

And we all here want affordable housing. Not
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1

a single person on the Island of Maui will say they

2

don't want affordable housing. Everybody here wants

3

jobs, we all want jobs, particularly right now.

4

And in response to Councilman Nishiki, I don't

5

know if my dad totally understood your question about

6

local workers, but, yes, he hires local workers. We

7

don't bring in mainland companies to do our work. The

8

only time we have is when there was a shortage of

9

workers, when the construction boom was going on, he

10

brought in a family of concrete masons to come and help

11

out with concrete work. But he hires local people. He

12

provides homes for local people.

13

And so I'm just coming here to tell you that

14

this is a very good project. Yes, there's some valid

15

concerns that can be dealt with in the planning process

16

with regards to traffic and sewage and water. Those can

17

all be dealt with in the planning process. But this is

18

a good project, a very good project for the people of

19

Maui. And it's gonna provide a very good tax base for

20

the County of Maui, for real property taxes, which is

21

gonna help our economic situation.

22

In response to Councilman -- Councilperson

23

Johnson's concern about foreclosures, providing jobs is

24

gonna prevent foreclosures. And I can guarantee you

25

that the number of foreclosures will be less if this
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

153

1

project is approved than if it were not approved. So

2

there's a lot of benefits to this project, the concerns

3

which people talk about can be dealt with. We've always

4

dealt with concerns. My dad went to the Maalaea

5

Community Association and told them, "We will work with

6

you to allow you to put your sewage into our sewage

7

treatment facility as long as you pay a pro rata share

8

what that's gonna cost. We'll work with you to deal

9

with your problem." So my parents have always reached

10

out to the community. And in ways that many of you

11

don't even know about, but they've reached out to help

12

people.

13

And so I would just urge you to consider all

14

that as we go through this planning process. Because

15

we're here for one reason only, is for this project.

16

This whole GPAC thing and all is very confusing to many

17

of us. Okay. It really is. But we're here for this

18

one project. And we will continue to come here and

19

express our desires to you.

20
21
22

And I thank you guys very much for giving us
the time to talk to you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

23

Members, questions? Okay. Seeing none, Liza Pierce,

24

followed by Tom Cannon.

25

MS. PIERCE: Good -- I think it's afternoon
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1

now. My name is Liza Pierce. And I am testifying for

2

myself, but, as a disclosure, I want you to know that

3

I'm also an employee of Spencer Homes. I have been with

4

Spencer Homes for 12 years now. And it's been a

5

pleasure working with them and for them. And I came

6

here to testify as a citizen of Maui. And Mr. Spencer

7

didn't even know that I would be testifying today.

8

did this on my own.

9

And so we have heard already a lot of

10

testimony about the needs for affordable housing and how

11

they support Ohana Kai because of that, and, also,

12

testimonies about employment. What I would like to

13

touch is the issue of sustainability and agriculture.

14

And I know that's a sensitive one in this particular

15

project, and that's why it's recommended that it's not

16

be included in the Maui Island Plan. And for me, I am a

17

-- an advocate for sustainability. And I have Filipino

18

blood in me. I'd like to plant. I'd like to garden. I

19

would like to grow my own tomatoes and eggplants, you

20

know. And I have a value. I would like to teach my

21

kids to know the importance of agriculture and farming

22

and sustainability. I'm all for that. And you as a

23

Council Member, I understand the struggle that you would

24

have facing this issue of affordability and, you know,

25

agriculture and sustainability all together. You know,
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1

that -- that would be a struggle for you as much as it

2

was a struggle for me, being an employee, you know, a

3

loyal employee of Spencer Homes. And I had to deal with

4

that. But in reality, there really is a need for

5

affordable homes. And there is no perfect project, but

6

this project is, you know, as close to perfect, you

7

know, as -- it's a good project and it's workable.

8
9

And so my recommendation is work with the
developer in how we can work hand-in-hand, you know,

10

the -- the sustainability, the passion for

11

sustainability and agriculture, and also meet the needs

12

of affordable homes.

13

I was pleasantly surprised when Mr. Spencer

14

mentioned earlier about, you know, back yard gardening

15

and, also, about maybe a community garden within the

16

subdivision that can be incorporated in there. These

17

are just possibilities that can be worked with instead

18

of just saying "no" to the Ohana Kai and take it out of

19

that Project District, that maybe we can work together

20

and come up with a better solution and put it back in

21

that Maui Island Plan.

22

Thank you for the opportunity.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Liza.

24
25

Members, questions? Okay, thank you. Tom Cannon.
MR. CANNON: Good afternoon, Chairman
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1

Kaho'ohalahala and Committee Members. I'm Tom Cannon,

2

Maui-born architect and land planner, and Chairman of

3

the Maui Island General Plan Advisory Committee, or

4

GPAC. The Vision Statement in our GPAC Countywide

5

Policy Plan sees Maui as an innovative model of

6

sustainable island living. Our very first policy goal

7

states, "Maui County's native ecology, natural

8

resources, and distinctive open spaces will be

9

preserved, managed and cared for in perpetuity." If we

10

truly want to achieve this vision and goal, we need to

11

address Maui's people-moving issues and traffic now.

12

When renowned planner and architect Andres Duany was on

13

Maui, he said that, in his experience, as soon as you

14

build bigger, wider roads, they become filled up and

15

you're back where you started, except worse.

16

In the 20-year timeframe of our new General

17

Plan, it's almost inevitable that Maui will be needing

18

freeways unless we have a viable alternative. And if we

19

build freeways, we will fill them up.

20

In the spirit of the GPAC's Vision Statement,

21

the Transit Investigative Committee proposes a public

22

transportation system utilizing energy-efficient trains

23

with routes that are, for the most part, separate from

24

the highway system. Being away from the highway allows

25

the route to be much more direct, which saves money
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1

while also providing a path away from dangerous roads

2

for joggers, bikers, walkers and horses. The idea is to

3

maintain the self-separation between people and

4

automobiles.

5

Going across ag land or open space also saves

6

big money. The system would be raised so as not to

7

divide land and land uses supporting our open space goal

8

by allowing additional land uses, like Agriculture,

9

underneath the system. It would also use energy at

10

least three times more efficiently than a car, moving

11

people with the least power cost per-person mile. It

12

would comply fully with GPAC's goals and objectives and

13

be powered with renewable-generated electricity. It

14

would create no friction in its movement, minimizing

15

noise and lowering maintenance and operating costs. It

16

would have a people-moving capacity of six to eight

17

lanes of highway to move as comfortably around Maui's

18

distant communities with no seatbelts required.

19

A raised people-mover allows the land below to

20

remain un-urbanized, unlike highways, which tend to

21

invite roadside sprawl and not so smart growth.

22
23
24
25

I'm gonna skip ahead here, but you can read my
entire testimony in your e-mail.
Presently, the Federal Government is trying to
stimulate the economy by assisting local governments in
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1

producing energy-efficient publics [sic] projects.

2

Hawaii now has two U.S. senators with considerable

3

seniority and pull. In order to stand the best chance

4

of getting significant Federal assistance, we must act

5

now. To achieve our goals, we must think big and truly

6

believe that Maui is the best island in the world and

7

deserves this timely opportunity to keep it that way.

8
9

If we falter at this point and follow Oahu's
lead, we will rob future generations of a significant --

10

significant opportunity. Consider the benefits and the

11

onetime opportunity we have now.

12

For ourselves and for future generations, we

13

must start now with the proposed non-motor vehicle

14

transit corridors in our Maui Island Plan. The detailed

15

advisory routes delineated by GPAC's Traffic

16

Investigative Committee, using the County GIS system,

17

were accepted by GCAP

18

of 15 to one in the final hour of our last meeting,

19

along with a statement saying these corridors are

20

intended for non-motor vehicle transporta -- transport

21

systems that will be determined by future studies, and,

22

where appropriate, pedestrian walkways, trails, bicycle

23

paths, equestrian trails, community gardens, commercial

24

plant nurseries, and utility passageways. A copy of

25

this map is attached for your review to my -- my

G

GPAC as a whole in a vote
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1

testimony. And it's also right there on the -- on the

2

top upper right corner.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Tom?

4

MR. CANNON: Yeah.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Can you conclude?

6

MR. CANNON: Yeah. Thank you. You can read

7

when you back get to your offices.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

8
9

Members, questions for the testifier? Okay.

10

MR. CANNON: Thanks a lot.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Seeing none, okay.

12

Mr. Cannon was our last -- last signed testifier. Is

13

there anyone else here who has not testified today that

14

would like to testify? If you would please come

15

forward. Okay.
MS. NISHIKI: Good morning. I'm Kai Nishiki.

16
17

I'm testifying as a individual. I was here and heard

18

testimony earlier about the issue of big box stores and

19

the General Plan. And I think that the public should

20

know that there's nothing in the General Plan that will

21

be prohibiting any sorts of stores from opening. And it

22

also does not shut down any of our current choices that

23

we have.

24
25

And I think that our Mayor's latest campaign
about us having choices and to think locally is very
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1

wise, especially right now. We can all see that there's

2

the multiplier effect of making a choice to buy local.

3

And it's really important to think about that

4

community-based businesses are a huge part of thinking

5

local and making sure that the people here have choices

6

and that we're actually supporting an economy that will

7

keep the money that we spend here on our islands. And

8

right now, there's nothing more important. We have to

9

make choices to support our -- our families and our

10

communities and the endeavors that they are making to

11

really make a living right now. And there's lots of

12

companies out there who are entrepreneurs and they're

13

making their -- their own products and they're trying to

14

sell them. And these are the things that we have to be

15

supporting. It supports our families. It supports our

16

communities. And that's where we have to be looking at

17

towards the future.

18

So, please, everyone know that the General

19

Plan gives you all the choices that you need. We have

20

Costco and Walmart and Kmart. And they're not going

21

anywhere. You can shop there, have fun shopping there.

22

But let's make a -- make a decision, make a choice to

23

really support our local businesses and our

24

entrepreneurs and all of the work that they put into our

25

communities and our businesses.
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1

Thank you.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any

3

questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing none, then,

4

thank you.

5

MS. NISHIKI: Thank you.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is there anyone

7

else here that would like to testify that hasn't

8

testified? Okay. If there's no objections, then,

9

Members, the Chair's gonna close public testimony.

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

11

...END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And at this

13

point in time, the Chair would like to recess and

14

reconvene our meeting at 2:15. Okay. So this meeting

15

stands in recess until 2:15 today. ...(gavel)...

16

RECESS:

17

RECONVENE: 2:22 p.m.

18

12:39 p.m.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:

...(gavel)... Okay.

19

Good afternoon, Members. The Chair would like to

20

reconvene our Planning Committee meeting. Okay. It's

21

-- it's been a -- already a very long day, but I expect

22

us to -- to keep moving along. Okay.

23

Before we begin, Members, the last time we had

24

our last Planning Committee meeting, that was February

25

12th, we spent a lot of time talking about process.
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1

Okay. Since that discussion, I have asked Staff to

2

conduct the research on the Sunshine Law and the rules

3

of the Council and Robert's Rules of Order. I have

4

concluded that our established practice of approving

5

legislative material by a motion, a second, and the

6

recorded yeas and nays, is most consistent with

7

established practice and policies.
The concern was raised that the recorded votes

8

9

locks in the Member or the Committee to a set position

10

too early in the process. And this is not the case.

11

Okay. Deliberations in Committee provide unlimited

12

opportunity for reconsideration. I have announced

13

repeatedly that we will be returning to the previously

14

considered chapters before the Committee makes its final

15

recommendations, so -- and our meeting agendas continue

16

to list all previously considered chapters to make it

17

clear that they are still up for consideration.
So what I would appreciate is that the

18
19

Committee adheres to the previously established standard

20

that we began with in the General Policy Plan and began

21

with in this Maui Island Plan, so -- that's just my

22

presentation to all of you because of our last meeting.

23

Okay.
So at this time, comments? Go ahead, Member

24
25

Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very

2

much. Just a question. In regards to this unlimited

3

opportunity for reconsideration on the Committee level,

4

are we going to also follow the Robert's Rule that the

5

prevailing side has to make the motion to reconsider?

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You know, we had one --

7

one incident of that in -- in our process. And, no, I

8

don't wanna stick to that kind of rigidness. The main

9

thing that I would like to get accomplished is that we

10

make some decisions along the way that help us to see

11

the matrix and the changes that we would like to

12

propose. If you wanna go back to them, then that is

13

what the Chair is saying, that this allows us to go back

14

and revisit the matrix, just by looking at what you

15

wanna consider in -- in light of what has already been

16

done and, also, if you wanna continue to make further

17

changes along the way. But -- so the answer to your

18

question is that I know we had the one challenge here,

19

but the Chair doesn't wanna make that become the -- the

20

rule of order in terms of trying to prevent someone from

21

bringing back an -- an item, if that's what your concern

22

would be, yeah.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, Chair, my concern

24

is that, you know, we're kind of making decisions on the

25

fly. And until we've looked at the whole thing, there
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1

may even be things that are contradictory. And then

2

when we go back and look at it again, we may want to

3

reword, change, you know, whatever.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So I wanna make sure

6

that we're not locked into anything.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Because, otherwise,

9
10

we're gonna have to take a whole lot more time to make
decisions.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. And then I -- I

11
12

-- I think that the process that we've been moving in

13

was to help us to get a clear view of the whole

14

document. And we don't have that when we don't make any

15

-- any recommendations, you know, whatsoever. So unless

16

we take that step, then we will have nothing to really

17

compare to or review or look. And in the -- in the

18

process of making these kinds of changes, additions,

19

deletions, the Staff and the Department will be looking

20

now to compare them against consistency or inconsistency

21

so that we can come back to visit those things if that's

22

found. So -- so it's really contingent on us moving

23

forward.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think we're saying the
same thing. I just wanna be sure we're not locked into
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1

what we're deciding because, until we see the whole

2

thing and can compare all of it, it's very, very

3

difficult.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson?

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And I think that

6

you were very responsive last time because people had a

7

greater comfort level when we were just doing things by

8

consensus, which, by the nature of that action, I think,

9

addresses some of the -- the legality of Robert's Rules,

10

because, much as we do in Budget, we'll go through and

11

we'll state consensus. And so that, I think, is a

12

really good direction. And I do appreciate the fact,

13

Mr. Chair, that what you've done is you've listened

14

repeatedly to the commentary that people have made. I

15

think you have responded to it. I think that we, as

16

Committee Members, need to support these efforts. And

17

as much as I -- I mean, don't get me wrong, I love to

18

hear from the public, but if they could focus in, and if

19

there's something that they're unclear about, if they

20

could help us, instead of just being critical of the

21

process that we're using, and hearing that same kind of

22

testimony time after time. I would prefer that what we

23

do is, if there are areas that they have specific

24

concerns in, that, in advance, because they kinda know

25

where we're going, let them get ahead of the game and
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1

give us direction about maybe paying particular

2

attention to things that are already in the Plan.

3

Because that plan's been out there for a while. So if

4

they have concerns about that, in advance of our getting

5

there, please, if we could just focus in on those

6

things, I think it would help us to do our job.

7

welcome the comments of the public, but I think that

8

what we have to do is actually give them an opportunity

9

to focus in advance or tell us where to focus our -- our

10
11

areas, you know, that they have concerns with already.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair just wants

12

to clarify, Member Baisa, that when a new agenda is

13

posted, a reconsideration motion isn't necessary, you

14

know, to go back to the previous, because we're -- we're

15

posting all of it. So we don't need to have another

16

motion to go back. If you wanna revisit, you're free to

17

revisit at any time. Okay. The things that we are

18

working through and we're -- we're proceeding and trying

19

to get through, if you wanna go back and revisit that,

20

there -- there is no need for a -- a motion to go back.

21

You just need to ask for a reconsideration.

22

COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Maybe we should stop

23

talking. The more we talk, the more confusing it gets.

24

When we talk about the posted agenda, okay, the posted

25

agenda for today is these four elements that we're
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looking at. We already -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The entire -- the

2
3

entire bill.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it's the entire

4
5
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thing.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So we can go back to

8

Population now, we can go back to Natural Hazards now,

9

Culture now, not a problem?

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The only reason why we

11

put the elements is to let the -- the public know that

12

we're gonna try and -- and get through these sections of

13

the entire bill. The entire bill is posted. Okay. So

14

-- so as to let them know that these are the --

15

comfortably, what we would think that we can try to get

16

through. But it's not tying it to that, so -- there's

17

no other way to do it except that we just leave it open

18

and say the whole bill, you know, and then -- and then

19

get people to come to testify on every part of it. But

20

we're trying to at least let them know that we're gonna

21

try to deal with these elements. So if you have comment

22

on these elements, it would be, I would think, for the

23

general public, better for them to come at a time when

24

we're gonna try to meet and -- and have those

25

discussions than try to just leave it as an open-ended
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1

Bill 9, you know, anything, anytime, you know. So

2

that's the reason for that. That's why it's still Bill

3

9, you know, the entire bill. I'm sorry. And then --

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What I thought we were

5

going to do was move forward and then, for pass two, we

6

would come back to like Population and then, in an

7

orderly fashion, say, okay, we're at Population, any

8

changes we wanna make in what we agreed to, and then

9

we'd deal with that. Because if we're going back and

10

forth, it's gonna be very confusing. And you're gonna

11

have a hard time going forward.

12

One of the comments I received during the

13

recess was from one of the testifiers who's been here a

14

lot. And it was suggested that, when we agendize, like

15

today, four elements, that's why we had so much

16

testimony that was so varied. Because, somehow, the

17

word got out that we were gonna review the developments

18

today. And so a lot of people came with that in mind.

19

So that's something we might wanna think about, too. We

20

need to be realistic. We know we cannot do four

21

elements in one day, just no way. I mean, today, if we

22

get through Economic Development, I think we're lucky.

23

But I think this is a process we're learning as we're

24

doing. And I think people forget that this is the first

25

time this County is going through this process. And
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1

we're learning each time we do it. We learned from the

2

GPAC, we learned from the Planning Commission, and now

3

we're learning as we do it, too. So, anyway, let's get

4

on with it.

5

CHAIR KAHO OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, do you
.

6

have any other questions? Okay. You understand how the

7

-- the -- the Chair is gonna proceed?

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Where we

10

would like to begin today, if you can turn to your

11

summary -- your binders, we're going to begin with the

12

Narrative section on Economic Development that begins

13

with the Tourism section, which is 4-7. And we're

14

looking at the Narrative section of 4-7 that ends at

15

about the top of the page of 4-10.

16
17
18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I thought we went -- so
we've gone through the others?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So what the

19

Chair's -- is going to do is entertain a motion to adopt

20

the Narrative section here on Page 4-7 to 4-10.

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And before I do

22

that, Mr. Chair, just to let everyone know, we did get

23

the -- we did get from 4th -- 4.1 [sic] through 4-6,

24

that's correct.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes. We're
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continuing -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: From the previous time,

2
3

okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- from where we

4
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last -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. All right.

6
7

Mr. Chair, I move that the section from 4-7 through

8

4-10, in the middle of the page, be adopted.

9

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Been moved and

11

seconded to adopt the Narrative section of the Tourism

12

within the Economic Development, Page 4-7 to 4-10.

13

Okay. Now, discussion on this? Okay. Go ahead, Member

14

Baisa.

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very

16

much, Chair. In that -- in that Narrative, where we

17

talk about the Challenges and Opportunities, we had a

18

recommendation which I think is a good one, and that was

19

that the statistics quoted by the State Socio-Economic

20

Forecast are updated and that we might want to delete

21

that second paragraph.

22
23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. You wanna give
us a -- a -- a page? You're looking at 4 dash --

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 4-8.

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 4-8.
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1

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And second --

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Down at the bottom.

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Just make a motion.

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. In fact, I move

5

to delete that paragraph.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair,

6
7

for discussion purposes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa,

8
9

just help me identify which -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If you look at the --

10
11

the purple line that says Challenges and

12

Opportunities --

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- do you see that?

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The second paragraph.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Got it. Okay.

18

Moved by Member Baisa, seconded by Member Victorino to

19

delete the second paragraph under the Challenges and

20

Opportunities section. Okay. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The reason being, of

21
22

course, that we all know that this situation has changed

23

a lot and that we don't have that many visitors of Maui

24

anymore.

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
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1

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member --

2

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Could we have the

3

Department comment on that removal and if there's any

4

possible impact to this -- to this part of the section,

5

please?

6
7
8
9
10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department,
comments?
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The Hotel
and Lodging Association handed out some comments where
they have also suggested that they add --

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.

12

MR. HUNT: -- or include the following

13

language: "Visitor industry statistics have been in a

14

steady decline since the economic crisis that began in

15

2008. The goal of the visitor industry should continue

16

to promote increased visitor revenue and attract

17

higher-spending visitors."

18

We -- we think that even though some of this

19

data may be outdated, it does give a -- a -- a picture

20

of the future. And perhaps rather than delete that,

21

just add the language from the Hotel Association.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa?

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I can live with that.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department, do

25

you want to just restate that section -- that sentence
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or --

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What I --

3

MR. HUNT: You should --

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What I can -- what I can

5

do, Chair, is, I'll withdraw my motion and restate it.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead.

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, withdraw my

8

second so she restates the motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead, Member

9
10

Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I would like to

11
12

move that the following language, "Visitor industry

13

statistics have been in a steady decline since the

14

economic crisis that began in 2008. The goal of the

15

visitor industry should continue to promote increased

16

visitor revenue and attract higher-spending visitors,"

17

that be inserted at the end of that second paragraph.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second for

18
19

discussion purposes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

20
21

Baisa, seconded by Member Victorino to insert that

22

statement.

23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That would be

24

inserted, Mr. Chair, if I not mistaken, right after the

25

sentence, "Stated objectives, increased visitor revenues
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1

primarily through increasing visitor spending?"

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct.

4

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that where it

5

would go?

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct. Yes.

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. Because the

8

board's not up right now, so I can't -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I'm gonna David

10
11

to --

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's correct.

13

MR. RAATZ: Mr. Chair, we have the policy

14

matrices ready to be displayed. We don't have the text

15

ready to be displayed, but we're making notes of -- of

16

the motions to attach.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you,

17
18

Staff. Okay. Members, then, discussion on the -- the

19

language presented by Member Baisa? Go ahead, Member

20

Johnson.

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You know, we didn't have

22

a chance to really discuss this, and I didn't wanna get

23

into it with the testifiers, but, anyway, while I

24

recognize the importance of increasing revenue, is that

25

really all that we're focused on in the visitor
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

175

1

industry? Because I look at people that stay at

2

Kaanapali Beach Hotel, for example. They may not

3

actually expend more money here than -- than other

4

people because, you know, the hotel rates and everything

5

maybe are not as high. But my preference would be to --

6

to look at, you know, we can promote increased visitor

7

revenue, but attract visitors who are sensitive to the

8

needs of the community and who help to stabilize the

9

economic sustainability or viability of the industry.

10

Because, to me, that's more important, to sustain the

11

industry so that it -- we don't overdevelop it. And

12

just simply attracting people who are gonna spend more

13

money doesn't necessarily equate, in my view, to the end

14

result that the General Plan Advisory Committee wanted.

15

Because they were very clear about the quality of the

16

visitor industry, the quality of the visitors that come

17

here, and that they are sensitive to the needs of the

18

local community. So for me, I just have a little bit of

19

a problem with just saying it's a bottom line. For me,

20

it's not just a bottom line. And particularly when you

21

raise the issue of cultural sensitivity, where there's

22

somehow a disconnect between a host culture and maybe

23

even some of the experiences that people have here. So

24

if you're asking me to vote on that verbiage that's in

25

there, I'm not gonna support it because I don't agree
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with it, but that's just me. So -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You know, the process

2
3

that's before you is so you can amend that language.

4

We've been doing it by withdrawing the suggestions and

5

trying to refine the language. But we're in --

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Well --

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- discussion at this

8

point in time.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Well, you know, I

9
10

would just like it hear from other people what their

11

thoughts are about what I just stated before I make any

12

motions.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa?

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand what Member

15

Johnson is trying to say, but this is, of course, the

16

Economic Development section. And being that we are in

17

this horrible income situation we are right now, of

18

course increased visitor spending is very, very

19

important to us. And I think that, throughout this

20

Plan, we have many, many references and safeguards in

21

regard to cultural awareness and preserving the culture

22

and preserving the environment. And, you know, this

23

Plan is really, in my opinion, very well-rounded. And

24

at the moment, we're focused on the economics. And so

25

I'm comfortable with it.
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What the Maui Hotel Association said was the

1
2

Island Plan forecast was done at a time when the visitor

3

industry was experiencing increased occupancies and

4

higher visitor spending. We now suffer with low

5

occupancies and lower visitor spending. The Maui

6

visitor industry no longer feels that these projections

7

that we have will come to fruition. We have a lot of

8

catching up to do before increased visitor arrivals will

9

be seen. And when it happens, it will be slow, gradual

10

increase. Keeping this verbiage included in a document

11

that will take us into 2030 will not help a struggling

12

industry.

13

So they're concerned about, you know, an

14

overestimation of a lot of people that they don't think

15

we're going to see.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson?

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And to counter that, I'm

18

gonna read right from the section that we just approved

19

under Economic Development. "The Maui County tourism

20

goal is stated as follows: To strategically manage

21

tourism on Maui, Molokai and Lanai in a sustainable

22

manner that promotes economic well-being, quality of

23

life for residents, preservation of natural and cultural

24

resources and quality experiences for visitors. So I

25

can't think of a better way to reiterate that within
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1

these recommendations. And to exclude it, I think, is

2

to miss a huge part of what drives the economy, which is

3

the quality of the experience.

4

So, you know, I think, for me, anyway, I'm not

5

married, necessarily, to the language that I just put

6

out there, but I think this area might be one that needs

7

a little bit more work before we go and we substitute.

8
9
10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa, do
you want to continue to move on, on this?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, Mr. Chair, I am

11

not wedded to the specific language. And I'm very open

12

to Ms. Johnson adding -- making the sentence longer or

13

adding more -- more stuff to it or whatever. But I'm

14

gonna stick to what I put out.

15
16
17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And you wanna
restate that sentence, please, one more time?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. This'll -- this'll

18

follow the second paragraph that we already have in our

19

book. And it'll add, "Visitor industry statistics have

20

been in a steady decline since the economic crisis that

21

began in 2008. The goal of the visitor industry should

22

continue to promote increased visitor revenue and

23

attract higher-spending visitors."

24
25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And, Member
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And -- and I just

1
2

say I -- what I'm gonna do is, you know, I move to

3

amend -- and people can second if they want to. I move

4

to amend the second sentence as follows, and this'll be:

5

"The goal of the visitor industry should be to continue

6

to promote increased" visinor -- "visitor revenue while

7

also attracting visitors who are sensitive to the needs

8

of the community, and who will help to stabilize the

9

economic viability of the tourism industry.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second for discussion.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

12

Johnson. Staff, do you have -- have you been able to

13

get that down? Okay. To amend the amendment that's on

14

the floor to include further language. And seconded by

15

Member Nishiki. Members, do you want that to be re --

16

reread to you?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I can reread it, if you

17
18

want me to.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He cannot project it?

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. It -- I'll just

21
22
23

reread it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: He would have to
re-hook his two separate computers --

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- to do just the text.
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But, anyway, this -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Wait, wait. David,

3
4

what's happening is that you have the matrix that's up

5

there right now. Are you -- can you take a section of

6

the fourth column there and, just for the Narrative,

7

just to take a column and then type that up so that --

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It would help.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- it'll help us?

10

MR. RAATZ: Okay.

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just type it in there --

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh.

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- now so we can look at

14

it.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, that works.

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. We're just gonna

18

borrow that --

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- the matrix.

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, fine.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So -- okay. This is

23

the amended language that is being offered by Member

24

Johnson. So discussion? Member Baisa?

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, this'll also
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include that statement before that --

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That says --

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Right.

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- the visitor industry

7

statistics --

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then he's --

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- have been in steady

10

decline since the economic --

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: He's --

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- crisis.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- also adding --

14
15
16

adding your portion on there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. There. With the
whole thing, it's -- it's better.

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It does not address,

19

though, the idea that Maui has had for a very long time

20

of looking for those high-end visitors. And, you know,

21

that's not necessarily my philosophy, but it's been our

22

County's philosophy for a long time. We've always

23

wanted the high-end visitors, if we could get them.

24

Although, now, we want all visitors that bring money.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, Members, the
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1

entire motion is -- amended motion includes both of

2

that. Okay. So any discussion on what's before us?

3

Okay. Seeing none, then, all those in favor of this

4

amendment?

5
6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Are we going to do
consensus?

What are we going to say?

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, we're not.

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have a motion.

10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: All right. Okay.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: All right.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So we have an

14

amended -- we have an amendment to the --

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Amendment.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Amendment to the

17

amendment is what we have. And this is what's before

18

you. And --

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- so all those in

21

favor of this, signify by saying "aye".

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed?

24

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. Okay, we have one
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3

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair
Kaho'ohalahala.

4

NOES: Councilmember Victorino.

5

ABSTAIN: None.

6

ABSENT: None.

7

EXC.: None.

8
9
10

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The motion is

11

carried to include both of these languages. Okay. And

12

then, now, we wanna amend this into the -- the -- into

13

the Narrative section.

14

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, if you're

17

doing this by Robert's Rules and proper procedure, just

18

not to get really nitpicky, but you add an amendment to

19

the amendment, you first do the amendment to the

20

amendment, and then you do the amendment as amended.

21

That's the way it should be done. Now, I mean, you

22

know, if you're gonna -- 'cause I don't agree with the

23

second part, but I agree with the first part. So, you

24

know, if my -- rest of my colleagues --

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- like do it --

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I --

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- that way, that's

4

fine.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I -- I understand what

5
6

you're saying. Member Baisa made an amendment, which

7

you second -- seconded and then Member Johnson seconded

8

-- amended that, seconded by Member Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Back to the amendment,

9
10
11
12

the -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. So we just dealt
with Member Johnson's language.

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right.

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So then we'll just --

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Then we going back --

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?

20

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Okay.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: As amended.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: As amended.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, before we vote on

24

the amended amendment, I still want to deal with the

25

idea of the high-end visitors. Does this group feel
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1

that that's not an important issue? And if it isn't,

2

then it isn't, but I think it is. It's been Maui's

3

tourist philosophy for many, many years, and it doesn't

4

mean we don't want anybody else, and we want those

5

high-spending people to also be environmentally and

6

culturally sensitive. But do we want to discard that

7

idea? It's part of the --

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's part of the

10
11

industry's recommendation.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The -- I -- I guess,

12

then, the consideration is -- is, does this leave it

13

broad so that it is inclusive of that?

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It --

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Or do you want to make

16
17
18
19

it exclusive?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like it to be
stated, if possible.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And -- and

20

that's what I'm trying to get at, is that if we leave it

21

broad, does it include those opportunities to do the --

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- whole array of kinds

24

of marketing that this industry would do, or do you want

25
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, if we were any --

2

in any other section of this Plan, I wouldn't have a

3

problem. Because we're in the Economic Development,

4

this is where we gonna get the money to pay our bills so

5

that we can do all these lovely things we wanna do.

6

It's not gonna come from the McDonald's tourists; it's

7

gonna come from the Grand Wailea guys, that kind of

8

tourist. And so I think we have room for both. But the

9

industry is saying, can you please, also -- you know,

10

our goal is we'd like to attract higher-spending

11

visitors. Now, this is our industry telling us this.

12

So, you know, whether we wanna state it or not is up to

13

this group. But I'm -- I'm putting it out there 'cause

14

it's -- it's important to that industry.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So we have one

16

part of the language that's been amended. And then

17

we're looking at your section of the language, then.

18

Okay. Go ahead, Member --

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Chairman, to try

20

and, hopefully, bring some clarity to this issue on

21

whether we should add -- be specific as far as what type

22

of visitor, I know Ms. Reimann is in the gallery and

23

she -- one representative of the industry. If there are

24

no objections, I'd like to hear her thoughts on the

25

current proposal without specifying the -- I guess,
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1

the -- the rich visitor, and if what we have here is

2

broad enough and it does encompass everybody.

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No objection.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is there any

5

objections?

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No objection.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair wants to

8

caution that I'm gonna be very selective on doing this

9

because I do not want to open up this floor for that

10

kind of opportunity at every juncture. Okay. So in

11

this case, I will allow you, Ms. Reimann, to come down,

12

to make comments on this.

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: (Inaudible) the
Budget's coming up.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You wanna -- is that --

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're gonna need money.

17

MS. REIMANN: Good afternoon.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good afternoon.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good afternoon.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank -- thank you,

21

Ms. Reimann. I just wanted to get your comments on

22

what's being proposed without the inclusion of the

23

high-end visitor in -- in the statement. Your -- your

24

thoughts? Is it -- does it -- is it broad enough, at

25

least from the industry perspective, that it encompasses
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1
2

MS. REIMANN: It's always been our tact to,

3

you know, attract higher-end spending visitors, visitors

4

that bring in more dollars.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So --

6

MS. REIMANN: So, yes.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- from -- from an

8

industry perspective, you guys would prefer to see

9

something where it's specified?
MS. REIMANN: It would be nice, but, you know,

10
11

I think the language is pretty -- broad enough to

12

include. I mean, when it says, you know, attract

13

high-end spending.

14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

15

MS. REIMANN: That kinda implies that.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

17

Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good. Good. We can

18
19
20

move on.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, the Chair just

21

wanted to point out to you, if you look at the -- the

22

third paragraph in that -- I'm sorry. One, two, three

23

-- the fourth paragraph in that same section, we have

24

here, "Both the State and Maui County Tourism Strategic

25

Plan place specific emphasis on attracting
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higher-spending visitors."
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So it's already in
another section.

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it's in the

6

Narrative already.

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then, when we get

9
10

back to the matrix, there's also another section in the
matrix that restates that as well. So --

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Specifically, yeah.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm fine as long

14

as it's covered. And Ms. Reimann is happy, I'm happy.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So thank you.

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.

17

MS. REIMANN: Thank you.

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So at this

20

point, then, we're back to the -- the main motion as

21

amended. Okay.

22

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let's vote.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So all -- any further

24

discussion on that, which is including both language

25

above us here? Okay. If not, then all those in favor,
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010
1

190

signify by saying "aye".

2

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Opposed, say

4

"no".

5

VOTE:

6

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

7

NOES: None.

8

ABSTAIN: None.

9

ABSENT: None.

10

EXC.: None.

11
12
13

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We will add this

14

into the Narrative section. Okay. And we'll insert it

15

as where it was. Okay. Okay, Members, we're still on

16

this Narrative section and any other part of this that

17

you would like to -- to visit. Okay. Member Baisa?

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, under that same

19

section, we were looking at higher-paying jobs, para --

20

there's concern about higher-paying jobs. And the

21

industry, of course, would like to make it understood

22

that they do find a lot of opportunities. And they

23

would like to see if we could -- oh, no, we're not there

24

yet. We're going to go to Goals and Objectives.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Forget it. It's okay.

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Let's just leave it.

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm jumping ahead.

4

Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We're still on

5
6

the Narrative section. So, Members, any other

7

discussion? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you,

8
9

Mr. Chair. Maybe on 4-10, under Objectives --

10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: We're not there yet.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, we're not there.

12

Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're not there. Just

13
14

you -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Another one jumping

15
16

ahead.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- and me.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sorry. I'll wait.

19

Okay.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Not there yet.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So we wanna complete

23

the Narrative sections.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: If there's any other

discussion --

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- on this --

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Not right now.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- Members? Okay.

7

Seeing none, at this time, then, all those in favor of

8

the Narrative section, on page 4-7 to 4-10, sig -- as

9

amended, signify by saying "aye".

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

12

VOTE:

13

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

14

NOES: None.

15

ABSTAIN: None.

16

ABSENT: None.

17

EXC.: None.

18
19
20
21
22
23

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED motion, as amended.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. This Narrative
section will be adopted into the Plan.
Okay. Now, Members, if you can go back to
your matrix.

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Matrix.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And on the
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matrix, we're gonna begin with --

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What page?

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Page 5. And we're

4

gonna begin with Number 319, which is the Goal, and then

5

the Chair would entertain a motion to adopt the Goal in

6

319; Objective 1, 320; and the Policies and --

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Actions.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- the Action items

9

ending at 330.

10
11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved, Mr. Chair. Are
you sure it's 330?

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Let me --

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I think. 319 -- yes,

15
16
17
18
19

330.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. I guess we need
our thing from last week.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Do you have -- okay.
Make sure you have the matrix.

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, I gotta make sure.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, second for

22

discussion --

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, yeah.

24

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- purposes.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The Economic

1
2

Diversification matrix. So moved and -- by Member

3

Johnson, seconded by Member Victorino. Discussion on

4

that --

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I cannot find --

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- motion, Members?

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- Nane's testimony.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Call for the question.

10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes --

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- let's call --

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa?

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I am trying to find --

16

we had testimony.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It's not here yet. It's

17
18

not here.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're not there yet?

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No, I don't think we're

21

there yet.

22

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's not here yet?

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No. Well, we're not

24
25

there yet. We're, I think -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're on Page 5, right?
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1

At the very top, we had some testimony from Mr. Aluli -

2

and I'm trying to put my hands on that -- 'cause he

3

wanted to amend that -- the goal. And I can't find it.

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It's here.

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do you have it?

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I don't --

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, here it is.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa?

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's -- we'd like to --

10

I would like to move to add "recognize the important

11

economic contributions that the visitor industry makes

12

to Maui County and support a healthy and vibrant visitor

13

industry."

14
15
16
17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair,
for discussion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa,
first of all, which --

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- which item are you

20

looking at?

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 319.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: 319?

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So moved by

25

Member Baisa, seconded by Member Victorino to amend the
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010
1

196

-- the Goal on Item 319 in the matrix. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, just for

2
3

clarification, I think, as -- Member Baisa, if I could

4

ask, you're making reference to the written testimony

5

submitted by Mr. Aluli?

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's correct.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: MHLA recommendation.

8
9
10

Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Because I -- I note

11

that 4-10 in our -- our binder, it seems that was where

12

he wanted that additional objective added that -- that

13

you just read. So I'm -- I'm -- I'm trying to get some

14

understanding here how we -- how we're doing this,

15

Chair. I -- I know we're working off the matrix, but

16

then I -- I saw Mr. Aluli's suggestion was, I guess, to

17

be placed under 4-10, under -- was it Objectives?

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Goals. Uh-huh.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. So --

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We're in the --

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Only 319.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Object -- Goal and

23

Objectives section right now of --

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Uh-huh.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- this Economic

Development, Tourism section. Okay.

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. 319.

4

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Mr. Chair --

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess --

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess the

9

confusion is, when you read this book, this one -- this

10

one shows all three, and this one just shows

11

basically --

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

13

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- the final or, I

14

guess, the version that the Director took on, if

15

you're -- you're reading your book. But if you just

16

read the matrix, it has three different versions. So I

17

guess the question I have --

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

19

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're looking at all

20
21

three, right, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: On the matrix, you have

22
23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All three. Yeah,

24

yeah. No. I realize that. I realize that. But we are

25

adding it under the Planning Committee's recommendation,
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1

right? So we're changing it to the fourth -- fourth

2

column, right, where we're putting it right now? Okay.

3

That's fine.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: What you're
saying is, is the fourth column.

6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Okay. That's

7

fine. Because I think Mr. Molina was asking the

8

question, which one.

9
10
11
12
13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Yeah. It's more
which one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's what we
looking at, which one.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. I have no

14

problem with adding the objectives. I'm just kinda

15

trying to get a -- a -- find a sense of where --

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where --

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Where we're heading.

18
19
20

That's all. Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is it -- is it clear,
what we're doing, Members?

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: A little bit more.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's not any different

23

than what we have been doing. Okay. So Member Baisa at

24

this time is amending the Goal in Item Number 319. And

25

her language has been typed up on the board under Item
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So --

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 319.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: David, can -- can you

4

increase the font size on that?

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member Baisa.

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The problem is, I'm not

8

sure that we have the right location, because he -- he

9

has labeled it 319, 345.

10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: New objective.

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And 345 is something

12

totally different.

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's develop design

15

guidelines for small locally-owned retreat centers in

16

like kind, whereas the -- the verbiage talks about, you

17

know, the general visitor industry. So I may have it in

18

the wrong place, but I think what he's trying to say is

19

really important. And we've been hearing this now for

20

weeks, about recognizing the important economic

21

contributions that the visitor industry makes to Maui

22

County and support a healthy and vibrant visitor

23

industry. So whether it belongs here or someplace else,

24

I don't have a problem with it. It's just another way

25

of saying what the Director has said. The Director
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1

says, "A healthy visitor industry that provides economic

2

well-being with stable and diverse employment

3

opportunities." But it's a different twist because one

4

is recognition and one is -- that's the visitor industry

5

we want. So maybe that could be an objective

6

underneath, we could just add it, instead of putting it

7

up there.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It could be --

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa --

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- a new objective.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- are you going to,

14
15
16

then, retract your -- your -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'll retract my motion
and we'll put it as an objective underneath.

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay? Later.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. No. Well, this

20

will be now.

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Now, okay. Well --

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Because --

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- then let's do it.

24
25

Let's do it. I don't know where to put it, though.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. We have it here,

1
2

so we'll -- don't worry about where -- its placement,

3

but if you think it goes within the objectives under

4

this Goal --

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, that's where it

7

goes.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You can number it

10

whatever.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We'll do the

11
12

numbering.

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.

14

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead.

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think Mr. Aoli --

17

Hauuli -- Aluli, I should say, was saying in the section

18

from 319 to 345. That's what I remember writing down.

19

And that he specifically brought up that part in that

20

section. 319 to 345 is all about Tourism.

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.

22

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I think where you

23

had it originally was right. And he was just talking

24

about the section starting 319 to 345 which is dealing

25

with Tourism. So I -- I still think where you had it
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1

was probably the best place to put it. But just so long

2

as it's recognized is -- is the key.

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm fine as long
as we include it as an objective under this section.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It is being added --

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And -- and --

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- as an objective.

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So that's cool. I'm --

9

I'm okay.

10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. It's a --

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department?

14

MR. HUNT: The -- the Department supports the

15

language. In your hierarchy of your plan, when you add

16

an objective, usually you would have several policies

17

that then implement that objective. Again, we think

18

it's a -- it's an excellent policy to have added to this

19

Plan. So we would recommend that the same language be

20

added, but make it a policy.

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Policy, okay.

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, right.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm okay with that,

24
25

Chair.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.
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not going to be --

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- a goal, it's not

5

going to be an objective, but it --

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It will be a policy.

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Policy.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- will be a policy

9

section.

10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fine. Fine.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Just so we're

12

clarified with that.

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, God.

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Members,

16

further discussion on this new amended policy? Okay.

17

Hearing none, then all those in favor, signify by saying

18

"aye".

19

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

21
22
23
24
25
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2

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

3

NOES: None.

4

ABSTAIN: None.

5

ABSENT: None.

6

EXC.: None.

7
8

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. This is amended

10

into this section, okay, as a policy. Okay. We are

11

still in discussions on 319 to 330.

12

(Pause in proceedings.)

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, is

14

there any other discussion on --

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- this section?

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. I just

18

request -- I note Ms. Tegarden is -- from Office of

19

Economic Development is there. And she did make

20

comments attached to a February 16th, 2010 letter

21

regarding the Island Plan. So I was wondering if we

22

could get comment from the Departments on any of these,

23

I guess, objectives that we're looking at currently, I

24

guess 3 --

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. And the Chair
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1

was just trying to get that out and identify her

2

numbers --

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, yeah.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- to our matrix. So

5

-- so I have identified and highlighted on this section

6

right now, under Policies, Item Number 324 --

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- is one of the

9

comments that the Office has made. And if --

10

Ms. Tegarden, would you like to come down? Yeah. Okay.

11

Okay. Members, in the communications that was handed

12

out to all of you, that is from the Planning Director,

13

dated February 19th, if you look within there, on Page

14

-- it's listed as Page 3 of 4 in a communications to

15

Director Hunt. And that communication is dated February

16

16. If you go to Page 2, you will see a reference there

17

on Policy 4.2.1.d. So this is -- corresponds to the

18

Matrix Item 324, okay. So at this time I'm gonna ask

19

the -- Ms. Tegarden to -- to make her comments on that

20

section. Okay.

21

MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you, Committee Chair. We

22

were concerned, that in talking about developing the

23

various niche markets, while we feel that this is very

24

important to continue to do, some of the ways we have

25

been identifying those niche markets is through our HTA,
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1

Hawaii Tourism Authority, funding. And some of that

2

funding has been substantially cut. So we just wanted

3

to make the Members aware that there has been

4

substantial funding up to, you know, $300,000 toward

5

those kind of niche markets. But we will need to find

6

additional funding sources in order to continue the --

7

the types of outreach that we have been doing. And this

8

goes through festivals and things like that. That was

9

our main concern.

10
11
12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members,
questions for the Department? Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. And, first

13

of all, thank you, Chair, for inviting the Department

14

down here in person. Because I know -- I appreciate

15

their responses in writing, but it's nothing like having

16

the name and the face connected to -- you know, with

17

regards to the policies and objectives that are being

18

created. Because it will certainly have an impact on --

19

on all departments, for better or for worse.

20

So, Ms. Tegarden, thank you for your -- your

21

comments on that. So, basically, you're -- you're still

22

in support of all these niche activities, but, again, to

23

reemphasize what's been -- I guess, some -- I guess, to

24

some folks, today, the underlying theme is how we're

25

gonna pay for this. And now that your funding's been
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

207

1

cut, then how we continue to support these various niche

2

industries. And the Council -- or future Councils need

3

to be made aware that there may be a need for additional

4

funding or ways to find additional funding to support

5

these types of industries. Am I -- am I correct?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct. And through

6
7

all of the different programs that we do in OED, whether

8

it's through agriculture or the other cultural programs,

9

we are very aware that it's our niche markets that are

10

important to drawing that new type of visitor. But,

11

yes, we just wanted to make the Members aware that there

12

has been substantial funding cuts. So it is something

13

that we'll need to look at for the future.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you,

14
15

Chair.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson?

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Deidre, would you

18

say that as far as changing that, creating a new action

19

item, then, to support, you know, the development of

20

that, would -- would you say something along the lines

21

that -- I guess, as a new action item, because I don't

22

see it here -- would be to seek either replacement or

23

supplemental funding from new sources to replace

24

potential loss of revenues from HTA, something along

25

that line?
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excellent idea.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Because it's --

3
4

it's helpful when -- you know, when we're removing

5

stuff, if you have something that you can suggest that

6

would be replacement language to focus in on an action

7

item, then, that helps support those kinds of losses.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. I was remiss in not doing

8
9

that --

10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It -- it's -- it's okay.

11

MS. TEGARDEN: But I think that's a good idea.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: This is new to everyone.

13

So, Mr. Chair, I -- I don't know if it's appropriate --

14

do we have a motion on the floor, if anything else?

15
16
17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We don't have a motion
on the floor.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Then I

18

would move to add an action item that goes in keeping

19

with the -- the loss of funds, and just simply say to

20

"seek additional revenues to offset the potential loss

21

of HTA funds that will help support niche activities."

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a --

23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second the motion

24
25

just for discussion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Moved by Member Johnson
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1

and seconded by Member Victorino to amend the Action

2

section of this to include what is before us on the

3

board. Okay. Discussion, Member Johnson?

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: The only reason I'm

5

putting it in is because it's been identified as a

6

potential problem. So if you don't take corrective

7

action, then we're just, you know, we're not gonna reach

8

our Goals and Objectives.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further

9
10

discussion? Okay. If not, then all those in favor of

11

the amendment, signify by saying "aye".

12

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

15

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

16

NOES: None.

17

ABSTAIN: None.

18

ABSENT: None.

19

EXC.: None.

14

20
21
22
23
24
25

VOTE:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That action item
is amended into the matrix. Okay.
Members, are there any other areas in here -I'm trying to give Ms. Tegarden an opportunity to
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1

comment on this section while we're in it, for Tourism.

2

And I -- Member Molina?

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank -- thank

4

you, Chairman. Can I ask for a comment on Number 329,

5

"evaluate on an annual basis the effectiveness of public

6

expenditure for the visitor industry?" I -- I presume

7

you -- your Department does that already with the

8

requested funding from MVB. Can you expound on this

9

being placed in here, in this language?

10

MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that. Yes. One

11

reason we didn't comment on that specific item was

12

because we do that through our reports that we request

13

from Maui Visitors Bureau and some of the other internal

14

tracking that we try to do. So we felt that this was a

15

reasonable request of our office because we are

16

gathering that information through MVB.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So you -- you

18

don't find it redundant or anything? So just at -- as

19

worded, it's -- it's fine, right?

20
21
22
23

MS. TEGARDEN: For -- for our office, we found
that it was -- it was good.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you.
Thank you, Chairman.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 327.
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1

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson?

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, that's Number

3

327, right?

4

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Is it --

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Just leave it right the

7

way it is?

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. 329.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 29. 29.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. 329.

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Because if I'm

12

reading, it says -- yeah, but on -- are you looking at

13

"develop a comprehensive set of resource management

14

standards?"

15

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Because the -- the

17

wording that -- on Page 4-11, it's conduct -- you're --

18

you're -- you're talking about "conduct and regularly

19

update an impact assessment of the costs and benefits of

20

mega-resort, timeshare, vacation rental and other types

21

of visitor accommodations," is that what you're looking

22

at?

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. On the matrix.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: On the matrix.

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The matrix, yeah.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: On the matrix.

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, I know. That's

3

"evaluate on an annual basis the effectiveness of public

4

expenditure for the visitor industry." But I am saying

5

that the statement that we just got from -- that's here

6

for that wording -- I'm looking at that and I'm saying,

7

well, the "conduct and regularly update" is already

8

there under 327. So why are we repeating it?

9
10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, this one is
specific --

11

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To public, yeah.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- to the visitor

13

industry. Okay. Well, Member Johnson, if you want to

14

consider deleting, you know -- okay.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Well, I would rather

16

substitute, then -- if we're looking at language under

17

329, I personally like the GPAC's recommendation better

18

than I like what's there. If -- if we're looking at

19

comprehensive statements. 'Cause if you're looking at

20

the return on investment, we're looking at the

21

expenditure of public funds, and then we're seeing --

22

we're doing that analysis automatically when we're

23

looking at cost benefit. So I personally like the

24

recommendations that the GPAC made.

25

So I'll make a motion, Mr. Chair, then, to
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1

substitute the language -- the GPAC language under 329

2

for the Director's.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

5

Johnson to substitute GPAC language under 329 and adopt

6

that language.

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Discussion?

9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No.

10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Question for the

14

Department. On 329, Ms. Tegarden, where it's -- it's

15

more specific, where it says "develop a yearly

16

performance report to the Council Budget Committee that

17

describes the returns resulting from expenditures of

18

public funds for the visitor industry," is that

19

something that would -- you may have to, I guess, seek

20

more resources? In other words, I'm trying to get at,

21

would that be more costly, if it's -- if it's worded

22

this way? Currently, how much does it cost, now, in

23

terms of time and resources for you to provide a report

24

to the Council? Just I -- I presume only on the MVB

25

appropriation, that's what you currently do, right?
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MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct. And we do

that through our reports that we require of the grantee.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Now, with the

4

language from the GPAC, where it's a little bit more

5

specific, do you foresee any additional resources

6

needed, or does it appear to be the same as what was

7

proposed by the Department?

8
9

MS. TEGARDEN: The GPAC's language seems to be
a bit more formal.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.

11

MS. TEGARDEN: I feel that it still stays

12

within those requirements that we ask of the Visitor

13

Bureau. I think when we look at some of the other

14

reports that were asked of our Office, that would --

15

those would actually require additional funds or

16

additional outsourcing. But I -- I think for this one,

17

we -- we feel safe that we're still within what we were

18

already requiring.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. And

20

thank you, Chair. I just asked that question to make

21

sure that -- sometimes different language could be

22

interpreted in another way which may have an unintended

23

consequence, where it could cost the County a little bit

24

more time and resources. So I just wanted to make sure

25

that, you know, it -- it's still one and the same.
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Thank you.

2

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, discussion?

4
5

Go ahead, Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And I -- I

6

just wanna make sure that I'm clear with this one,

7

Ms. Tegarden. At this time when we talking public funds

8

for the visitor industry, we're only talking the Maui

9

Visitors Bureau, we do not expend any other money for

10

any other visitor-industry-related --

11

MS. TEGARDEN: When --

12

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

13

MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. When we looked at this

14

(Inaudible.)

language --

15

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.

16

MS. TEGARDEN: -- we were looking at the funds

17

that we award specifically to the visitor -- Visitors

18

Bureau. Of course, through our office, we do other

19

outreach through sister cities and internationally, but

20

the largest sum of funding that is going out to any one

21

grantee would be Maui Visitors Bureau. And that's what

22

we were thinking when we read this.

23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So just for

24

clarification, you just stated that there's other

25

outreach, whether it's sister cities, whatever, that
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1

would all be part of this comprehensive report back to

2

the Budget Finance -- Budget Committee? Because that's

3

what I just -- you just said "yes" and that's what I

4

read.

5

MS. TEGARDEN: I will clarify. When we read

6

this, we were talking about the Visitor Bureau, the

7

funding that we award to the Visitor Bureau. The

8

funding that we award through sister cities is -- is

9

smaller. And we haven't necessarily put any reports

10

together for -- any professional reports together on the

11

output that comes from those. And when we were looking

12

at this, and when we made these comments, we were only

13

thinking about the Visitors Bureau. So if Council

14

Members are asking for all funding that is for any sort

15

of visitor impact, we might then certainly need to hire

16

or outsource. Because if you start talking about that,

17

you start talking about the -- the funding that is put

18

out for high-tech initiatives, and are we trying to get

19

more high-tech conferences here. So that's a -- that's

20

a much bigger picture.

21
22
23

And if I misunderstood the question, I
apologize.
If that were the case, then we would need to

24

outsource and have a professional organization put

25

together a very comprehensive report. And I would
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1

assume that that would cost anywhere from 25 to 65

2

thousand dollars, depending on the type of report that

3

was required.

4

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just wanted

5

to make sure that -- it says return -- describe returns

6

and resulting from expenditures of public funds for the

7

visitor industry, visitor industry. It's just not the

8

Maui Visitors Bureau. Because sister cities do bring in

9

visitors, do bring in. And part of the sister city

10

ambience is exchange of visitors and people coming to

11

here and we going there. So -- just so that we get that

12

clear, Mr. -- Mr. Chair, so that, you know, we're saying

13

if we want that, develop a yearly report, that's fine

14

with me, it doesn't make a difference, just so long

15

we're clear that when some other council and some other

16

administration comes along and reads this, that they

17

will understand. And they'll say, "I want everything,

18

then." We discussed it and we did include everything.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa?

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, maybe, because of

22

what we're hearing -- and we really don't wanna spend a

23

whole lot more money on studies, even though they'd be

24

useful. But, you know, I don't see us having a whole

25

lot of money or wanting to hire a whole lot of
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1

consultants. If we wanna narrow this down to what we're

2

actually talking about, which is the returns resulting

3

from the money we give the MVB, why can't we say that?

4

Instead of saying public funds for the visitor industry,

5

let's say public funds, you know, allocated to the Maui

6

Visitors Bureau, if that's what we're talking about.

7

Then it's specific. Otherwise, I can see this going

8

everywhere. I mean, money we spend on parks and roads

9

and everything affects the visitor industry. So maybe

10

we have to quantify and qualify a little bit better so

11

that we don't drive everybody crazy.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Again, when

13

you're at this level, I -- I just wanna make sure that

14

you're not gonna be limiting. Okay?

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And so by doing that,

17

you are going to be -(Inaudible.)

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON:

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Well, she's

20

telling us that that's what they're doing. And my

21

concern is because -- you know, I'm really concerned,

22

again, about the dollars and cents that we're committing

23

here. And, you know, I don't know how much money we

24

have more to spend on -- on studies and consultants and

25

more staff to evaluate things. Even though it's
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1

important, I think we just don't have the funding.

2

And -- and then when we get a study, what happens to it?

3

That's a whole other issue.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I think what we

5

heard from the Department is that they're already

6

required to do this.

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And -- and I think the

9
10

language -- the distinction between the two languages is
-- it's not that great, you know.

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It could be.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So -- yeah. Okay.

13

Member Johnson?

14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Deidre, as part of

15

the grant agreement, usually, you require, annually, of

16

the entities that are recipients, you require,

17

basically, an analysis from their goals and objectives,

18

anyway, is that correct?

19

MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct.

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So it would just be maybe

21

as simple as photocopying what they get back from that

22

entity. I -- I don't have a problem with the way the

23

language is, as long as we don't create any additional

24

work. And my understanding is that it's required,

25

anyway, so they're just simply transmitting that in the
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1

form of a report as part of the Budget process. So that

2

we know that we're getting, you know, all the value that

3

we possibly can for the dollars expended.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So we have a

5

motion on the floor. We're still in discussion. Any

6

further discussion? Go ahead, Member Baisa.

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. What I heard from

8

the Economic Development Director was her Department

9

looked at this and assumed that we were asking them to

10

report on the money spent to -- given to MVB. We are

11

saying, well, you know, maybe it's broader than that,

12

and maybe we shouldn't limit it, or whatever, but what

13

are we actually tell her Department? She's telling us,

14

if you want any more than that, then you're gonna have

15

to fund it. So I think we need to be clear, and we just

16

cannot assume, because many of us are not gonna be here

17

next year or the year after that, or maybe tomorrow.

18
19
20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead,
Department.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you, if I may. Perhaps

21

it would help our Office if we narrowed the language to

22

say grants that are awarded for

23

visitor-industry-specific ventures. We would then

24

report on the outcomes to Council on those.

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think that's a very
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reasonable explanation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I move to

2
3

amend with the wording as just stated that all grants

4

that are awarded for the visitor industry.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Where's --

5
6

where's that gonna be placed?
(Inaudible.)

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Amended where?

9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: We could do public

10

funds -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that can go --

11
12

that can be added right after the --

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right after "public."

14

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: "Public funds for

15

visitor industry," or --

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Just put a slash.

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Slash right there.

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Grants.

19

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. There you go.

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I move to amend to

22

add that language.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a

23
24
25

second?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second for discussion.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

Victorino --

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Perfect.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- second by Member

5

Molina to amend the amendment on the floor to include

6

the added language on --

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Discussion?

(Inaudible.)

10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Seeing none,

12

then, all those in favor -- is it -- is it completed?

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. All those in

15

favor, signify by saying "aye".

16

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

19

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

20

NOES: None.

21

ABSTAIN: None.

22

ABSENT: None.

23

EXC.: None.

18

24
25

VOTE:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.
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amended as a -- a new -- it -- it's a action item.

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It's Number 329.

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 329.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 329.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: This will be --

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 329, yeah.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: 329.

9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: New Action. New Action

10
11
12

item.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So this'll be a
new Action Item 329, with -- well --

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Sub --

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We're just accepting

15

the GPAC language as amended --

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Amended.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- to become the new --

18

okay. So we're back to the -- the main motion.

19

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: As amended.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: As amended.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. All these

22
23
24
25

amendments.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So we're up to
330, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. Call for the
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question.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then all those

2
3

in favor of adopting the Objective -- the Goal,

4

Objective, Policies and Action Items listed on your

5

matrix, from Numbers 319 to Numbers 330, as amended,

6

signify by saying "aye".

7

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

10

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

11

NOES: None.

12

ABSTAIN: None.

13

ABSENT: None.

14

EXC.: None.

9

15
16
17
18

VOTE:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED motion, as amended.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That section is
adopted as amended.

19

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is so tiring.

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON:

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The Chair will

(Inaudible.)
(Inaudible.)

23

now entertain a motion for Objective Number 2 which

24

begins on Matrix Number 331, and the attached Policies

25
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1

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 345. 345.

2

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 345.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: 345.

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh. So moved,

5

Mr. Chair.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair,

8
9

for discussion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

10

Johnson, seconded by Member Victorino to accept the

11

Objective and Policies and Action items under Items 331

12

to Items 345. Okay. Discussion, Members?

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa?

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very

16

much, Chair. I have a question in regards to 331. You

17

know, we had tremendous discussion about this on one of

18

our earlier meetings. And it never went anywhere 'cause

19

I think we were deadlocked on our vote on it. And the

20

verbiage is "to limit and manage future visit" --

21

"visitor unit expansion." Okay. Can the Department

22

explained what that means to them?

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department?

24

MR. HUNT: I think it speaks to tools that the

25

County would use in different situations. Manage is
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1

certainly more broad. Limit seems to be a little bit

2

more specific.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department, you have

3
4

further -MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And

5
6

I'd also like to indicate that language that's very

7

similar, in fact, in some ways, more specific, is in the

8

1980 and the 1990 General Plans. So this is consistent

9

with the policy direction for the County for the last

10

several decades.

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much,

13

Department. However, this is 2010 and going to 2030.

14

So, you know, our island has changed quite a bit since

15

those plans were done. So I would want a little more

16

explanation. I -- I don't have a problem with "managing

17

the future visitor unit expansion." I have a concern

18

about "limit." And how do we set a limit and what is

19

the limit?

20
21
22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department, do
you have comments? Go ahead.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

23

Typically, this is done through the Zoning Ordinance.

24

So it would require a -- a future amendment to the

25

ordinance or a special subsection in the ordinance to
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1

address this type of issue. It wouldn't be

2

self-enacting with the adoption of this Plan. It would

3

require a -- a separate legislative act by this body.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chairman?

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Medeiros?

7

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

8

I wanted to ask the Department, what is the definition

9

for visitor unit?

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Hotel rooms.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is it a warm body or

13

is it a accommodation?

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department?

15

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

16

Visitor accommodation unit would essentially be a -- a

17

place where visitors would stay during their visits to

18

Maui. That could include a -- a hotel room or a

19

timeshare room or a vacation rental or a B&B. So it's

20

-- it's a fairly broad definition.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So -- so you're

21
22

referring to visitor unit as being what you just

23

described?

24

MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I think I,
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1

like Member Baisa, have some concerns about using the

2

word "limit." And I think we talked about this before,

3

in another meeting, that this would certainly tie the

4

hands of places like East Maui, Hana, to be limited. We

5

already, you know, have a very small facility or

6

accommodations there. And to limit it to even further

7

expansion, I -- I think would be unfair. And that's

8

why, you know, I -- I wanna join Member Baisa in that

9

concern.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson?

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, when -- you

12

know, in -- and it's -- it's -- I think it's the word

13

that may be problematic, but when you look at where I

14

look at the policies and then, also, the action items,

15

you know, it -- it basically -- limit doesn't

16

necessarily mean limit the number. Everybody thinks it

17

means limit the number. But if you're gonna build

18

12-story buildings, if you're gonna have them look like

19

they're integrated in the community, there's different

20

ways that we can, I guess, look at that. But when it --

21

if you look at all of the policies within it, it's not

22

-- it's not really saying we're gonna cut off

23

everything, we're not gonna let another unit be built.

24

It's -- it's just we're gonna put a -- a framework

25

together of what circumstances we wanna see for future
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1

generations and what kind of services that are gonna be

2

offered. And so if there's another word that the

3

Members wanna use -- I mean, you might say --

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Control?

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Well, control, you know,

6

implies government control. We can't really do that,

7

you know. So I really don't like that word any better

8

than I like limit, if that's what the concern is. But,

9

you know, I -- I don't know. I'm looking for other

10

suggestions. But if you read through the rest of the

11

things, it's not really limiting it, it's just saying

12

we're going to look at the Community Plans, we're gonna

13

look at the areas of the island that are very sensitive,

14

and then we're gonna say -- we're gonna develop a

15

strategy to actually deal with any negative things that

16

may come within a specific community, where that

17

community can accommodate it. So I -- if somebody has a

18

better word, fine, but I don't see it as limiting,

19

necessarily, the numbers.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Molina?

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.

22

I -- I shared the same concern with Member Baisa and

23

Member Medeiros. I guess "limit" somehow -- I guess

24

it -- it -- it all depends on how we interpret that

25

word. 'Cause, for me, it does seem somewhat strong.
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1

And I'd offer "control," but -- but, as Member Johnson

2

had mentioned, it may give the impression that it's, you

3

know, government control or what.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But -- but we are the

6

government. I mean, after all, we -- we -- we have to

7

monitor, you know. I don't know, monitor may -- you

8

know, we -- we're supposed to do that, anyway. So I --

9

I'd like to throw out there offer -- or offer monitor --

10

"control and manage future visitor unit expansion." Or

11

just leave it as "manage future visitor unit expansion."

12

Just take out "limit" and the word "and" and just leave

13

it as "manage." So either/or for me, Mr. Chair, but

14

there's -- I -- I do have a concern with using the word

15

"limit."
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member

16
17

Victorino?

18

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good. Okay. Go ahead,

20

Member Baisa.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll yield to my

22

colleague. I have an idea, but I wanna hear what --

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.

24

You know, just from the experience with the bed and

25

breakfasts, one of the ways we were able to manage the
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1

number of units was to say, okay, we're gonna have a

2

limit of 400 of 'em. And so there are other means to

3

limit, but what I'd like to see, and I think what this

4

Objective does, which is really good, is it says we need

5

to manage this. But I think it's the word "limit" that

6

is objectionable. And there are ways to manage it

7

through setting limits when we do legislation. So I'm

8

for taking out the "limit" and just starting with

9

"manage."

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson?

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I would offer

12

an amendment that says -- it would strike the words

13

"limit and" and it would just say "comprehensively

14

manage future visitor unit expansion."

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Great.

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: That encompasses a whole

17

lot of things.

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I --

19

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second --

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second -- go ahead.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- for discussion.

22

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I can do that.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

24

Johnson, seconded by Member Victorino that we amend the

25

Item Number 331 to read as we have on the board,
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1

"comprehensively manage future visitor unit expansion."

2

Okay. Discussion, Members?

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We like it.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Seeing none,

5

then all those in favor of the amendment, signify by

6

saying "aye".

7

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

10

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

11

NOES: None.

12

ABSTAIN: None.

13

ABSENT: None.

14

EXC.: None.

9

15
16
17

VOTE:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That amendment

18

is adopted. Okay. Members, we're still in this section

19

of 331 to 345.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can you refresh my

23

memory on our discussion on this one, when we talked

24

about the only four areas on Maui Island that would be

25
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1

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: We --

2

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: -- destinations,

3

or -- or -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: We moved that to Land

4
5

Use.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. We'll go back to

6
7

the Department to --

8

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Department.
MR. HUNT: The -- that policy is almost

10
11

verbatim in two other sections, Population and, also,

12

Land Use. So I think we can at least comfortably delete

13

it from this section and -- and address it at a later

14

date.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. My --

17

my question was, did we do some language changes on

18

that --

19

MR. HUNT: I believe --

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: -- at all?

21

MR. HUNT: I believe Member Johnson proposed

22

some amendments or --

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. We did --

24

MR. HUNT: -- amended language under

25

Population.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

2

MR. HUNT: I believe the Committee adopted

3

that.

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, we adopted it.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So if we

6

already have this in another section, do we need it

7

here, Mr. -

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: -- Chairman?

10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's why it's being

12

deleted.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It was deleted?

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It was deleted.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I move to

17

delete that section.

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No. It's already there.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It is already --

20

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's been deleted?

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It is.

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. That's the

23

Director's recommendation.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: In the third column, if

24
25
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guess.

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members,

5
6

discussion on the Items 331 to 345? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you,

7

Chair. Discussion on 337, where it states, "Minimize

8

negative impacts from transient vacation rentals,

9

timeshares, and resort condominiums on residential

10

communities, public infrastructure, and community

11

facilities." If I could ask the -- the Department why

12

bed and breakfasts were left out, why hotels were left

13

out? Because if you look at all of these visitor

14

accommodations, they do have an impact on public

15

infrastructure. So why were hotels and bed and

16

breakfasts left out?

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department?

18

MR. HUNT: We could add hotels, but,

19

technically, under our definition in the Zoning

20

Ordinance, hotels are -- are transient vacation rentals.

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Yeah.

22

MR. HUNT: I know in -- in our community, some

23

people refer to TVRs as single units versus a hotel.

24

But under the Code, they're -- they're the same.

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Same thing. Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, if there's

2

-- I know Member Baisa has a suggestion, but I don't

3

know if maybe we could just add in those two components,

4

bed and breakfasts and hotels. It's one suggestion.

5

And maybe Member Baisa has something else to offer, too.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa?

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I would like to

8

move that we remove the words "minimize negative" and

9

replace it with "manage." "Manage impacts from

10

transient vacation rentals, timeshares, and resort

11

condominiums on residential communities, public

12

infrastructure, and community facilities." And we do

13

that, of course, by legislation.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

16

Baisa to amend Item 337 by deleting the word minimum --

17

"minimize negative" and insert "manage." Okay. So

18

discussion -(Inaudible.)

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON:

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- on the motion?

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And --

22

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And we can add in all

23

those extra things like B&Bs --

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Hotels --

25
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1

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- and B&Bs.

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- whatever else is

3
4

missing.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I wanna make

5

sure you folks understand that we're talking about

6

definitions here.

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then that your

9

adding is redundant, one; and then you're making other,

10

perhaps, classifications of these things when they're

11

already included under transient vacation rentals. So

12

what I don't wanna do is complicate more than we already

13

-- yeah. Member --

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I --

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- Baisa?

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I beg to differ. A B&B

17

is not a transient vacation rental. I learned that.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I just wanna

19

clarify the -- the Department, your statement about it

20

already being inclusive.

21

MR. HUNT: For hotels.

22

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hotels.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

24

MR. HUNT: Not to split hairs, but Member

25

Baisa's correct on B&Bs versus TVRs.
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1

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And hotels?

2

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's (inaudible).

3

MR. HUNT: If the intent is to be absolutely

4

clear, the Department would have no problem with adding

5

hotels.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I just don't

6
7

wanna make it more complicated is why. Okay. So the

8

motion before us, then, is as it's stated up there. So

9

discussion on that? Member Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I guess the -- the other

10
11

thing is that, are we gonna be -- and this is a question

12

for the Department. Who will manage, you know, who's

13

gonna be the assigned -- who's gonna be assigned this

14

task when we look at managing the impacts from transient

15

vacation rentals? I just -- you know, just for my own

16

curiosity, is that identified as Planning Department

17

or --

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department?

19

MR. HUNT: What we're talking about right now

20
21
22
23
24
25

is a policy. So policies aren't assigned for -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. They're not
assigned. It would only be the action items?
MR. HUNT: And under the action item, it would
probably be a combination of divisions.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Well, then, if you
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1

say -- if you're looking at an action item, wouldn't

2

managing something be an action, or not necessarily?
MR. HUNT: It -- it could be. I think it

3
4

reads more as a policy.

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It's a -- it's a policy.

6

So -- and because, through management, that would be --

7

for example, to develop ordinances, that would then be

8

able to mitigate any negative impacts as an action item

9

within this?

10

MR. HUNT: Exactly.

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay, gotcha.

12

MR. HUNT: You're good.

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: All right. Thank you.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, further

15

discussion on the motion? Okay. Seeing none, then all

16

those in favor of the amendment, signify by saying

17

"aye".

18

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

20
21
22
23
24
25
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2

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

3

NOES: None.

4

ABSTAIN: None.

5

ABSENT: None.

6

EXC.: None.

1

7
8
9

VOTE:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. This item is

10

amended, 337. Okay. Okay. Further discussion on any

11

of the items --

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- remaining? Go

14
15

ahead, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. 338, here's one

16

where I'm looking at using the word "limit." Currently,

17

it reads, "Discourage the conversion of the island's

18

housing stock to transient vacation rental use."

19

would propose to delete the language "discourage the

20

conversion of the island's housing stock to" -- take

21

that out -- and replace that with -- simply with the

22

word "limit." "Limit transient vacation rental use to

23

minimize the negative impact on long-term rental

24

housing, price of the housing, and price of land."

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second for
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discussion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

3

Molina to amend 338 to read as is indicated on the

4

board. "Limit transient" rental -- "transient vacation

5

rental use to minimize the negative impact on long-term

6

rental" -- is it housing?

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: "Price of housing and

9

price of land."

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any discussion

12
13

on the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, Chair. I -- I

14

propose that because, as we heard, well, last term, that

15

was one of the major concerns throughout the community,

16

about the impact TVRs were having on, at that time, the

17

price of land and questions about it having an impact on

18

the availability of housing for both purchased and

19

rentals, long-term rentals. So I'm guessing that using

20

the word "limit" is somewhat in line with -- with the

21

Maui Planning Commission recommendation as well as the

22

GPAC suggestion on that. So I don't know if the -- I'd

23

like to get comment from the Department.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department, comment?

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Your thoughts on this
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amend -- proposed amendment?

2

MR. HUNT: We're okay with that.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you,

4

Chair.

5
6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further
discussion? Member Baisa?

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm just -- I'd

8

like to pare that down a little bit more. By limiting

9

the negative impact on long-term rental housing, the

10

price of housing and the price of land, and not

11

necessarily, you know, considering or attributing it to

12

TVRs. Because we've got a lot of things contributing to

13

our long-term rental housing problem and our price of

14

housing and the price of land. And I don't think it's

15

just TVRs.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So are you --

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm suggesting we do

18

that. Or any negative -- "limit negative impacts on

19

long-term rental housing, price of housing and price of

20

land." We have a real issue here with housing costing

21

so much, so it's a big-picture idea. And TVRs are not

22

the only reason; there's many, many reasons.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I -- I just

24

wanna remind us to go back to look at the GPAC

25

recommendation.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And make sure that

4

we're trying to keep --

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I don't think we're --

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- the intent of that.

7

So it started out at that point looking at a conversion.

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: That was the -- the --

10

the issue here. And in looking at the amendment, it --

11

it does not speak to anything about conversion of -- of

12

housing units into, you know -- so I just wanna make

13

sure we don't lose sight of -- of the intent here.

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If we want to, you know,

15

go back and put in the TVRs, then we also need another

16

one that is more broad.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson?

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And -- and I think

19

what they were saying in this section, it's really

20

important to keep the intent, which was supplanting

21

existing housing with visitor accommodations. If you

22

don't wanna single out the transient vacation rentals,

23

then just say "visitor accommodations." That -- what

24

you do not wanna do is supplant what exists here.

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good language.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So, you know, what I

would just say --

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good language.

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I don't know. Somehow,

5

you know, just -- you know, so that the ultimate outcome

6

is that -- discourage supplanting of existing island

7

housing --

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To visitor --

9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- to visitor

10

accommodations --

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: There you go.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- that may have a

13

negative impact --

14

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- on long-term rental

16

housing, price of housing, price --

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good.

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- of land.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: "May have a long-term,"

21

you said?

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Have a negative impact.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Long-term, right.
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1

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Got it

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Friendly

4

amendment?

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So --

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, friendly

8

amendment.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, Members, the

10

motion before us is as it's been retyped above us on the

11

board. So any discussion on this amendment?

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Hearing none,

14

then all those in favor, signify by saying "aye".

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

18

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

19

NOES: None.

20

ABSTAIN: None.

21

ABSENT: None.

22

EXC.: None.

17

23
24
25

VOTE:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.
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1

this amendment is adopted. Okay. Further discussion,

2

Members?

3

MR. HUNT: Mr. Chair?

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Department.

5

MR. HUNT: The Department handed out -- and it

6

was back on February 12th -- some recommendations that

7

-- that we suggested for this section of the Plan. And

8

the first one would address Policy Number 335. And the

9

language that we were suggesting would be -- it would

10

read: "Allow, where permitted by the Community Plan,

11

the development of business hotels and small

12

sensitively-designed inns." So it's focused more on

13

business hotels and inns as opposed to B&Bs and TVRs.

14

In past discussion, we've heard the idea that we

15

shouldn't be limiting our hotels to just the tourist

16

areas or resort areas.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So move to adopt that

20

language.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

23

Baisa, seconded by Member Victorino to adopt the

24

language that's above us. Discussion on that?

25
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1

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can we put it up?

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Can we put it up?

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Cannot see.

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Just gotta get it from

5

Jeff.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Get it from Jeff

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Because I totally don't

9

know if I can find it.

10

(Pause in proceedings.)

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, this is

12

Item Number 335, the amendment is on the board.

13

Discussion on the motion? Go ahead --

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Can you read that?

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- Member Baisa.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I can't read it.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. "Allow, where

18

permitted by the Community Plan, the development of

19

business hotels and small sensitively-designed inns."

20

Okay. Member Baisa?

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair.

22

I am okay with that suggestion because it is limited by

23

Community Plan. And in communities where they feel that

24

they don't want this, then they can put it in the

25

Community Plan and say no. So it isn't like we're
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putting something where people don't want it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further
discussion? Member Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I think, for me, this

5

also helps where it's appropriate to designate, you

6

know, which would take precedence. And in this case,

7

it's very specific that the Community Plan is gonna be

8

the -- the -- basically, the guiding, you know, light,

9

if you will, as to what can or cannot be done. Cause

10

that was one of the criticisms that people have said,

11

"Oh, well, when is it General Plan or when is it

12

Community Plan." I think these kinds of areas really

13

help to make it real clear what is -- what is going to

14

be permitted and what won't be.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, further

16

discussion? Okay. Hearing none, then all those in

17

favor of the amendment, signify by saying "aye".

18

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

20
21
22
23
24
25
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2

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

3

NOES: None.

4

ABSTAIN: None.

5

ABSENT: None.

6

EXC.: None.

1

7

VOTE:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. This is Item 335

9
10

is adopted as amended.

11

Okay. Members, further discussion?

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member

14
15

Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If we could have Ms.

16

Tegarden comment on 343, "Develop a comprehensive set of

17

resource management standards and certification programs

18

for ecotourism." My question basically deals with

19

certification programs and costs and so forth. And if

20

you have some comment on that?

21

MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. Thank you for that. We

22

felt that this action was actually better aligned for

23

something that the Planning Department would handle

24

and -- as we don't really hold expertise in that area.

25

It would be something that, if we were to handle, it
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1

would be costly. And, again, that's not our area of

2

expertise. So in our suggestions, we asked that the

3

lead agency be the Planning Department.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Chair, can I ask
the Planning Department, then, for a comment?

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department?

7

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The

8

University of Hawaii's School of Travel Industry

9

Management has already developed a similar document for

10

managing ecotourism facilities. So it would certainly

11

be cost effective to use that as a base.

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So should we insert
language to emphasize who pays for the programs, then?

14

MR. SUMMERS: You know, I

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I -- I'd prefer to

16

(inaudible). I mean, if -- if the University of Hawaii

17

is already, you know, doing stuff on Ecotourism, with

18

certification programs, then I don't know if that -- it

19

should be spelled out.

20

MR. SUMMERS: Well, the --

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Because the way it is,

22

it looks like, you know, it could fall in our laps.

23

MR. SUMMERS: The -- the university,

24

obviously, doesn't -- isn't -- doesn't have the capacity

25

to -- to implement something like this. So they've -Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
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1

they've got the research and expertise to develop a book

2

like this, but it would need to be adopted through some

3

sort of a legislative act at a County level. So that's

4

-- that's how we could move something like this forward.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So I -- I think -- I

6

think essentially what he's saying, that it's gonna come

7

back to us for some further kind of clarification. And

8

my experience is that, in the area of ecotourism, there

9

are a lot of local concerns about what that entails or

10

what that means. So if there is some guidance coming

11

from the -- the University, then there still needs to be

12

another level, I think, of discussion as appropriateness

13

for it to be on your specific island, perhaps.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So -- so if you take

16

what he's saying here and then look at where you see our

17

involvement in -- in terms of this, is this statement

18

for action, then, meeting that?

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Well, my --

20

my -- my just overall concern is the cost, who -- who

21

pays for these program. And if it's somebody else other

22

than us, then I'm okay with it. But that's -- that's

23

the main thing. We wanna -- we wanna make sure -- you

24

know, to minimize our costs, if -- if we're gonna

25

include this action. So I -- I just want to -Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's still gonna go to

one of these --

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Departments.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- departments.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I don't know if you're

7

gonna get away from some -- from any of that kind of

8

cost, but --

9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: The one thing I would say

10

is, if you -- you know, rather than have -- you know,

11

just say develop in general, I -- I would say work in

12

cooperation with, and then you can name, you know, with

13

educational institutions and the public to develop a

14

comprehensive set of resource management standards and

15

certification programs for ecotourism. And -- and you

16

could use as a model some of the other programs that

17

exist on islands where they have -- you know, the

18

Galapagos, you know, if you look in certain areas,

19

there's really some heavy restrictions on that. So my

20

-- my thing would be not --

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Johnson --

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- to have us --

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- you wanna --

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- necessarily develop

25

i t.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- you wanna amend

the -- the language?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. I'll just say I

4

would -- my amendment would be to "work cooperatively to

5

establish a comprehensive set of resource management

6

standards and certification programs for ecotourism."

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And -- and I don't

9
10
11

know if you want to -- Deidre, do you want us to
stipulate in there entities?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, we agree that, as we move

12

forward with some of these different plans, it would be

13

important to include all of our stakeholders. As the

14

Committee Chair had stated, this is a -- there are a lot

15

of groups out there. And ecotourism can mean different

16

things to different entities. So we would suggest that

17

the more stakeholders brought to the table, the better.

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Right. Do you think that

19

if we don't -- if we just make it very generic, and

20

don't specify, that it gives it a broader -- the way

21

that it's being proposed?

22

MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. I think that's a --

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

24

MS. TEGARDEN: That's a good idea.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Then, Mr. Chair,
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a
second?

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, he seconded.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

7

Johnson, second by Member Molina to amend this Item

8

Number 343 with the language that's before us.

9

Discussion on the motion?

10

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chair?

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead, Member

12

Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chair, maybe the

13
14

first question is for you, since you did mention

15

something about having some familiarity with this.

16

And -- and in -- in this kind of set of resource

17

management standards and certifications for ecotourism,

18

do they specify in there about cultural and sensitive

19

areas?

20
21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's probably the most
important part of that.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Because --

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- it was an area where
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1

ecotourism was now seeking to sort of use or have access

2

to.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it became the more

5

key part of ecotourism as a whole.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for

6
7

that. And, Ms. Tegarden, you -- you have some

8

familiarity with that, if it does address cultural and

9

sensitive areas?
MS. TEGARDEN: We can certainly, as a

10
11

Department, be at the table for those discussions,

12

whether it's through some of the grantees that we're

13

already assisting. Many of them are extremely

14

culturally sensitive. And we -- our office always tries

15

to think of culture and -- and make sure that we're

16

doing culturally sensitive things. So to answer your

17

question, we would certainly be at the table with that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. That -- that'd

18
19

be -- that'd be good --

20

MS. TEGARDEN: Uh-huh.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: -- because, you know,

22

that blue book doesn't do good for the sensitive areas.

23

Thank you.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just --

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Ecotourist book. It's

1
2

not -- okay. So further discussion on the motion before

3

us, then? Okay. If not, then all those in favor,

4

signify by saying "aye".

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

8

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

9

NOES: None.

10

ABSTAIN: None.

11

ABSENT: None.

12

EXC.: None.

7

13

VOTE:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. This is amended

15
16

into the matrix, 343.
Okay. Members, further discussion on this

17
18

section?

19

MR. HUNT: Mr. Chairman?

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department?

21

MR. HUNT: We -- also, in our February 12th

22

memo, we suggested three policies be transferred from

23

the Land Use section. So that would create three new

24

policies under this Economic Development section or

25

element, particularly the Tourism sector. And one deals
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1

with managing bed and breakfast homes, another deals

2

with managing transient vacation rentals, and the third

3

one is -- regards enforcing laws regarding bed and

4

breakfast homes and transient vacation rentals. And I

5

can repeat those if --

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Please.

7

MR. HUNT: -- need be.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please.

9

MR. HUNT: Okay.

I guess I'll -- I'll start

10

with -- the first one would be a new policy, but,

11

actually, all we're doing is we're shifting it. It's

12

existing Policy 7.3.4.a, on Page 727. But the new

13

policy would read, "Manage bed and breakfast homes

14

through permitting, and limiting total permits in

15

accordance" --

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's already policy.

17

MR. HUNT: -- "with adopted regulations and

18
19
20
21
22

Community Plan policies." What we tried to do -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. -- oh,
you're -- you don't need a motion?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead. Go ahead and
make a motion, Member --

23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member
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1

Victorino, seconded by Member Baisa to amend this

2

language to include what is posted before us. Okay.

3

Discussion -- Department?
MR. HUNT: What we tried to do is craft policy

4
5

that reflected the existing ordinance that was adopted

6

midway through the crafting of the Maui Island Plan. So

7

that the GPAC never saw this language because the B&B

8

ordinance was adopted after their review, but the

9

Planning Commission saw it and -- and they were fine

10

with it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members,

11
12

discussion?

13

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. If not, then all

15

those in favor, signify by saying "aye".

16

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

19

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

20

NOES: None.

21

ABSTAIN: None.

22

ABSENT: None.

23

EXC.: None.

18

24
25

VOTE:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. This is amended

into the action -- we're on action items, right?
MR. HUNT: The -- the next policy would

4

read -- and, again, this is just a transfer from Land

5

Use. When we get to Land Use, we'll remind you and

6

we'll delete them so we don't have redundancies. The

7

second one is, "Manage transient vacation rentals

8

through permitting in accordance with adopted

9

regulations and Community Plan policies."

10

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

13

Victorino, seconded by Member Baisa to adopt the

14

amendment posted here before us. Okay. Discussion?

15

MR. HUNT: The reason we're transferring these

16

is because, under Land Use, they're under the Urban

17

section, and we have B&Bs and TVRs that are also on our

18

Rural and Agricultural lands. So we believe this is a

19

better way to address them.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members,

21

discussion? Okay, then. If not, then all those in

22

favor of the amendment, signify by saying "aye".

23

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

25
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2

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson,
and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

3

NOES: None.

4

ABSTAIN: None.

5

ABSENT: None.

6

EXC.: None.

7

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. This section is

9
10

adopted.

11

MR. HUNT: The -- the third policy, the final

12

one, would be "Enforce laws regarding bed and breakfast

13

homes and transient vacation rentals that are effective

14

at any given time, until the laws are actually amended

15

to no longer be effective."

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We have a

18

motion.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Second. Okay. Moved

21

by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Medeiros to

22

adopt the amendment before us on the board. Discussion?

23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So --

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What does that mean?

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Yeah.

2

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I just was going --

3

that was my question. Thank you.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department?

5

MR. HUNT: Again, what we are trying to do is

6

craft these three policies that reflected our existing

7

direction in the community that we take from Council.

8

And the third one means that -- there was a lot of

9

discussion on enforcing or not enforcing the transient

10

vacation rentals. And the direction that we believe we

11

received from Council was, until the laws are changed,

12

you enforce them. We can certainly change the laws so

13

that, perhaps, our laws regarding transient vacations

14

are different, more lenient or more restrictive or

15

whatever. But until they're actually changed, we have

16

-- we enforce our existing laws. And we believe that

17

was the direction that we were giving. And -- and this

18

was trying -- this was an attempt to reflect that

19

direction.

20
21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Discussion? Go
ahead, Member Johnson.

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. The only thing I

23

have a problem with is the last part of it. Until the

24

laws are actually amended to no longer be effective,

25

that's where I have a problem. It should say -- you
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1

know, I would rather say until they're no longer --

2

until ordinances are adopted that permit them, you know,

3

I'd rather be in the positive.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Corporation

4
5
6

Counsel.
MR. HOPPER: I would just say the last

7

sentence does not appear, at least in my opinion, to be,

8

well, I mean, necessary. And -- and it is assumed that

9

you're going to enforce laws that are --

10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: In there.

11

MR. HOPPER: -- there. This would refer, for

12

example, to the new bed and breakfast ordinance that

13

says enforce laws regarding bed and breakfast homes and

14

transient vacation rentals that are effective at any

15

given time. Right now, the bed and breakfast ordinance

16

is an example. And then it says, "until the laws are

17

actually amended to no longer be effective." Well, I --

18

I don't know if there's any assumption that the laws

19

will, in the future, be amended to be no longer

20

effective. The bed and breakfast ordinance is one, for

21

example, that for a while at least, I think it's

22

assumed, that it would need -- not need to be amended in

23

the near future. There may be debates on others, but, I

24

mean, I don't know if it's necessary to say that you're

25

going to assume that there's going to be future
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1

amendments to current bed and breakfast laws. If -- if

2

there wants to be a -- a reiteration that current laws

3

in this particular area are supposed to be enforced,

4

which -- which they are, anyway, then I think that's an

5

okay statement. You could strike from "until" until the

6

rest and, I think, have the same meaning. Because if

7

they are amended, then they would have the changed

8

effectiveness.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.

9
10

MR. HOPPER: I think I understand exactly what

11

the Department's getting at, but I -- I don't think that

12

sentence is necessary.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Discussion?

13
14

Member Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move to

15
16

amend -- say -- and -- and I'll just read it the way I

17

would like it to read. "Enforce laws regarding bed and

18

breakfast homes and transient vacation rentals until

19

they are legalized through ordinances."

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hmm. Chair?

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll second that for

22

discussion purposes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Johnson

23
24

moved, and seconded by Member Molina [sic] to amend the

25

amendment.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Already legalized.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So we're, right now, in

3

discussion on that. Okay. Go ahead, Member John --

4

Baisa.

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I think I know

6

what Member Johnson is trying to do, but, unfortunately,

7

bed and breakfast homes are already legalized. It's the

8

TVRs that are the issue. So the -- that kind of

9

complicates it. I kinda like the other language without

10
11
12

the second sentence. I kinda agree with Mr. Hopper.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh. Okay. Go
ahead, Mr. Hopper.

13

MR. HOPPER: I think it would also -- with --

14

with new language, it would be necessary to assume that

15

-- that all bed and breakfast homes and transient

16

vacation rentals are going to be legalized at some --

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

18

MR. HOPPER: -- future date. And -- and I

19

don't know if that's necessarily true because that's up

20

to the Council.

21
22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Then, Mr. Chair, I
withdraw my motion.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I --

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I withdraw my second
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that I was --

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We're back to

3

this original language at this point in time.

4

Discussion? Go ahead, Member Baisa.

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I move that we

6

delete that -- everything after the comma, "until the

7

laws are actually amended," and just leave it that way.

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

9

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second for

10

discussion.

11
12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member
Baisa and --

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. That's fine.)

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- seconded by

15

Member --

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know it.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- Victorino to amend

18

the amendment to read as -- as indicated before you.

19

Discussion on this?

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member

22
23

Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I -- I wanna ask,

24

Mr. Corporation Counsel, if you read into that, is that

25

sufficient to address?
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
Tonya McDade, CSR, RPR, CRR, CBC
(808)244-DEPO

PC 2/22/2010

266

1

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.

2

MR. HOPPER: Well, Member Nishiki, I would

3

say, in my opinion, no language is needed. If -- if

4

there's existing laws on vacation rentals --

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's all right.

6

MR. HOPPER: -- or bed and breakfasts, they --

7

they should be enforced unless -- until they're changed.

8

I guess I can understand why there's a specific

9

reference to these particular laws, but in -- in

10

general, I think any laws, if they're in place and --

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.

12

MR. HOPPER: You know, the -- the -- I don't

13

think you would pass a law and say don't enforce it, you

14

know.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

16

MR. HOPPER: So --

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further

18
19

discussion? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I think this is a

20

crux of a lot of discussion in our community. And so I

21

think it's a very clear-cut statement. And it says that

22

you will enforce the laws regarding B&Bs and TVRs. And

23

that is exactly what is going on that has caused so much

24

concern in the community. But, you know, until we have

25

new laws, the laws we have are what the Planning
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further
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discussion?

4

(Laughter.)

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Medeiros?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I -- I understand

7

what Member Baisa is saying, but I -- I think it's -- it

8

complicates things more. I -- I think Corp. Counsel,

9

you know -- I mean, as -- as he expressed, if we develop

10

laws and adopt them, you know, you have to enforce them.

11

Otherwise, why have laws? So I -- I'm not sure if we

12

need to say this.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Can we come back to

13
14

this at a later time?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, you don't have to

15
16

adopt this at all.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: If you don't --

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I don't --

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- like this language,

21

you can have it -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I just don't want it

22
23

in.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's redundant.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It's redundant.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Okay. So what

is -- we have a motion right now.

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Withdraw my motion.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you, Gladys.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But we have an

6

original -- okay. We have Gladys' amendment to the main

7

motion. We still have the main motion to adopt this.

8

So if you want to -- the maker of that main motion is --

9

is to take that --

10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, my -- my last

11

question, and we can delete this if we don't need it,

12

but I'd be interested in the Department -- the Planning

13

Department Director's comment on deleting it. They must

14

have had a reason why they asked us to put it in.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department?

16

MR. HUNT: Certainly, I can understand the

17

logic that why would you need a policy telling you to

18

enforce or -- enforce the laws that are effective. But

19

if you recall, just two years ago, this was a bloody

20

battle in our community. And we're still getting

21

vitriol from community members saying that we shouldn't

22

have enforced our laws. The -- I -- I agree. It's --

23

it's almost ludicrous that we have to have a policy like

24

this. But look at the discussion and the -- and the

25

turmoil that has occurred in our community regarding
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1

this. And so this would clearly set the record

2

straight. This is what our policy is regarding this.

3

And that -- that was the intent.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Wayne?

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair, he just trying

6

(inaudible).
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, okay, just so

7
8

we clarify, Member Baisa has -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Withdrew.

9
10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Removed or withdrew --

11

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: That's -- it's gone.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- her motion.

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Right.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So we're just --

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We're --

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- voting on the main

18
19
20

thing.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We're back to the
motion as has been presented --

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

22

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- by the Department?

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And I support the

25

rest of it.
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1

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So we're --

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Let's go on.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- discussing the main

4

motion.

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. David?

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Gotta put 'em back.

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Coming.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Unless the maker

10

of that motion wants to withdraw that, right now, it's

11

before us.

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

13

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: She withdrew.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: She withdrew her

16

amendment. She changed -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I -- I withdrew the

17
18

amendment.

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh.

20

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In other words, Mr.

21

Chair, we'd leave that enforcing of the laws of bed and

22

breakfasts -- the whole?

23
24
25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's the -- that's
the main motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's the main
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motion, yeah.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah. That's

4

fine.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So what I want this

5
6

body to know is that we still are back to the main

7

motion, which is Number 3. And if you do not want this,

8

then you should --COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?

9
10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I just wanna speak

12

loud and clear. The reason why Jeff Hunt took the heat

13

was because the prior administration refused to enforce

14

the law. That's all.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: He doesn't want to say

17

it.

I'll say it.

It's that simple.

18

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good boy.

20

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Next.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

22

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now we gotta vote

23
24
25

now, brah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So I wanna know if
we're voting on this motion at all. So I'm -- I'm
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trying to -- yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, my feeling is

3

we've already established a law. You know, people can

4

get in trouble for failure to actually enforce the law,

5

you know, if -- if that comes down to it. I don't think

6

it's -- I mean, if we did that -- there have been other

7

things which were redundant that we've taken out other

8

policies. And since we have so many already, I think

9

it's clear that whatever the ordinances say you have to

10

do, you have to do. Where I think the problem was

11

coming in was some of the individuals who were not being

12

cited who were also doing the same activities. It was

13

in the administration and the execution in what seemed

14

to be not a fair and balanced way, that that was where

15

the controversies come in. And so I don't think we

16

should even go there. I -- I am not gonna support this.

17

We already gone there.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I just checked

19

back to make clear that this Item Number 3 as an

20

amendment was made by Member Victorino and seconded by

21

Member Medeiros. So that is the main motion.

22

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Baisa amended

24

it, she retracted her amendment. So we're back to the

25

main motion.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The main motion,

right.

3

MR. HOPPER: I just wanted to clarify, I did

4

not say this would be in a legal policy, by any means.

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

6

MR. HOPPER: I said it's perhaps not -- not

7

necessary, but if -- if it's in there, it's -- I don't

8

see any legal problems with it. You know, I -- I did

9

wanna get that out there. I -- I don't want you to

10

withdraw it because of anything I said. It's just --

11

it's up to the -- the body. I -- I wouldn't see a

12

problem either way legally, anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So -- so, Mr. Chair,

13
14

I mean, if I hear Corp. Counsel correctly, the way it

15

was originally stated by the Director, and we moved and

16

seconded with this original, all three, Number 3 is

17

where the point of contention is -- and you're saying,

18

Corp. Counsel, that's not gonna be legal, it's actually

19

just because it's there, it's there now?
MR. HOPPER: It -- it -- to me, it's almost

20
21

like, in a permit, saying, you shall comply with all

22

other laws. You know, that -- yeah, that's assumed

23

because there are other laws that apply to you, anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But it's clearly

24
25

stated?
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MR. HOPPER:

1

It's -- it's -- it's okay.

It

2

doesn't render whatever it is legal. But it's -- it

3

will apply regardless of whether or not it seems clear.

4

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. That's fine.

5

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Are we clear on what's

6
7

before us?

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And any further

10
11

other discussion on this amendment, Number 3? Okay. If

12

not, then all those in favor of it, signify by saying

13

"aye".

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No.

17
18
19
20
21
22
23

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,
Victorino, and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: Vice-Chair Johnson.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Nishiki.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.

24
25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We have one "no", then
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1

the motion is carried. This amendment is -- this is

2

amended into the Policy section. Okay. Okay. Further

3

discussions, Member -- Members on this, 331 to 345?

4

Okay. If not, then, Members, all those in favor of the

5

Objective 2, the attached Policies --

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Action.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- and the Action

8

items, from Items Number 331 to 345, signify by saying

9

"aye".

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

12

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina,

13

Victorino, Vice-Chair Johnson, and

14

Chair Kaho'ohalahala.

15

NOES: None.

16

ABSTAIN: None.

17

ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Nishiki.

18
19

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED motion, as amended.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That section is

21
22

adopted as amended. Okay.

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I am so tired.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It is time to call it a

25

day.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.

2

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess so.

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Sounds good.

5

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think so.

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Totally wasted.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, let's see. We

8
9
10

started at 9:00 -(Laughter.)
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So we are

11

completed up to 345. And then we will begin on Item

12

Number 346 when we --

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 346.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- reconvene -- not

15

reconvene, when we meet again.

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Meet again.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, do we have a

21

meeting tomorrow afternoon?

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, we don't.

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We don't?

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I just wanted to
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yeah.

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So at this point, then,

6

Members, the Chair is going to adjourn today's meeting.

7

And I wanna thank you for being here and I wanna thank

8

especially the -- the people who came to testify on this

9

item. So at this time this meeting is now adjourned.

10

...(gavel)...

11

ACTION: DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

12

ADJOURN: 4:22 p.m.

13
14
15
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19
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